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PART I

Item 1. Business

General

Presstek is a market-focused company primarily engaged in the design, manufacture, sales and service of high-
technology digital imaging solutions to the graphic arts industry worldwide. We are helping to lead the industry’s
transformation from analog print production methods to digital imaging technology. We are a leader in the
development of advanced printing systems using digital imaging equipment and consumables-based solutions that
economically benefit the user through a streamlined workflow and chemistry free, environmentally responsible
operation. We are also a leading sales and service channel in the small to mid-sized commercial, quick and in-plant
printing markets offering a wide range of solutions to over 20,000 customers worldwide.

Presstek’s business model is a capital equipment and consumables (razor and blade) model. In this model, almost
70% of our revenue is recurring revenue. Our model is designed so that each placement of either a Direct Imaging
Press or a Computer to Plate system results in recurring aftermarket revenue for consumables and service.

Through our various operations, we:

* provide advanced print solutions through the development and manufacture of digital laser imaging
equipment and advanced technology chemistry-free printing plates, which we call consumables, for

commercial and in-plant print providers targeting the growing market for high quality, fast turnaround short-
run color printing;

* are a leading sales and services company delivering Presstek digital solutions and solutions from other
manufacturing partners through our direct sales and service force and through distribution partners
worldwide;

* manufacture semiconductor solid state laser diodes for Presstek imaging applications and for use by external
applications; and

¢ manufacture and distribute printing plates for conventional print applications.

Background

We are innovators in imaging technology. Our primary market focus is the segment for commercial print services
within the graphic arts industry. We recognized that the model for commercial print was moving to increasingly
shorter runs and higher use of color, and that print providers were ill-equipped to deal with this changing model.
The changing model has led to a growing trend from analog to digital in the industry. We are capitalizing on this
analog to digital transformation and have developed digital imaging technology to address the growing demand for
high quality, fast turnaround, short-run color in commercial print applications. We have incorporated our technology
into two types of applicetions for off-set printing: Direct Imaging on-press applications, which we refer to as DI,
and for computer-to-plate off-press applications, which we refer to as CTP. -

Using DI technology, digital images are sent to a specially-designed digital offset printing press that incorporates
our laser imaging system and our high performance printing plates. Our laser imaging systems then image our
printing plates directly on the press. This unique approach results in a highly streamlined digital workflow and
allows the user to treat the printing press more like a computer peripheral. We have incorporated this same digital
imaging technology into CTP, or Computer to Plate applications. Using our CTP technology, digital images are
sent to plate-imaging devices, the plates are imaged by our laser imaging systems again using our high performance
printing plates and then mounted on a traditional offset printing press.

Presstek’s digital imaging systems enable customers to produce high-quality; full color lithographic printed
materials more quickly and cost-effectively than conventional methods that employ more complicated workflows
and toxic chemical processing. This results in reduced printing cycle time and lowers the effective cost of
production for commercial printers. Our solutions make it more cost effective for printers to meet the increasing
demand for shorter print runs, higher quality color and faster turn-around times.
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We have been a pioneer in the advancement of digitél imaging solutions for commercial printing applications. We:
¢ invented on-press Direct Imaging technology;
* invented the chemistry-free imaging of printing plates;

* have dramatically streamlined the workflow in commercial print operations through our many
innovations;

* have developed workflows that require less craft in the printing process through the application of our
technology; and

* continue to innovate with our recent announcement of the latest generation of a larger format, more
automated Direct Imaging press known ds the 52DL

Following our invention of the world’s first DI press,‘E we have used our advanced technology to develop a family of
new generation DI printing presses and printing plates. Today, our groundbreaking DI technology is marketed both
directly by us and through a number of original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”") and distribution partners. We
manufacture the laser-based digital imaging assemblies, complete with software, along with our advanced
technology printing plates, for incorporation into our Direct Imaging presses. Similar digital imaging technologies
are used in our CTP systems that incorporate our printing plates, which our Presstek business segment designs and
manufactures.

At our Presstek facility in Hudson, New Hampshire, we manufacture several models of our advanced printing
plates, such as PearlDry® and Applause® along with the imaging kits that are incorporated into DI presses, as well
as entire CTP units, such as the Dimension or Vector lines of platesetters. At our Precision Lithograining
manufacturing facility in South Hadley, Massachusetts, we manufacture our aluminum-based printing plates, which
are comprised of our process-free plates, such as Anthem® and Freedom®, as well as traditional analog printing
plates.

The digital products that we offer are designed to capitalize on the growing trend within the graphic arts industry
of the conversion from analog, or traditional, printing processes to digital printing processes. Conversion from
analog to digital often requires an extensive investment by customers in a new generation of equipment. As the
graphic arts industry joins other industries, such as the photographic and music industries, in converting from
analog to digital, we want to provide solutions to these customers not only to meet their current needs, but also to
assist them in the conversion. To do this, we expanded our product offerings beyond our own designed and
manufactured products.

In addition to our digital products, we also market and sell traditional offset printing presses and related products,
such as digital platemakers, which are a type of CTP, and plates to customers. We have several strategic
partnerships with companies like Mitsubishi, Agfa and Ryobi, who supply consumables and equipment that we sell
to complement our catalog of Presstek manufactured products. As the industry continues to transition to digital, our
goal is to be the supplier of choice for small to mid-sized commercial and in-plant shops, and all print providers
seeking high-quality digital technology products that will facilitate their transition.

We also have an extensive service organization throughout the United States, Canada and Western Europe. In . -
addition to servicing equipment that is manufactured by or for Presstek, our service organization also provides
service for equipment manufactured by other companies, including our strategic partners.

We deliver our products through multiple channels to market:

* we use our direct sales and service operation to deliver our solutions and those of other partner
manufacturers primarily in the U.S., Canada and the United Kingdom;

* we have a well developed graphlc arts dealer network to deliver our products in contlnental Europe and
Worldw1de and

e we use OEMs to deliver our products to markets worldwide.
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Our ability to expand our product and service offerings to include equipment that we do not design or manufacture
and traditional, non-digital consumables and deliver these products and services directly to end-user customers is
largely based upon the ABDick and Precision Lithograining acquisitions-that-occurred in 2004.

ABDick

On November 5, 2004, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, ABD International, Inc., which we refer
to as ABDick, completed the acquisition of certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of The A.B. Dick
Company, which were acquired through a Section 363 sale in the United States Bankruptcy Court. The business we
acquired manufactured, marketed and serviced offset printing and CTP sysiems as well as related supplies for the
graphic arts and printing industries. We refer to the acquired business as the ABDick business.

Following the acquisition we began integrating the ABDick business into Presstek’s operations. As part of this
integration, we implemented a new internal management reporting structure. As announced on August 8, 2005, the
Niles, llinois facility was closed as planned on December 31, 2003, and the Company moved certain executives
from Niles to the Company’s headquarters in Hudson, New Hampshire. As of December 31, 2005, we had

substantially completed the integration. Any remaining activities associated with this initiative are expected to be
completed in fiscal 2006. ‘

After the acquisition of the ABDick business, but prior to its integration into Presstek, we reported the financial
performance of the ABDick business in a separate segment called the ABDick segment. In the third quarter of
fiscal 2005, we implemented a new internal management reporting structure in connection with organizational
changes related to the integration of the acquired ABDick business into our Presstek business segment.
Accordingly, the results of operations and balance sheet information for the former ABDick segment have been
combined with those of the former Presstek segment and are now reported together as the Presstek business
segment. Any future changes 1o this organizational structure may result in changes to the business segments
currently disclosed.

In consideration for our acquisition of the ABDick business, we paid the previous owners $40.0 million in cash, net
of cash acquired. As part of this transaction, we have paid $5.1 million for legal, audit and other transaction costs
related to the acquisition, and accrued, as purchase price adjustments, an aggregate of $3.0 million for integration
costs, primarily related to the consolidation of the former Rochester, New York manufacturing operations of The
A.B. Dick Company into the existing manufacturing facility at our corporate headquarters in Hudson, New
Hampshire, and the closing of the Niles, Illinois office facility of The A.B. Dick Company. The aggregate purchase
price recorded by us is $48.1 million.

As a result of this integration effort, Presstek is a stronger, more market-driven, customer-focused organization. We
acquired a direct sales and service capability in the United States,” Canada and the United Kingdom through which
we are building more efficient and effective channels to market. In addition, we expect to see a positive financial
impact as a result of the business synergies achieved through this integration effort.

Precision

On July 30, 2004, we acquired the stock of Precision Lithograining Corp., which we refer to as Precision. In
consideration, we paid $12.1 million in cash, net of cash acquired, and incurred integration costs of $0.4 million,
for an aggregate purchase price of $12.5 million. Precision manufactures Anthem, Freedom and Aurora chemistry-
free digital print plates, and is also a provider of other conventional and digital printing plates for both web and
sheet-fed printing applications. The products manufactured by Precision are distributed through Presstek’s
distribution network or through independent dealers throughout the Western Hemisphere. With this acquisition, we
substantially increased our manufacturing capabilities and obtained the ability to manufacture analog printing plates.
We report the financial performance of Precision as a separate reporting segment.

Presstek, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware in 1987. Our headquarters are located at 55 Executive Drive, Hudson,
New Hampshire, 03051. Our general telephone number is 603-595-7000, and our Web site can be found at
www.presstek.com.




Business Overview

2005 was a pivotal year for us, as our capabilities, product offerings, and size greatly expanded: we went through a
number of strategic transformations that fundamentally changed our company. As a company, in 2005 we took
much greater charge of the commercialization and delivery of our technology to customers. We transformed into a
company focused on developing and manufacturing our advanced technology digital plates and imaging equipment
as well as the delivery of this advanced technology to customers through a direct sales and service organization.
Previously, we had been heavily reliant upon strategic partners for their sales, distribution and service.

In 2004, we greatly expanded our product offering to include new generation DI press and CTP systems. Through
our acquisition of the ABDick business in late 2004, we added greatly enhanced capabilities in the form of direct
sales and service channels, additional engineering and manufacturing capabilities and non-Presstek manufactured
digital and analog equipment and consumables.

In 2005, we completed integration of these new capabilities into our core business, benefiting from both
organizational synergies and a well-established and respected direct channel to market. As a result of this activity,
we now have “end-to-end” solutions for the graphic arts industry, encompassing each step of the development,
manufacture, distribution and service of its core products.

In the spring of 2005, we began integrating the operations that we acquired through the acquisition of the ABDick
business, so that we could leverage the large customer footprint in North America and the UK as a market for our
Presstek manufactured digital products. As part of this process, we also realigned the distribution channel for our
Direct Imaging Press line of products. '

Prior to the acquisition of the ABDick business, we had a limited European distribution operation, managed out of
the U.S. that relied on strategic relationships with independent dealers and sales agents. In March of 2005, we
restructured our European operations to better leverage our newly acquired capabilities in the UK. Built on an
existing UK-based sales and service operation acquired in 2004 as part of the acquisition of the ABDick business,
this move was designed to not only increase our presence in Europe, but also enhance the support we provide to
our established base of European customers. By the end of 2005, we completed the reorganization of the European
operations and relocated into a new business center just outside of London’s Heathrow airport. From this facility,
we offer customer support and training, as well as a demonstration facility for products.

Beginning in April of 2005, we began to offer Presstek’s market-leading digital products through our newly
acquired North American sales force. For the first time, we were able to sell Direct Imaging presses using our DI
technology, along with our CTP equipment and related consumables directly to end-user customers. This transition
to direct customer sales demonstrated early success, with the sale of DI presses to end-user customers in the first
quarter following sales and service training. This was followed in July of 2005 by the commercial release of an
entry-level CTP solution, the Vector TX52, specifically designed to meet market demands for lower-cost CTP
solutions. These actions in 2005 produced a record level of digital sales for Presstek. ‘

During the same time period, we began to take advantage of the resources available in our newly-acquired service
organization to position us for more opportunities. In the first part of 2005, we began training the service
organization so that they might gain a digital equipment competence. As a result of these efforts, we brought back
to Presstek the previously outsourced service of much of our digital equipment. With the gained competence, we
now are able to offer a full range of service of both digital and analog equipment throughout North America and
the UK, and through dealer service organizations in continental Europe.

With the added sales and service capabilities resulting from the acquisition of the ABDick business, we believe we
are better positioned to facilitate the sales of our proprietary equipment, while offering a full portfolio of products
designed to meet the needs of today’s print serv1ce providers.

With the acquisition of Precision in the third quarter of fiscal 2004, we were able to offer an enhanced product
portfolio and, for the first time, we released a Presstek-designed and manufactured plate that was intended to run
on the CTP devices of other manufacturers. This first open-platform chemistry-free printing plate product, Aurora,
uses our patented technology, and was announced in September 2005. The Aurora plate is designed to operate with
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Screen and Kodak CTP engines, prov1dmg access 10 a substantial portion of the thermal CTP marketplace for
Presstek consumables.

Changes made at Lasertel in 2005 have also better positioned it for future opportunities. In January of 2005,
Laserte]l announced the purchase of a new generation Solid Source Molecular Beam Epitaxy (“SS-MBE”) reactor
to produce its high-quality semiconductor lasers. Its innovative design enables the multi-wafer reactor to deliver
higher throughput and lower costs per wafer. This new reactor will position Lasertel to produce products more
efficiently.

In addition, by modifying its relationships with customers, Lasertel is better positioned for future opportunities.
Lasertel had advanced funds to a customer in exchange for the customer meeting certain minimum purchase
requirements. These advances were secured by all of the property of the vendor, including the vendor’s intellectual
property. In July of 2005, Lasertel formed a significant alliance to provide laser diode components and assemblies
to SELEX Sensors and Airborne Systems which we refer to as SELEX. As part of this alliance, SELEX committed
to meet the minimum purchase requirements of the vendor to whom Lasertel had advanced money and Lasertel was
assigned all of the intellectual property of the vendor. This expansion of Lasertel’s manufacturing capability into
the defense sector has the potential to open further business opportunities for us in the laser imaging market.

Information about our business segments and geographic areas is included in Note 17 and information about our
major customers is included in Note 18 to our financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Qur Business Segments

We operate in three reportable segments: the Presstek segment, the Precision segment, and the Lasertel segment.
The Presstek segment is primarily engaged.in the development, manufacture, sale and servicing of digital imaging
systems and printing plate technologies for direct-to-press, or on-press applications, and CTP, or off- -press
applications for the graphic arts and printing industries, primarily serving the short-run, full-color market segment.
The Precision segment is primarily engaged in the development, manufacture and sale of our patented digital plates,
as well as digital and analog plates for other customers, The Lasertel segment is primarily engaged in the
manufacture and development of h1gh powered laser diodes for sale to the Presstek segment and to external
customers.

The Presstek Segment

The Presstek segment is the core of our operations, serving as the central engine of innovation for research, new
product development and manufacturing as well as the center for marketing, sales and service of our imaging
systems, chemistry-free Direct Imaging printing plates and our CTP systems.

In addition, the Presstek segment serves as the central organization under which each of our subsidiaries function,
and the Presstek segment sets the strategic and research direction and priorities for the entire Company.

The Presstek segment manufactures the imaging systems and related assemblies that are incorporated into DI
presses and our CTP units. The imaging systems that are designated for DI presses are shipped to various DI press
manufacturers with whom.we have OEM agreements. The imaging systems that are designated for CTP units are
then incorporated into our CTP units, which are manufactured at our Hudson, New Hampshire facility.

We manufacture the plates that are used on DI presses and certain of our CTP units at our Hudson, New
Hampshire and South Hadley, Massachusetts facilities. Mitsubishi and Agfa manufacture plates that are imaged on
our Digital PlateMaster, or DPM, series CTP devices.

Our products are sold into the market to end-user customers through either our direct sales force or through OEM
partners, strategic partners or our dealer channel. By employing this combination of internal and external sales
organizations, we are able to sell our products worldwide.

Our direct sales force sells our Presstek manufactured digital print solutions as well as other provided by marketing
partners solutions, to print service providers, commercial, quick, and in-plant printers around the world.
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We also have an established catalog of supplies and consumables, many of which complement the Presstek segment
equipment offerings. The Presstek segment has an equipment line of CTP devices; workflow modules; conventional
duplicators and printing presses, post-press bindery and finishing equipment and other ancillary devices
manufactured by third parties. Thus, the Presstek segment products provide the foundation for a comprehensive
digital migration path to address the full range of customer needs.

Our equipment is serviced by either our direct service organization, or by OEM partners, strategic partners, or our
dealer channel. Our direct service organization is trained to service Presstek-branded digital products as well as
traditional analog equipment manufactured by third parties. Our direct service organization primarily serves
customers consisting of small to mid-sized pnntmg shops in the graphic arts industry located in North America and
the UK.

As a result, customers served by the Presstek segment provide opportunities for increased distribution of Presstek
products and technologies. With direct sales and service organizations, we now have an installed base of
approximately 33,000 total products that are under service and an active customer base of approximately 20,000
print service providers and in-plant print operations.

The Lasertel Segment Y

Our Lasertel segment is a world-class developer and manufacturer of high-quality, high-powered laser diodes for
Presstek-branded imaging systems as well as third-party systems. The Lasertel segment provides Presstek with
state-of-the-art laser imaging capabilities that differentiate us by bringing innovation to the rapidly evolving graphic
arts marketplace. In addition, the Lasertel segment provides external customers with a wide range of laser diodes
for defense and industrial applications. In December of 2005, Lasertel received ISO 9001:2000 certification. An
ISO 9001:2000 certification recognizes the quality of a company’s management system. ISO is a non-governmental
federation of the national standard boards of countries from all regions of the world that set the standards and
requirements for state-of-the-art products, services, processes, materials and systems as well as for good conformity
assessment, managerial and organizational practice.

The Precision Segment

The Precision segment is a designer, manufacturer, and seller of high-quality digital and analog printing plates for
customers in the commercial print, newspaper, and book publication segments of the graphic arts industry. The
Precision segment manufactures four types of printing plates: Presstek-branded proprietary chemistry-free digital
plates using Presstek’s award-winning technology for sale to Presstek and Presstek customers; Presstek proprietary
chemistry-free digital plates using Presstek’s award-winning technology for sale to third-party customers; third
party proprietary digital plates for sale to third-party customers; and analog plates for sale to third-party customers.
The Precision segment’s graphic arts products are distributed on a worldwide basis by us as well as through OEM
partners and a network of independent dealers.

Strategy

Our business strategy revolves around employmg 1nnovat1ve digital imaging technology to address specific and
well-understood opportunities primarily in the graphic arts marketplace, while at the same time supplying the small
to mid-sized commercial, quick and in-plant printer with a full range of print solutions. In this way, we can
capitalize on the needs of customers who have not yet fully transitioned to a digital model to assist them with their
transition from analog to digital technology. '

This strategy reflects several strategic imperatives:

1. Our primary focus is on the growth of our consumables pfoduct.

The graphic arts industry is in the midst of a fundamental structural change from analog to digital
operations. We provide digital print solutions that use our chemistry-free and process-free printing plates for
both DI, or on press, and CTP, or off press, applications. Presstek-manufactured digital equipment such as
CTP systems and DI presses allow us to build a substantial installed base of digital consumable customers.
We refer to the installed base of DI presses and CTP units as consumable burning engines, or CBEs. One
method of growing the market for consumables involves further expanding the base of our installed CBEs.
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With our direct sales and service force and our distribution network, we are positioned to expand our
customer base and assist customers in evolving from analog to digital processes, creating additional market
opportunities for the CBEs and consumables that we manufacture. Another method of growing the market
for consumables is to develop consumables that can be imaged by non-Presstek devices, reaching beyond
our own manufactured systems and penetrating the installed base of CTP devices in all market segments
with our chemistry-free and process-free offerings. The first step in executing this strategy was the launch of
Aurora, our open-platform chemistry-free printing plate that uses our patented technology. The Aurora plate
is designed to be used with CBEs manufactured by CTP market leaders such as Screen and Kodak.

. We focus on select market segments.

Large print providers have been the vanguard in adopting digital technology and have driven the indhstly’s
digital transformation of the commercial printing segment of the graphic arts industry. The small and

- medium-sized commercial and quick print providers and in-plant print operations ‘are currently converting to
" digital systems and processes. With our innovative digital printing solutions and the strength of our direct
sales and service force, we believe that we can leverage the depth and breadth of our products, services,
supplies, internal skills, and strategic partnerships to address these new and emergmg market demands
among small and medium sized print providers.

Three unique types of businesses have demonstrated success with Presstek digital solutions.

a. Small to mid-sized commercial printers that need to adjust their production capacity, level of
productivity and output quality while improving profitability have demonstrated success with our
digital products. These printers are often acquiring their first four-color press. 2004 research from
InfoTrends/CAP Ventures indicates that there are approximately 25,000 print estabhshments in the
United States that fall within this category.

b. Digital printers, shops that operate toner-based digital equipment, are acquiring DI presses as
complementary devices. They are using DI presses for applications that require run lengths greater
than 500, a higher level of quality and are printed on a wider range of materials.

c. In-plant print shops that operate within corporations, colleges and universities and government agencies
.are attracted to the ease-of-use and environmentally responsible nature of our solutions. 2004 research
from InfoTrends/CAP Ventures indicates that there are approxxmately 9,600 in-plant establishments in
the United States. ,

. Because we compete on the basis of technology and innovation, we deliver differentiated products.

We have been technology innovators since our inception, providing digital laser technology that is directly
responsible for what is estimated to be over 90% of worldwide DI installations. As we expand and refine
our product offerings, we will strive to lead the market with high performance products. We will also
introduce a range of Presstek-branded products in 2006 and beyond, beginning with the Presstek 52DI press
in the spring of 2006. This will extend Presstek brand awareness and increase the strength of the brand as
well as offer us more control over the sales and service process.

The Presstek 52DI is a landscape format 52cm direct imaging press with a maximum speed of 10,000
sheets per hour. This press is highly automated and designed to deliver superior economics, faster
turnaround times for printed jobs, require lower skilled operators and reduced paper waste. The Presstek
52DI images all four printing plates simultaneously on press. The press’ unique design with Zero Transfer -
Print technology, results in perfect registration on each sheet, an exceptionally fast make-ready time and
reliable handling across a wide range of printed substrates,

4, We provide environmentally responsible solutions through our application of technology.

Our thermally imaged chemistry-free plate technologies provide both streamlined workflow and environmen-
tally, responsible solutions. Besides contributing to a cleaner planet, environmental responsibility is sound
business practice in that our DI and CTP technology reduces labor needs, reduces space requirements,
-eliminates plate-oriented waste disposal, and results in fewer manufacturing process errors.
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Technology and Products

Direct Imaging Techndlogy

'

Beginning in the late 1980s, we pioneered a direct imaging system known as Direct Imaging, which we refer to as
DI, that employs lasers to digitally image a process-free printing plate directly on off-set printing presses. We have
eliminated much of the pre-press processing of the data file and the offline imaging of a printing plate, essentially
allowing us to treat the printing press as a computer peripheral. Previously, all platemaking and pre-press activities
had occurred as a separate and specialized activity in the printing operation primarily using analog film-based
technology, chemical processing and manual processes.

Conventional or analog printing plates are produced using labor and chemical-intensive, multi-step processes. By
consolidating or eliminating process steps required to prepare a digital file for printing, DI delivers efficiencies that
allow increased print productivity at lower cost and with better quality than traditional print methods. At the same
time, by imaging process-free plates directly on a printing press, Presstek products eliminate the reliance on the
chemical processing that is generally associated with imaging traditional printing plates. In addition to being overall
more efficient to operate our DI presses are also more environmentally responsible than traditional methods of
printing. The result is a higher quality, faster turnaround print work with a lower cost of operation that is also
environmentally safe.

The laser diodes that we use for our imaging system are manufactured at Lasertel. Laserte]l manufactures epitaxial
wafers, which are subsequently processed into chips or bars. Lasertel then assembles these devices into fiber-
coupled modules called multiple emitter packages (“MEPs”), which contain four lasers per module. These MEPs
are then sent to our manufacturing facility in Hudson, New Hampshire.

We assemble Lasertel-manufactured laser imaging modules into imaging kits that are designed for particular press
manufacturers or CTP units. These kits are then incorporated into DI printing presses, primarily manufactured by
Ryobi Limited of Japan. :

Our most recent advance in DI technology, which we refer to as the ProFire Excel system, has significantly
improved the resolution of our digital printing presses. The ProFire Excel integrated imaging system, introduced in
May 2004, integrates lasers, laser drivers, digital electronics, and motion control into one modular package design
for direct imaging presses. The ProFire Excel system has three major components: the FirePower laser diode
system, made up of unique four-beam laser diodes and laser drivers, the infegrated motion system that controls the
placement of the laser diodes, and the FireStation digital controller and data server. The image data board of the
ProFire Excel controls 16-micron diodes with patented Image Plus technology. Among the advantages of Image
Plus is a new writing mode that substantially increases image quality while drastically reducing moiré patterns in
standard screen sets, allowing for a wide range of stochastic screening (FM) options.

These technologies will be incorporated in a larger format Presstek-branded DI press, the Presstek 52DI, in the
spring of 2006 — the first Presstek-branded DI product.

We continue to develop and commercialize our DI digital imaging systems for on-press applications. There can be
no assurance, however, that we will be able to successfully commercialize additional products that incorporate this
technology.

CTP Products

In addition to offering our imaging technology in DI presses, we also offer our imaging technology in computer-to-
plate systems, which we refer to as CTP, which we manufacture in our Hudson, New Hampshire facility. Unlike
the DI press, where the plate is imaged on the press, CTP systems allow printers to employ Presstek’s digital
technology on conventional printing presses. Presstek’s line of CTP systems incorporate our advanced imaging
technology to transfer a digital image onto our high performance printing plates, which, once imaged, can be
mounted on a conventional offset printing press, avoiding the multiple steps and chemical processes traditionally
associated with analog plates. In manufacturing these devices, we assemble Lasertel-manufactured laser imaging
modules into imaging kits, which, in turn, become components of the particular CTP device. Currently, we
manufacture three types of CTP products: Dimension; Vector; and Digital PlateMaster or DPM. These advanced
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CTP systems use chemistry free printing plates manufactured by Presstek in both Hudson, NH and our Precision
operation in western Massachusetts, to deliver more efficient printing solutions to customers who have an installed
base of conventional offset printing presses.

Dimension

The Dimension platesetter is a CTP imaging device that can image our Anthem, PearlDry Plus and Applause
thermal plates in an A3 (2-page), A2 (4-page) or Al (8-page) format size: The Dimension Excel utilizes our
ProFire Excel laser imaging technology, and can produce completely imaged printing plates, ready to be mounted
on a printing press, within three to five minutes depending on the system configuration. The Dimension Excel is
available in both standard and high-productivity models.

Vector TX52

In July of 2005, we made a new generation of CTP devices commercially available that are based on our new Sure
Fire imaging system, which we call the Vector series of CTP devices. The most recent version of the Vector series,
which we call the Vector TX52, is designed to image our Freedom thermally imaged chemistry free printing plate.
The Vector line is priced for ease of entry and intended for maximum ease-of-use to streamline platemaking
operations while delivering the speed, quality and performance that our customers demand. The Vector TX52
thermal plate-setter and Freedom chemistry-free plates are designed to provide the short-run, small format (52cm
and under) printer with a unique metal platemaking solution for higher productivity, cleaner operation and lower
production and material costs. The Vector TX52 is part of the family of Presstek fully integrated, chemistry-free
thermal metal CTP systems on the market.

The Digital PlateMaster

Digital PlateMaster is a high-resolution platesetter designed for use with small-formal portrait presses. Producing
press-ready plates from a desktop computer eliminates many steps from the pre-press process. With ThinDrum™
technology, less drum surface area comes into contact with the plate. A support “rib” forms the plate into the
optimal cylindrical shape for imaging; and because it is the reverse side of the plate that’s supported, the possibility
of the plate’s surface being scratched is eliminated. This innovative design provides superlor image definition and
repeatability while maintaining high output speeds.

We continue to develop and commercialize our CTP systems. There can be no assurance, however, that we will be
able to successfully commercialize these or other products, or enter into any additional arrangements that will result
in the broader distribution of our Dimension and Vector product lines.

‘Printing Plates
General

Offset printing is the most widely used method of producing printed materials for commercial applications. The
majority of quality, full color printing materials, with which the average consumer comes into daily contact (such as
magazines, brochures, catalogs and direct mail pieces) are produced using the offset printing process. Qur products
are designed for offset printing.

We manufacture printing plates for both on press Direct Imaging, or DI, and offline Computer to Plate, or CTP,
printing applications. DI plates include PeariDry, PearlDry Plus and ProFire Digital Media and are all waterless
plates that are manufactured in our Hudson, New Hampshire facility. Our CTP plate portfolio consists of Applause,
PearlDry, Anthem, Aurora and Freedom. Applause and PearlDry are manufactured in Hudson, while the other CTP
plates are manufactured at our Precision facility in South Hadley, Massachusetts. Our plates are based on our
patented chemistry-free thermal imaging technology. Our printing plates respond to heat generated by high-powered
lasers (thermal imaging) using a process known as ablation to enable chemistry-free plate production. Presstek has
a rich portfolio of intellectual property and considerable know-how focused on the application of chemistry free
plate imaging. We pioneered chemistry free imaging in commercial print applications and we have more than

15 years of successful marketing of our technology to end users. We are on our fifth generation of chemistry free
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and process free plate imaging systems for commercial print applications- a statement that offers Presstek a unique
competitive advantage in the market place.

DI
PearlDry Plus

The current PearlDry Plus plate is a second-generation product based on our patented PearlDry technology. The
plate uses a specially formulated silicone material that is coated over the metalized infrared absorbing layer.
Environmentally friendly, thin-film vacuum deposition processes produce the ultra-thin film coatings that facilitate
ablative imaging without excessive residue and are the foundation of PearlDry Plus plates for waterless printing.
Cur PearlDry Plus spooled plates are used in a number of highly automated DI presses. The Dimension CTP
platesetter and other CTP systems also are able to image the PearlDry Plus plate.

PearlDry . ;

PearlDry is used for DI press applications that require an aluminum-backed plate such as the 74Karat DI press
manufactured by Koenig and Bauer (“KBA”) of Germany. The plate uses a specially formulated silicone material
that is coated over the metalized infrared absorbing layer that is then bonded to an aluminum base.
Environmentally friendly, thin-film vacuum deposition processes produce the ultra-thin film coatings that facilitate
ablative imaging without excessive residue and are the foundation of PearlDry plates for waterless printing.

ProFire Digital Media

ProFire Digital Media is designed to work as a system with the laser imaging and press components of ProFire
Excel enabled DI presses. In conjunction with ProFire Excel imaging ProFire Digital Media allows new DI presses
to produce a very high resolution, 16 micron spot and supports the highest level of print quality — up to 300-line
screen and stochastic (FM) screening. This third generation plate is formulated in a similar fashion to PearlDry and
is optimized to work with ProFire Excel Imaging.

cTp

Anthem .

Anthem plates for CTP systems feature our patented polymer-ceramic technology and combine ablative imaging
and chemistry-free cleaning (a simple water wash) with run lengths of up to 100,000 impressions. The Anthem
plate runs with a wide range of fountain chemistry and inks and can be imaged on other thermal CTP systems.
Anthem’s market includes a broad base of installed conventional wet offset presses, currently the largest segment of
the printing industry.

Applause

The Applause plate was our first completely process-free plate product. We believe Applause is unique in that it is
truly the world’s first commercially available no-process plate. Unlike other digital plate products, Applause
requires no intermediate steps between imaging and printing. Other benefits of Applause include excellent ink/water
latitude, high resolution, and compatibility with existing press chemistries.

Freedom

The Freedom plate is the latest chemistry-free plate product, introduced in September 2003. Freedom operates n
conjunction with Presstek’s Vector line of CTP solutions. Like our Anthem plate, Freedom requires only a simple
wash with water before printing. The unique surface structure of the plate results in fast make-ready, greater
ink/water latitude and excellent durability. In addition, Freedom plates accommodate a wide range of industry
standard inks and fountain solutions. Freedom plates deliver the performance characteristics and stability of
conventional aluminum plates.
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Aurora
In 2005, we introduced Aurora, our first chemlstry free CTP thermal plate desxgned to operate with CTP systems
from market leaders Screen and Kodak. This further extends the opportunity for printers to leverage innovative

Presstek chemistry-free technology with their existing installed base of CTP systems eliminating the need to
purchase, store and dispose of toxic chemicals.

Our Aurora process-free thermal printing plate delivers the performance of traditional CTP plates, with the benefits
of chemistry-free imaging technology for standard 2-page, 4-page and 8-page formats. The Aurora’s surface
structure results in fast make-ready, excellent durability and greater ink/water latitude, while delivering the
performance characteristics and stability of conventional aluminum plates.

Analog

Publica

Precision’s Publica line of plates are analog plates designed for the needs of the newspaper industry and other
high- volume web printing applications.

Qualis

Precision’s Qualis line of plates are analog plates that offer high-quality, value-priced aqueous-based printing plates
to the high-volume commercial printing segment.

Express ‘
Precision’s Express line of plates are analog plates designed for the needs of book printers.

Fuchsia

Precision’s Fuchsm line of plates are analog plates [hat offer excellent performance and value to a wxde range of
offset printing applications.

We continue to develop thermal consumable plate products that can be imaged by both our own DI systems and
high-energy laser-based CTP and other computer-to-plate systems offered by leading manufacturers. There can be
no assurance, however, that we will be able to successfully commerc1al1ze products that incorporate this
technology ’

Lasertel Diode Products

The graphic arts industry continues to demand a '_high degree of speed, imaging resolution and accuracy without
increasing costs. Our high-powered laser diodes are designed to achieve greater imaging power, uniformity and
reliability at.a low unit cost for the diode array. Writing speed and accuracy are increased, without increasing space
and costs, by combining four fiber channels into a single optical module. These diodes, manufactured at our
Lasertel subsidiary, also. incorporate a number of packaging innovations that reduce the size of the device and
facilitate incorporation into the ProFire Excel imaging module. In addition to manufacturing Presstek products,
Lasertel also manufactures products for third-party customers in the industrial, medical and defense sectors.

Manufacturing

We operate manufacturing sites in Hudson, New Hampshire; Tucson, Arizona; and South Hadley, Massachusetts. In
general, we strive to employ the latest manufacturing techniques in our equipment assembly and plate
manufacturing operations. Strategic procurement initiatives are in place to qualify and consolidate vendors, and
establish active vendor report card programs to improve incoming quality and reduce product costs. With the full
integration of the new capabilities we acquired as a result of the 2004 Precision and ABDick acquisitions, we are
continually evaluating similar operations in different plants to leverage our capabilities and achieve economies of
scale. We also continually assess outside manufacturing capacity and review our existing manufacturing
technologies when deciding whether to manufacture or to buy a product or component.
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We use a number of outside vendors who supply components and sub-assemblies which are integrated into
completed systems — either direct imaging systems used in DI presses, such as the Ryobi 3404DI and the
Presstek 52DI, or CTP imaging systems, such as the Dimension and Vector TX52. These systems-use
semiconductor laser diode devices built to our specifications and supplied by Lasertel. We believe other sources
would be available to manufacture the laser diodes to specification, in the future, if required.

Our DI imaging kits, CTP systems, and our PearlDry Plus and Applause printing plate products are manufactured
at our 165,000-square-foot state-of-the-art facility located in Hudson, New Hampshire. Our equipment _
manufacturing employs the latest techniques in the assembly process, including point-of-use issue of parts, single
flow process, and multiple operations done by each assembler.

Plate manufacturing at our Hudson facility uses vacuum deposition technology to create ultra-thin imaging layers.

We have a state-of-the-art solution coater capable of handling aqueous or solvent based fluids with best available
environmental controls throughout the process. PET substrates are laminated to aluminum webs (spools) using
electron beam curing technology. This eliminates the need for environmental emissions from a drying process. We
utilize full converting capability, which provides high-speed slitting, spooling, formatting and final packaging. This
facility also manufactures the ABDick-branded DPM line of polyester platesetters and the Vector TX52, for which
we use a number of outside vendors who supply components and sub-assemblies that are integrated into completed
systems.

, :
Lasertel operates a 75,000-square-foot facility located in Tucson, Arizona. The facility includes 10,000 square feet
of clean room space, and complete process equipment for semiconductor laser manufacturing. Lasertel’s
manufacturing process begins with molecular beam epitaxy reactors to grow semiconductor laser wafers, and
extends through the final polishing techniques for the optical fiber. ,

The Precision facility located in South Hadley, Massachusetts consists of 100,000 square feet in two buildings, and
performs aluminum plate manufacturing including in-line graining, anodizing, silicating, and multiple layer
coatings. Raw aluminum is processed into lithographic printing plates for the conventional and digital markets.
Besides Presstek Anthem and Freedom products and Precision-branded plates, including Aurora, this facility
produces plates for a number of contract customers.

Our press products are manufactured under agreements with a press manufacturers located primarily in Japan. We
believe that there are other sources available to manufacture these products; however, if the supply of these presses
were to be delayed, or if import restrictions were imposed, our ability to ship products in a timely manner could be
adversely affected, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

We are dependent on third-party suppliers for critical components and our increased demand for these components
may strain the ability of our third-party suppliers to deliver such critical components in a timely manner. For
example, our requirements for advanced technology laser diodes for use in products’ incorporating our DI
technology have increased and are expected to further increase in the future. Although we have established our
subsidiary, Lasertel, to help us meet our demand for laser diodes, we are still dependent on other third-party
manufacturers to supply us with other necessary components. If we are unable for any reason to secure an
uninterrupted source of other critical components-at prices acceptable to us, our operanons could be materially
adversely affected."We cannot assure you that Lasertel will be able to manufacture advanced laser diodes in
quantities that will fulfill our future needs, or with manufacturing volumes or yields that will make our operations
cost-effective. Likewise, we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain alternative supplies for our laser
diodes or other critical components should our current supply channels prove inadequate.

Marketing, Distribution and Customer Support

Our sales strategy through 2005 was designed to emphasize the distribution of Presstek DI and CTP products and
the related consumables, as well as a full catalog of conventional products, to customers through our direct sales
force, independent graphic arts dealers and strategic OEM partnerships. The addition of our direct sales force has
greatly enhanced our marketing, distribution and service capablhtles and given us direct access to end-user ,
customers of our solutions and services.
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We employ multiple technologies to solve customer problems. We are developing many of these technologies
ourselves, and others we acquire through partnerships. We intend to deliver these solutions through multiple
channels, including a high performing value-added dealer network, our direct sales and sérvice force, and our
strategic OEM partners. We have an established worldwide distribution network through which we market and sell
DI presses, CTP equipment, thermal plate products as well as analog plates manufactured at Precision, and a full
catalog of conventional printing products. In addition, we have a worldwide service organization through which we
provide service to products manufactured by Presstek and third-party vendors. Our direct sales force represents our -
primary access to lead the analog-to-digital migration of our large installed customer base of smaller print
establishments. In addition to our direct sales force, our distribution network is supplemented with over 30
independent graphic arts dealers in 18 countries, including, in the United States, two national distributors, the
Pitman Company and xpedx Graphic Systems, and several regional dealers. We also market and sell our full
catalog of products through our Presstek.com Web site as well as shop.abdick.com, an established e-commerce-
portal for the printing industry.

In addition, we have OEM agreements or reseller relationships with Ryobi, KBA, Kodak and Heidelberg for direct
imaging presses and related consumables. These agreements permit the OEM resellers and their dealers to sell DI-
based equipment and consumable products under their own labels.

By using this direct and indirect approach to distribution, we have attempted to maximize the number of systems
using our technology that require Presstek consumables. We have developed an integrated service strategy, using
our own resources and those of third-party service providers, dedicated to servicing the products delivered through
our distribution network. We have positioned ourselves to capture revenue from conventional printing products as
the industry continues its migration to digital.

Market acceptance for any products incorporating our various technologies and proprietary know-how will require
substantial marketing efforts and the expenditure of significant sums, either by us, and/or our strategic and OEM

partners. There can be no assurance that any existing or new products will achieve market acceptance or become

commercially viable.

Strategic Relationships

Our business strategy is based in part on strategic alliances and relationships with leading companies in the printing
and graphic arts industry. This strategy includes licensing intellectual property; specialized product development
based on our proprietary technologies; the manufacturing of imaging systems for inclusion in other manufacturers’
products; the sale, distribution and marketing of our own consumables as well as consumables manufactured by
others; and the manufacturing of our patented thermal plate materials for use in Presstek’s and other manufacturers’
imaging hardware and printing presses.

In conjunction with Ryobi, an international supplier of printing presses headquartered in Japan, we developed an
A3 format size four-color DI sheet-fed press, which is marketed by Ryobi as the 3404DI. Incorporating our dual
plate cylinder concept, this press features our internal automated plate cylinder design, our ProFire Excel
technology, and our PearlDry spooled plates. The small format of this press is designed to appeal to small
commercial printers, digital printers, quick printers, in-plant printers, and copy centers looking to expand their
services with offset color printing. In addition, Ryobi provides a range of duplicators and 2- and 4-tower presses
sold under the ABDick brand. Ryobi has also designed for us the Presstek DI 52, which will be manufactured to
our specifications and plans. .

We also have strategic supply relationships with Kodak, Mitsubishi Imaging (MPM), Inc., which we call
Mitsubishi, and Agfa-Gevaert N.V., who we call Agfa. Presstek purchases certain plate material from each of these
companies that is imaged in some of our CTP solutions and in conventional printing applications.

We also developed a long-term relationship with Heidelberg, the world’s largest manufacturer of printing presses
and printing equipment, based in Germany. In August 2005, we extended our OEM consumables supply
agreements in the United Kingdom, Sweden, Germany and Switzerland with Heidelberg and with Heidelberg USA
to provide us with certain preferred supplier rights, which vary based on territory, time period and sales volume.
Under the terms of the OEM agreements, which include minimum volume commitments from Heidelberg and
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Heidelberg USA, we will manufacture and supply Heidelberg branded consumable plate products for the
Heidelberg Quickmaster DI press. Shipments to Heidelberg of the branded consumable product began in August
2003. The OEM consumables supply agreement between Presstek and Heidelberg USA is scheduled to terminate
on or about November 1, 2008. .

We also have other strategic relationships for the distribution of our proprietary plates and equipment with other
entities within the graphic arts industry.

We also have strategic relationships with the suppliers of our raw materials, including aluminum and rolled
polyester, which serve as the base of our plates.

We are pursuing other business relationships that we believe may result in broader use of our digital imaging and
printing plate technologies in existing as well as new applications. There can be no assurance, however, that any of
our products, or any products incorporating our technology, will be able to compete successfully in these markets.

Competition

We believe that our patented technologies, other intellectual property, thermal plate manufacturing facilities,
strategic alliances, worldwide distribution network and knowledge of the marketplace provide us with a competitive
advantage. However, several other companies address markets in which our products are used and have products
that are competitive to our patented direct imaging thermal plate technologies and related capabilities.

In the area of direct imaging and the short-run, on-demand market, potentially competitive companies use
electrophotographic technology, sometimes referréd to as xerography, as the basis of their product lines. These
companies include, among others, Canon Inc., Hewlett Packard Company, Kodak, and Xerox. These elec-
trophotographic imaging systems use either wet or dry toners to create one to four (or more) color images on paper
and typically offer resolutions of between 400 and 1200 dots per inch. These technologies are best suited for ultra-
short runs of less than 300 copies. :

Most of the major companies in the graphic arts industry have developed or are developing off-press CTP imaging
systems. Potential competitors in this area include, among others, Agfa, Kodak, DaiNippon Screen Mfg., Ltd., Fuji, -
and Heidelberg, combinations of these companies, and other smaller or lesser-known companies. Many of these
devices utilize printing plates that require a post-lmagmg photochemical developing step and/or other post
processing steps such as heat treatment.

We are beginning to see competition from printing plate companies that manufacture, or have the potential to
manufacture, digital thermal plates. Such companies include, among others, Agfa, Kodak, and Fuji Photo Film Co.,
Ltd., who we call Fuji. Of these competitors, Kodak is the only one that is also a strategic partner for digital
products.

Kodak is marketing a competitive plate product as an alternative to Presstek’s PearlDry for both the Ryobi and
Quickmaster DI platforms. These competitive plates could have an impact on the revenue generated by Presstek
under its agreements with Heidelberg and Ryobi. They could also lead to downward pricing pressure on our full
line of spooled consumable.products, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition. Presstek has initiated patent infringement action against.Fuji and Kodak
(formerly Creo) products in the Federal Republic of Germany and the United States, respectively.

Some of the graphic arts companies mentioned above have announced or released plates that eliminate the need for
post image chemical processing, including Agfa, Kodak and Fuji. We cannot currently estimate the impact these
competitive plates will have on our financial condition and results of operations.

Products incorporating our technologies can also be expected to face competition from products using conventional
methods of creating and printing plates and producing printed product. While these methods are considered to be .
more costly, less efficient and not as environmentally conscious as those we implement, they do offer their users
the ability to continue to employ their existing means of print and plate production. Companies offering these more
traditional means and methods are also refining these technologies to make them more acceptable to the market.’
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The broad portfolio of equipment, supplies, and service added to our portfolio through the acquisition of the
ABDick business has several competitors. In addition to those mentioned above, competitors include for Prepress:
Esko-Graphics, ECRM and RIPit; for Press: Ryobi, Hamada, Xerox, Canon, Ricoh and HP; for Service: GBC,
Kodak, Service On Demand and some independent providers; for Dealers: xpedx, Pitman and Enovation.

Lasertel’s products can also be expected to face competition from a number of companies marketing competitive
high-powered laser diode products such as Cohereat Inc. and JDS Uniphase Corporation.

Most of the companies marketing competitive products, or with the potential to do so, are well established have
substantially greater financial, marketing and distribution resources than Presstek and its subsidiaries, and have
established records in the development, sale and service of products. There can be no assurance that Presstek,
Lasertel, or Precision, or any of our products or any products incorporating our technology, will be able to compete
successfully in the future. :

While we believe we have strong intellectual property protection covering many of our technologies, there is no
assurance that the breadth or degree of such protection will be sufficient to prohibit or otherwise delay the
introduction of competitive products or technologies. The introduction of competitive products and technologies
may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Patents, Trademarks and Proprietary Rights

Our general policy has been to seek patent protection for those inventions and improvements likely to be
incorporated into our products and services or where proprietary rights will improve our competitive position. As of
December 31, 2005, our worldwide patent portfolio included over 550 patents. We believe these patents, which
expire from 2008 through 2027, are material in the aggregate to our business. We have applied for and are pursuing
applications for 14 additional U.S. patents and 32 foreign patents. We have registered, or applied to register, certain
trademarks in the U.S. and other countries, including Presstek, DI, Dimension, ProFire, Anthem, Applause and
PearlDry. We anticipate that we will apply for additional patents, trademarks, and copyrights, as deemed
appropriate. There can be no assurance as to the issuance of any such patents or trademarks or the breadth or
degree of protection that our patents, trademarks or copyrights may afford us.

In addition to the Pfessfek patents indicated, there is currently one U.S. patent assigned to Precision, which will
expire in 2017 and one active patent assigned to Lasertel, which will expire in 2012.

There is rapid technological development in the electronic image reproduction industries, resulting in extensive
patent filings and a rapid rate of issuance of new patents. Although we believe that our technology has been
independently developed, and that the products we market and propose to market will not infringe on the patents,
or violate other proprietary rights of others, it is possible that such infringement of existing or future patents or
violation of proprietary rights may occur. In such event, we may be required to modify. our design. or obtain a
third-party license. No assurance can be given that we will be able to do so in a timely manner, upon acceptable
terms and conditions, or at all. The failure to do any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our
business. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that we will have the financial or other resources necessary to .
successfully defend a patent infringement or proprietary rights violation action. Moreover, we may be unable, for
financial or other reasons, to enforce our rights under any of our patents. We have agréeements with several of our
strategic partners which require.us to indemnify the strategic partner from claims made by third parties against
Presstek’s intellectual property, and to defend the validity of the patents or otherwise ensure the technology’s
availability to the strategic partner. An indemnification claim under any such agreement could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. ‘ '

In September 2003, we filed an action against Fuji Photo Film Corporation, Ltd., in the District Court of
Mannheim, Germany for patent infringement. In this action, we allege that Fuji has manufactured and distributed a
product that violates a Presstek European Patent. We are seeking an order from the court that Fuji refrain from
offering the infringing product for sale, from using the infringing material or introducing it for the named purposes,
and from possessing such infringing material. A trial on the matter was held in November 2004, and we await a
final determination from the Court. '
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In February 2005, we filed an action- against Creo in the U.S. District for the District of New Hampshire for patent
infringement. In this action, we allege that Creo has manufactured and distributed a product that violates a Presstek
U.S. Patent. We are seeking an order from the court holding that Creo has infringed the patent, permanently
enjoining Creo from infringing, inducing others to-infringe or contributing to the infringement of the Patent, and
seeking damages from Creo for the infringement. '

We intend to rely on proprietary know-how -and to’employ various methods to. protect our source code, concepts,
trade secrets, ideas and documentation of our proprietary software and laser diode technology. However, such
methods may not afford complete protection and there can be no assurance that others will not independently
develop such know-how or obtain access to our know-how, software codes, concepts, trade secrets, ideas, and
documentation. Although we have and expect to have confidentiality agreements with our employees and
appropriate vendors, there can be no assurance, however, that such arrangements will adequately protect our trade
secrets and proprietary know-how.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses related to our continued development of products incorporating DI and CTP

technologies, including our semiconductor laser diodes, were $7.3 million, $6.5 million and $7.1 miilion in fiscal

2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively. These research and development expenditures are primarily related
to the Presstek segment. ' :

Backlog v ;

At Febrdgry 25, 2006, we had a backlog of products under contract aggregating approximately $12.1 million, of
which the Company expects to ship substantially all in 2006. This amount compares to a consolidated backlog of
approximately $18.6 million at February 25, 2005.

Employees

At December 31, 2005, we had 971 employees worldwide. Of these, 43 are engaged primarily in engineering,
research and development; 220 are engaged in sales and marketing, 388 are engaged in service and customer
support, 216 are engaged primarily in manufacturing, manufacturing engineering and quality control; and 104 are
engaged primarily in corporate management, administration and finance. None of our employees is represented by a
labor union. We consider the relationship with our employees to be very good.

Investor Information

Financial and other information about us is available on our website, www.presstek.com. We make available, free of
charge on our website, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange
Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC.

Glossary

Set forth below is a glossafy of certain terms used in this report:

Al (8-page) .......c. il a printing term referring to a standard paper size capable of printing
eight:8.5” x 117 pages on a sheet of paper

A2 (4page) ... a printing term referring to a standard paper size capable of printing
four 8.5 x 117 pages on a sheet of paper

A3/B3 (2page) ...t a printing term referring to a standard paper size capable of printing two
8.5 'x 11” pages on a sheet of paper

Ablation ................... PR a controlled detachment/vaporization caused by a thermal event, this
process is used during the imaging of Presstek’s PEARL and Anthem

consumables
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Anthem............ e Presstek’s line of wet offset digital plates with a unique polymer-
- ' ceramic construction
Applause........... ... ... ..l ... Presstek’s process-free Wet offset digital plate
Computer-to-plate (CTP)...... e "a general term referring to the exposure of lithographic plate material

from a digital database, off-press

Direct Imaging DI . ................ Presstek's registered trademark for digital imaging systems that allow
image carriers (film and plates) to be imaged from a digital database, on
and off-press

Dots perinch (dpi) ................. a measurement of the resolving power or the addressability of an
: : -imaging device -

Heidelberg ..................... ... Heidelberger Druckmaschinen AG, one of the world’s largest printing
. press manufacturers, headquartered in Heidelberg, Germany
Infrared . ........................ .. light lying outside of the visible spectrum beyond its red-end,
characterized by longer wavelengths; used in our thermal imaging
process
KBA .............. P _ Koenig & Bauer, AG, one of the world’s largest printing press

manufacturers, headquartered in Wurzburg, Germany

Kodak .................. . Eastman Kodak Company, a leading supplier of digital, conventional and
business solutions for the graphic arts industry, headquartered in
Rochester, Ncw York

Lithography. .......... PR printing from a.single plane surface under the principle that the image
area carries ink and the non-image area does not, and that ink and water
do not mix ' '

Off-press............... e making a printing plate from either an analog or digital source

- independent of the press on which it will be used

On-press . .....ovvviieviniennennnn. the use of Presstek’s direct imaging technologies to make a plate
directly from a digital file on the press

PEARL ........... ... ... ... the name associated with Presstek’s first generation laser imaging
technologies and related products and consumables

ProFire and ProFire Excel imaging the Presstek components required to convert a conventional printing
SYSEMS .. ... press into a direct imaging press, including laser diode arrays,
computers, electronics

Dimension ........................ v Presstek’s product line of CTP off-press platemaking equipment
Platemaking ....................... the process of applying a printable image to a prinﬁng plate
Prepress .......... .. ... ..l graphic arts operations and methodologies that occur prior to the

printing process; typically these include photography, ‘scanning, image
assembly, color correction, exposure of image carriers (film and/or
plate), proofing and processing

Quickmaster DI ................. ... the second generation of direct imaging, waterless presses, highly
automated with roll-fed PearlDry Plus plate material, a joint develop-
-ment effort between Heidelberg and Presstek

Ryobi ... it Ryobi Limited of Japan, a printing press manufacturer headquartered in
Japan .
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Ryobi 3404DI ............. P an A3 format size four-color sheet-fed press, incorporating Presstek’s.

dual plate cylinder concept and PearlDry Plus spooled plates, a joint
development effort between Ryobi and Presstek

Semiconductor laser diode ........... a high-powered, infrared imaging technology employed in the DI
imaging systems
Short-run markets/printing ........... a graph'_ic arts classification used to denote an emerging trend for lower
' print quantities '
Thermal ............ . ... ... a method of digitally exposing a material via the heat generated from a
laser beam
: -
Vacuum deposition process ........... a technology to accurately, uniformly coat substrates in a controlled
environment ‘ ,
Waterless ................ e a lithographic printing method that uses dry offset printing plates and

inks and does not require a dampening system

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Certain statements contained in this Annual Repoft on Form 10-K constitute “forward-looking statements” within
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1993, including statements regarding the following:

our expectations for our financial and operating performance in 2006 and beyond;
the adequacy of intefnal cash and workingicapital for our operations;

our ability to supply sufficient product for 'anticipated demand and production delays associated with such
demand; ! '

availability of component materials;

management’s plans and goals with regard to our shipping and production capabilities, including the
adequacy of our facilities for present and eéxpected future operations;

the availability of alternative suppliers and;manufacturers;

manufacturing constraints or difficulties; |

the introduction of competitive products in:to the marketplace;

management’s plans and goals for our subisidiaries;

the ability of our subsidiaries to generate positive cash flows in the near-term;

our subsidiaries’ ability to produce commercially competitive products;

the strength of our various strategic partnérships both on manufacturing and distribution;
our ability to secure other strategic alliances and relationships;

our expectations regarding our strategy for growth, including statements regarding our expectations for
continued product mix improvement; ;

our expectations regarding the balance, independence and control of our business;
the resulting and expected effects and benefits from our transformation efforts;

our expectations regarding the strength and improvement of our fundamentals, including management of our
financial controls;

our expectations relating to the Heidelberg overstock position;
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* our expectations and plans regarding market penetration, including the strength and scope of our distribution
channels and our expectations regarding sales of DI presses or CTP devices;

* the expansion of our products and technology;

¢ the status of our technology leadership in our markef/industry;

* the commercralrzatron and marketing of our technology,

¢ our expectations regarding the sale of our products and use of our technology;

* our current plans for product development and the expected market acceptance of recently introduced
products and the likely acceptance of planned future products;

¢ the expected growth in market share;

¢ the effects, market acceptance or pricing of competitive products, including the possibility of a competitive
plate product being introduced by a strategic partner;

¢ the placement of orders for direct imaging kits;
* our expectations regarding reductions in warranty costs;
¢ statements regarding the profitability of process-free CTP;

¢ the adequacy of our intellectual property protections and our ability to protect and enforce our intellectual
property rights; and -

¢ the expected effect of adopting recently issued accounting standards, among others.

Such forward-looking statements involve a number of known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors
which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors that could
cause or contribute to such differences include those discussed below, as well as those discussed elsewhere in this
report The words “looking forward,” “looking ahead,” “‘believe(s),” “‘should,” “plan,” “expect(s),” “project(s),”

“anticipate(s),” “may,” “likely,” “potential,” “opportunity” and similar expressions identify forward-looking
statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak
only as of the date, the statements were made and readers are advised to consider such forward-looking statements
in light of the risks set forth below. Presstek undertakes no obhgatron to update any forward-looking statements
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. .

We are substantially dependent on our strategic alliance, as well as our manufacturing and distribution
relationships to develop and grow our business. The loss or failure of one or more of our strategic partners
could significantly harm our business.

Our business strategy to date has included entering into strategic alliances with major companies in the graphic arts
industry and other markets. The implementation of this strategy has included, among other things, licensing our
intellectual property, developing specialized products based on our proprietary technologies and manufacturing
imaging systems for inclusion in other manufacturers’ products. Our strategy has also involved identifying strategic
manufacturing and distribution partners to aid in developing new market channels for our products. This strategy
led to the development of our relationship with our strategic partners. We are dependent on many of these partners
for future sales of both existing and planned products. This means that the timetable for finalizing development,
commercialization and distribution of both existing and planned products is dependent upon the needs and
circumstances of our strategic partners. We have experienced and will continue to experience technical difficulties
from time to time, which may prevent us from meeting certain production and distribution targets. Any delay in
meeting production and distribution targets with our strategic partners may harm our relationships with them and
may cause them to terminate their relationship with us. Our strategic partners may not develop markets for our
products at the pace or in the manner we expect, which may have an adverse effect on our business. They may also
terminate their relationships with us for circumstances beyond our control, including factors unique to their
businesses or their business decisions. In addition, we may mutually agree with one or more of our partners to
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terminate our relationship with them for a variety of reasons. We cannot assure you that the termination of any of
our other relationships with our strategic partners will not have an adverse impact on our business in the future.

We are also unable to control factors related to the businesses of our strategic partners. There can be no assurance
that similar events will not occur with our other strategic partners.

Though we take precautions designed to achieve success, given the uncertainties surrounding many of our strategic
partners, there can be no assurance that our existing strategic relationships will prove successful. There can also be
no assurance that our existing relationships with any of our other strategic, manufacturing or distribution partners
will be successful. The loss of principal customers or strategic partners could have a materially adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

While we continue to explore possibilities for additional strategic relationships and alliances, there can be no
assurance we will be successful in this regard. Our failure to develop new relationships and alhances could have a
significant adverse effect on our business. -

The acquisition of the ABDick business may affect our relationship with our third-party distribution and service
partners, which may negatively impact our sales and distribution channels.

Prior to the addition of the ABDick business, distribution and service of our CTP products was performed by our
third-party partners, including Pitman and xpedex and a series of mdependent dealers. Additionally, the distribution
and service of our DI products were provided by OEM and other third party partners.- With the addition of
ABDick, we utilize our newly-acquired distribution and service organization as a new channel through which to sell
and service Presstek products, as a supplement to our existing distribution network. At this time, we are not aware
of any conflicts between our existing channel and/or OEM partners associated with the initiation of this channel.
However, there can be no guarantees that the establishment of this new distribution channel will not cause conflict
with our existing distribution and-OEM partners, which could have an adverse effect on our relationship with our
distribution and/or OEM partners, which could resyilt in our sales being negatively affected.

If we are unable to manage acquisitions successfully it could harm our financial results, business and prospects.

The operations of Presstek have substantially changed over the last eighteen months as a result of the additions of
Precision and the ABDick business. As part of our. business strategy, over the next few years, we may further
expand our business through the acquisition of complementary businesses worldwide. Though we would not
undertake an acquisition that would knowingly be problematic, we cannot assure you that we will be able
successfully to integrate any future acquisitions, Wthh could adversely 1mpact our long-term competitiveness and
profitability.

Any future acquisitions will involve a number of risks that could harm our financial condition, results of operations
and competitive position. In particular:

¢ The integration process could disrupt the activities of the businesses that are being combined. The
combination of the businesses or plants may require, among other things, coordination of administrative and
other functions and consolidation of production capacity. Plant consolidation may strain our ability to
deliver products of acceptable quality in a timely manner from consolidated facilities. We may experience
attrition among the skilled labor force at the companies acquired in reaction to being acquired and in
reaction to our consolidation of plants. '

* The execution of our integration plans may divert the attention of our management from operating our
existing business.

* We may assume known and unanticipated liabilities and contingencies.

* Future acquisitions could cause a reduction-of our reported earnings because of the use of capital, the
issuance of additional securities or debt, increased interest expense, goodwill write-offs and an increased
income tax rate.
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With respect to our strategic plan to grow, in part, through acquisitions, we cannot assure you that we will be-able
to identify suitable acquisitions at acceptable prices or that we will have access to sufficient capital to take
advantage of desirable acquisitions. We cannot assure you that our future acquisitions will have revenues, profits or
productivity comparable to those of our past acquisitions. Future acquisitions may require substantial capital.
Although we expect to use borrowings under our senior credit facility to pursue these opportunities, we cannot
assure you that such borrowings will be available in sufficient amounts or that other financing will be available in
amounts and on terms that we deem acceptable. Our financial performance and the condition of the capital markets
will affect the value of our common stock, which could make it a less attractive form of consideration for making
acquisitions.

Our lengthy and variable sales cycle makes it difficult for us to predtct when or if sales will occur and therefore
we may experience an unplanned shortfall in revenues.

Many of our products have a lengthy and unpredictable sales cycle that contributes to the uncertainty of our
operating results. Customers view the purchase of our products as a significant capital outlay and, therefore, a
strategic decision. As a result, customers generally evaluate these products and determine their impact on existing
infrastructure over a lengthy period of time. Our sales cycle has historically ranged from approximately one to six
months based on the customer’s need to rapidly implement a solution and whether the customer is new or is ’
extending an existing implementation. The sale of our products may be subject to delays if the customer has
lengthy internal budgeting, approval and evaluation processes. We may incur significant selling and marketing
expenses during a customer’s evaluation period. Larger customers may purchase our products as part of multiple
simultaneous purchasing decisions, which may result in additional unplanned administrative processing and other
delays in the recognition of our revenues. If revenues forecasted from a specific customer for a particular quarter
are not realized or are delayed to another quarter, we may experience an unplanned shortfall in revenues, whxch
could have a matenal adverse effect on our busmess results of operanon and financial condition.

We may not be able to increase revenues if we do not expand our sales and distribution’ channels.

We will need to expand our global sales operations in order to increase market awareness and acceptance of our
line of products and generate increased revenues. We market and distribute our products indirectly through our
global partner and distributor network and directly in Europe through our Presstek Europe subsidiary. We believe
that our future success is dependent upon expansion of global distribution channels. We cannot be certain that we .
will be able to maintain our current relationships or establish new relationships with additional distribution partners
on a timely basis, or at all. We plan to utilize our newly- acquired distribution and service organization as a new
channel through which to sell and service our products, as a supplement to our existing distribution network. At
this time, we are not aware of any conﬂlcts between our existing channel and/or OEM partners associated with the
initiation of this channel. However, there can be no guarantees that the establishment of this new distribution .
channel will not cause conflict with our existing distribution and OEM partners, which could have an adverse effect
on our relationship with our distribution and/or OEM partners, which could result in our sales being negatively
affected.

In March 2003, we expanded our product offerings to select dealers in our European distribution channel to include
the sale of Quickmaster DI consumables. In connection with this offering, we reduced pricing on our full line of
spooled consumables distributed through this distribution channel by up to 20%. While the expected lost revenue
resulting from the price reduction may be offset by increased revenue from increased volume of spooled
consumable sales derived from additional presses installed and increased usage of spooled consumables, there can
be no assurance that the expected lost revenue will be offset. In addition, market conditions may require us to
expand the regions in which we offer reduced prices, or to further reduce our spooled consumable prices, which
could further reduce our revenues in 2005 and beyond. Though this has not had a material adverse effect on our
business, this could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial position.

Our growth strategy may include licenses or acquisitions of technologies or businesses, which entail a number
of risks.
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As part of our strategy to grow our business, we may pursue licenses of technologies from third parties or
acquisitions of complementary products lines or companies, and such transactions entail a number of risks. We may
expend significant costs in investigating and pursuing such transactions, and such transactions may not be
consummated. If such transactions are consummated, we may not be successful in integrating the acquired
technology or business into our existing business to achieve the desired synergies. Integrating acquired technologies
or businesses may also require a substantial commitment of our management’s time and attention. We may expend
significant funds to acquire such technologies or businesses, and we may incur unforeseen liabilities in connection
with any acquisition of a technology or business. Any of the foregoing risks could result in a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial conditions. ,

We face risks associated with our efforts to expand into international market and such risks could result in
diversion of our management’s attention from our existing business and/or cause us to incur additional expected
and unexpected costs associated with penetrating, operating in and servicing such markets, any of which could
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We intend to expand our global sales operations and enter additional international markets, which will require
significant management attention and financial resources. International sales are subject to a variety of risks,
including difficulties in establishing and managing international distribution channels, in serving and supporting
products sold outside the United States and in translating products and related materials into foreign languages.
International operations are also subject to difficulties in collecting accounts receivable, staffing and managing
personnel and enforcing intellectual property rights. Other factors that can adversely affect international operations
include fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies and currency exchange rates, changes in import/export duties
and quotas, introduction of tariff or non-tariff barriers and economic or political changes in international markets. If
our international sales increase, our revenues may, also be affected to a greater extent by seasonal fluctuations.
resulting from lower levels of sales that typically occur during the summer months in Europe and other parts of the
world. There can be no assurance that these factors will not have a material adverse effect on our future
international sales and, consequently, on our business, resuits of operations and ﬁnancial condition.

We have experienced losses in the past, could incur substantial losses in the Sfuture, and may not be able to
maintain profitability. ‘

We have incurred substantial net losses from continuing operations in two of the past five fiscal years. At
December 31, 2005 we had an accumulated deficit of $7.9 miilion. We may need to generate significant increases
in revenues to maintain profitability, and we may not be able to do so. If our revenues grow more slowly than we
anticipate, or if our operating expenses increase more than we expect or cannot be reduced in the event of lower
revenues, our business will be materially adversely affected. Even if we maintain profitability in the future on a
quarterly or annual basis, we may not be able to sustain or increase such profitability year to year. Failure to
sustain profitability may adversely affect the market price of our common stock and could have a materially
adverse impact on the value of an investment in us.

Our quarterly revenues and operating results are likely to fluctuate significantly.

Our quarterly revenues and operating results are sometimes difficult to predict, have varied in the past, and are
likely to fluctuate significantly in the future. We typically realize a significant percentage of our revenues for a
fiscal quarter in the third month of the quarter. Accordingly, our quarterly results may be difficult to predict prior
to the end of the quarter. Any inability to obtain sufficient orders or to fulfill shipments in the period immediately
preceding the end of any particular quarter may cause the results for that quarter to fail to meet our revenue targets.
In addition, we base our current and future expense levels in part on our estimates of future revenues. Our expenses
are largely fixed in the short-term and we may not be able to adjust our spending quickly if our revenues fall short
of our expectations. Accordingly, a revenue shortfall in a particular quarter would have an adverse effect on our
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operating results for that quarter. In addition, our quarterly operatmg results may fluctuate for many reasons,
including, without limitation:

* along and unpredictable sales cycle;
¢ changes in demand for our products and consumables, including seasonal differences; and

* changes in the mix of our products and consumables.

We are dependent on third party suppliers for critical components and our inability to maintain an adequate
supply of advanced laser diodes and other critical components could adversely affect us.

We are dependent on third-party suppliers for critical components and our increased demand for these components
may strain the ability of our third-party suppliers to deliver such critical components in a timely manner. For
example, our requirement for advanced technology laser diodes for use in products incorporating our DI technology
has increased and is expected to further increase in the future. Although we have established our subsidiary,
Lasertel, to help us meet our demand for laser diodes, we are still dependent on other third-party manufacturers to
supply us with other necessary components. If we are unable for any reason to secure an uninterrupted source of
other critical components at prices acceptable to us, our operations could be materially adversely affected. We
cannot assure you that Lasertel will be able to manufacture advanced laser diodes in quantities that will fulfill our
future needs, or with manufacturing volumes or yields that will make our operation cost effective. Likewise, we
cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain alternative suppliers for our laser diodes or other crmcal
components should our current supply channels prove inadequate.

Our manufacturing capabilities may be insufficient to meet the demand Jor our products.

If demand for our products grows beyond our expectations, our current manufacturing capabilities may be
insufficient to meet this demand, resulting in production delays and a failure to deliver products in a timely fashion.
We may be forced to seek alternative manufacturers for our products. There can be no assurance that we will
successfully be able to do so. As we introduce new products, we may face production and manufacturing delays
due to technical and other unforeseen problems. Any manufacturing delay could have an adverse effect on our
business, the success of any product affected by the delay, and our revenue, and may harm our relationships with
our strategic partners.

Recently introduced products that incorporate our technology may not be commercially sucéessful and may not
gain market acceptance.

Achieving market acceptance for any products incorporating our technology requires substantial marketing and
distribution efforts and expenditure of significant sums of money and allocation of significant resources, either by
us, our strategic partners or both. We may not have sufficient resources to do so. Additionally, there can be no
assurance that products introduced by our strategic partners, such as the 46 Karat DI presses, and the Kodak DI
presses, or our product offerings such as our Anthem plates, and Dimension 400 and Dimension 800 platesetters, -
will achieve widespread market acceptance or that any of our other current products or any future products that we
may develop or any future products produced by others that incorporate our technologies will achieve market
acceptance or become commercially successful. We recently announced the commercial release of our new
Applause plate. There can be no assurance that this plate, or our other products, will achieve market acceptance. If
our new product offerings do not achieve anticipated market acceptance, we may not achieve anticipated revenue.

Recently introduced products that incorporate our technology may result in substantial support costs and
warranty expenditures.

Introducing new products carries substantial risk. While we do extensive testing on our new products before
introducing them to our customers, no amount of testing can replace or approximate actual field conditions at our
customer locations. As a result, when we introduce new products we can incur increased expenditures in ensuring
that the new product meets and performs in accordance with its specifications. We cannot, however, always
estimate precisely the expected costs that may arise out of new product installations. There can be no assurance
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that we will not incur increased warranty, support and other costs associated with new product introductions in the .
future. In addition, the occurrence of these expenditures may have a material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

If the United States and global economies slow down, the demand for our products could decrease and our
revenue may be materially adversely affected.

The demand for our products is dependent upon various factors, many of which are beyond our control. For
example, general economic conditions affect or delay the overall capital spending by businesses and corisumers,
particularly for capital equipment such as presses.' An economic slowdown in the U.S. and abroad could result in a
decrease in spending and spending projections on capital equipment that could impact the demand for our products.
If, as a result of general economic uncertainty or otherwise, companies reduce their product spending levels, such a
decrease in spending could substantially reduce demand for our products, substantially harm our business, and have
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able fo accurately report our
financial results or prevent fraud. As a result, investors may lose confidence in our financial reporting and the
price of our common stock may be negatively affected.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires that we report annually on the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting. Among other things, we must perform systems and processes evaluation and testing. We must
also conduct an assessment of our internal controls.to allow management to report on, and our independent '
registered public accounting firm to attest to, our assessment of our internal control over financial reporting, as
required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In connection with the assessment of our internal control over
financial reporting for this Annual Report on Form 10-K, while no material weaknesses were identified,
insignificant deficiencies in areas of our internal controls which need improvement were discovered. In addition, in
the future, our continued assessment, or the subsequent assessment by our independent registered public accounting
firm, may reveal additional deficiencies in our internal controls, some of which require disclosure in future reports.

Disclosures of material weaknesses could cause investors to lose confidence in our financial reporting and may
negatively affect the price of our common stock. Moreover, effective internal controls are necessary to produce
reliable financial reports and to prevent fraud. If we have deficiencies in our internal controls over financial
reporting, it may negatively impact our business and operations.

The expansion of Lasertel into areas other than the production of laser diodes for our printing business may be
unsuccessful. C

Lasertel, which was formed for the purpose of supplying us with laser diodes, has also explored other markets for
its laser technology. These efforts to develop other markets were scaled back, in part, in June 2001, as we
announced a repositioning of Lasertel in order to reduce its costs and focus its efforts on supplying us with high
quality laser diodes. While the plans to market its laser products to the telecommunications industry were delayed,
Lasertel has developed laser products for the defense industry and has continued its plans to develop laser
prototypes for qualification in the defense and industrial industries. There can be no assurance that these products
or prototypes will gain acceptance in these industries and likewise, there can be no assurance that these products
will be commercially successful. Our executive team has limited experience in the telecommunications, defense and
industrial industries and there can be no assurance that Lasertel will be able to successfully exploit any
opportunities that may arise.

The failure of Lasertel to develop, commercialize or sell its products or future products to various other industries
could distract its management’s attention and/or, have an adverse impact on its financial condition or results of
operations, any of which could materially adversely affect our financial condition. Conversely, any success that
Lasertel achieves in developing, commercializing or selling its products or future products to various other
industries could cause delays in manufacturing of the laser diodes that it supplies to us, which could harm our
business and could have an. adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.
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Lasertel may require additional workmg capital infusions from us, which may have a material adverse effect on
our business.

Lasertel has required and may continue to require a significant amount of capital investment by Presstek in order to
fund its operations. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, Lasertel recorded a net loss of $6.8 million.
Lasertel continues to need us to advance cash and resources in order to ensure its continued operation. Lasertel has
only had sales to a limited number of third parties to date, and any loss of such customers or s'igniﬁcant reduction
in their purchases from Lasertel could increase its reliance upon us for capital and resources. Lasertel’s capital and
working capital needs may exceed our ability to provide such funds, requiring us to borrow against our credit
facilities or seek to obtain outside financing for Lasertel’s operations. ThlS could have a material ‘adverse effect on
our business, results of operatlons and financial condltlon

Qur success is dependent on our ability fo maintain and protect our pfoprietdry rights.

Our future success will depend, in large part, upon our intellectual property rights, including patents, trademarks,
trade secrets, proprietary know-how, source codes and continuing technological innovation. We have been issued a
number of U.S. and foreign patents and we intend to register for additional patents where we deem appropriate. We
also hold seven registered trademarks and we may register additional trademarks where we deem appropriate. There
can be no assurance, however, as to the issuance of any additional patents or trademarks or the breadth or degree
of protection that our patents, trademarks or other intellectual property may afford us. The steps we have taken to
protect our intellectual property may not adequately prevent misappropriation or ensure that others will not develop
competitive technologies or products. Further, the laws of certain territories in which our products are or may be
developed, manufactured or sold, may not protect our products and intellectual property rights to the same extent as
the laws of the United States.

There is rapid technological development in the electronic image reproduction industry, resulting in extensive patent
filings and a rapid rate of issuance of new patents. Although we believe that our technology has been independently
developed and that the products we market do not infringe the patents or violate the proprietary rights of others, it
is possible that such infringement of existing or future patents or violation of proprietary rights may occur. In this
regard, third parties may in the future assert claims against us concerning our existing products or with respect to
future products under development by us. In such event, we may be required to modify our product designs or
obtain a license. No assurance can be given that we would be able to do so in a timely manner, upon acceptable
terms and conditions or even at all. The failure to do any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition. Furthermore, we have agreements with several of our
strategic partners which require us to indemnify the strategic partner from claims made by third parties against
them concerning our intellectual property, and to defend the validity of the patents or otherwise ensure the
technology’s availability to the strategic partner. The costs of an indemnification claim under any such agreement
could have a material adverse effect on our business.

In March 2003, Presstek filed an action against Creo, Inc., in the United States District Court for the District of
New Hampshire for patent infringement. In this action, Presstek alleges that Creo has distributed a product that
violates a Presstek U.S. patent. Presstek seeks an order from the court that Creo refrain from offering the infringing
product for sale, from using the infringing material or introducing it for the named purposes, and from possessing
such infringing material, as well as for the payment of damages associated with the part infringement.

In September 2003, Presstek filed an action against Fuji Photo Film Corporation, Ltd., in the District Court of
Mannheim, Germany for patent infringement. In this action, Presstek alleges that Fuji has manufactured and
distributed a product that violates Presstek European Patent 0 644 047 registered under number DE 694 17 129
with the German Patent and Trademark Office. Presstek seeks an order from the court that Fuji refrain from
offering the infringing product for sale, from using the infringing material or introducing it for the named purposes,
and from possessing such infringing material.

We may take legal action to determine the validity and scope of third party rights or to defend against any
allegations of infringement. In the course of pursuing or defending any of these actions we could incur significant
costs and diversion of our resources. Due to the competitive nature of our industry, it is unlikely that we could
increase our product prices to cover such costs. There can be no assurance that we will have the financial or other
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resources necessary to successfully defend a patent infringement or proprietary rights violation action. Moreover,
we may be unable, for financial or other reasons, to enforce our rights under any patents we may own. As an
example of the cost and uncertainty of patent litigation, in August 1999 Creo filed an action in the United States
District Court for the District of Delaware against us seeking a declaration that Creo’s products do not and will not
infringe any valid and enforceable claims of any of our patents in question. We counterclaimed against Creo for
patent infringement of certain of our patents. The matter went to trial in June 2001, and in September 2001, the
court affirmed the validity and enforceability of our on-press imaging patents, but held that the current Creo DOP
System did not infringe on our patents. Creo appealed the court’s decision that our patents were valid and
enforceable, and we cross-appealed the finding of non-infringement by the current Creo DOP System. On
September 17, 2002, the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit affirmed the lower court’s decision
that our patents are valid and enforceable, but that they are not infringed by the current Creo DOP System. We
incurred higher than expected legal expenses in fiscal 2002 and 2001 due to this litigation. Any similar litigation in
the future is expected to be costly, yield uncertain results and could have a material effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

We also rely on proprietary know-how and employ various methods to protect the source codes, concepts, trade
secrets, ideas and documentation relating to our proprietary software and laser diode technology. However, such
methods may not afford complete protection and there can be no assurance that others will not independently
develop such know-how or obtain access to our know-how or software codes, concepts, trade secrets, ideas and
documentation. Although we have and expect to have confidentiality agreements with our employees and
appropriate vendors, there can be no assurance, however, that such arrangements will adequately protect our trade
secrets and proprietary know-how.

We face substantial competition in the sale of our products.

We compete with manufacturers of conventional presses and products utilizing existing plate-making technology, as
well as presses and other products utilizing new technologies, including other types of direct-to-plate solutions such
as companies that employ electrophotography as their imaging technology. Canon Inc., Hewlett Packard Company, -
Kodak and Xerox Corporation are companies that have introduced color electrophotographic copier products.
Various companies are marketing product. versions manufactured by these companies.

We are also aware that there is a trend in the graphic arts industry to create stand-alone computer-to-plate imaging
devices for single and multi-color applications. Most of the major corporations in the graphic arts industry have
developed and/or are developing and marketing off press computer-to-plate imaging systems. To date, devices
manufactured by our competitors, for the most part; utilize printing plates that require a post imaging
photochemical developing step, and in some cases, also require a heating process. Potential competitors in this area
include, among others, Agfa Gevaert N.V., Dai Nippon Screen Manufacturing Ltd., Heidelberg and Kodak.

We also anticipate competition from plate manufacturing companies that manufacture printing plates, or have the
potential to manufacture digital thermal plates. These companies include Agfa Gevaert N.V., Kodak and Fuji Photo
Film Co., Ltd. Heidelberg is marketing a competitive plate product as an alternative to Presstek’s PEARLdry for
the Quickmaster DI. The introduction of a competitive plate could reduce the revenue generated by Presstek under
its relationship with Heidelberg, and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Products incorporating our technologies can also be expected to face competition from conventional methods of
printing and creating printing plates. Most of the companies marketing competitive products, or with the potential
to do so, are well established, have substantially :greater financial, marketing and distribution resources than us and
have established reputations for success in the development, sale and service of products. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to compete successfully in the future. '

While we believe we have strong intellectual property protection covering many of our technologies, there is no
assurance that the breadth or degree of such protection will be sufficient to prohibit or otherwise delay the
introduction of competitive products or technologies. The introduction of competitive products and technologies -
may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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We may not be able to adequately respond to changes in technology affecting the printing industry.

Our continuing product development efforts have focused on refining and improving the performance of our .
PEARL and DI technology and our consumables and we anticipate that we will continue to focus such efforts. The
printing and publishing industry has been characterized in recent years by rapid and significant technological
changes and frequent new product introductions. Current competitors or new market entrants could introduce new
or enhanced products with features, which render our technologies, or products incorporating our technologies,
obsolete or less marketable. Our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to:

* use leading technologies effectively;
* continue to develop our technical expertise and patented position;
* enhance our current products and develop new products that meet changing customer needs;

* time new product introductions in a way that minimizes the impact of customers delaying purchases of
existing products in anticipation of new product releases; ‘

« adjust the prices of our existing products to increase customer demand;

¢ successfully advertise and market our products; and
* influence and respond to emerging industry standards and other technological changes.

We must respond to changing technology and industry standards in a timely and cost-effective manner. We may not
be successful in effectively using new technologies, developing new products or enhancing our existing products
and technology on a timely basis. Our new technologies or enhancements may not achieve market acceptance. Our
pursuit of new technologies may require substantial time and expense. We may need to license new technologies to
respond to technological change. These licenses may not be available to us on terms that we can accept. Finally,
we may not succeed in adapting our products to new technologies as they emerge.

Ongoing litigation could have an adverse impact on our business.
From time to time in the ordinary course of our business, we may be subject to lawsuits.

In August 2003, the Company was served with a purported securities class action lawsuit filed on June 2, 2003 in
the United States District Court for the District of New Hampshire against the Company and two of its former
officers. This lawsuit was dismissed by the court on October 4, 2004. However, the plaintiffs in the case have
appealed the court’s dismissal on November 4, 2004. On January 27, 2005, the plaintiffs of this matter withdrew
their appeal and the matter was permanently closed in Presstek’s favor. While the foregoing suit was resolved in
favor of Presstek, an unfavorable outcome in connection with a future lawsuit could have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Presstek is party to other litigation that it considers routine and incidental to its business; however, it does not
expect the results of any of these actions to have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operation or
financial condition.

The loss or unavailability of our key personnel would have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our success is largely dependent on the personal efforts of our senior management team. We have recently entered
into three-year employment agreements with Ed Marino, our President and Chief Executive Officer, Moosa E.
Moosa, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Michael McCarthy, our Senior Vice President,
and Peter Bouchard, our Vice President of Marketing. The loss or interruption of the services of any or all of
Messrs. Marino, Moosa, McCarthy or Bouchard could have an adverse effect on our business and prospects.

Our success is also be dependent on our ability to hire and retain additional qualified engineering, technical, sales,
marketing and other personnel. Competition. for qualified personnel in our industry can be intense, and there can be
no assurance that we will be able to hire or retain additional qualified personnel.

27




Our stock price has been and could continue to be extremely volatile.

The market price of our common stock has been subject to significant fluctuations. The securities markets, and the
Nasdag National Market in particular, have experienced, and are likely to experience in the future, significant price
and volume fluctuations that could adversely affect the market price of our common stock without regard to our
operating performance. In addition, the trading price of our common stock could be subject to significant
fluctuations in response to: :

* actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly operating results;
¢ significant announcements by us or other industry participants;
* changes in national or regional economic conditions;

¢ changes in securities analysts’ estimates for us, our competitors or our industry, or our failure to meet
analysts’ expectations; and ‘

» general market conditions.

These factors may materially and adversely affect: our stock price, regardless of our operating performance.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments '

None.
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Ttem 2. Properties

The following table summarizes our significant occupied properties:

- Square footage o Ownership status/
Location . : Functions .. ({(approximate) - : . lease expiration
Hudson, New Hampshire Corporate headquarters, 165,000 ~ Owned
" manufacturing, research and
development, marketing,
demonstration activities,
- administrative and customer
_— © . support. .
South Hadley, - Manufacturing, research © 100,000 Owned
Massachusetts ) . and development, -
(two buildings) administrative support .
Tucson, Arizona Manufacturing, research 75,000 Owned
and development, -
administrative supports
Des Plaines, Illinois o Distribution center : 127,060 - Lease expires in February
' 2008
Des Plaines, Illinois Sales, service 10,000 Lease expires in QOctober
: : g : ©2007
Fresno, California Distribution center 13,000 Lease expires in July 2007
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania Distribution center 15,000 Lease expires in
December 2006 _
Mississauga, Ontario Sales, service 28,000 Lease expires in March
' ‘ : 2010
Vancouver, British Columbia Sales, service ’ 10,500 Lease expires in
. . December 2007
Heathrow, United Kingdom European headquarters, 14,500 Lease expires in
sales, service ; : November 2020, with an

option to cancel in
November 2010

Our Hudson, New Hampshire facility, in its capacity as corporate headquarters, is utilized by all of our operating
segments.

Our Presstek segment utilizes the facilities in New Hampshire, Illinois, New York, Pennsylvania, California,
Ontario, British Columbia and the United Kingdom. E

Our Precision segment utilizes the facilities in Massachusetts.
Our Lasertel segment utilizes the facilities in Arizona.

In addition to the properties referenced above, we also lease a number of small sales and marketing offices in the
United States and internationally. At December 31, 2005, we were productively utilizing substantially all of the
space in our facilities, We believe that our existing facilities are adequate for our needs for at least the next twelve
months.

All of the properties we own are secured by our five-year, $80.0 million credit facilities.

We believe that our existing facilities are well maintained, in good operating condition and are adequate for our
current and expected future operations.

29




Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In March 2005, we filed an action against Creo, in the United States District Court for the District of New -
Hampshire for patent infringement. In this action, we allege that Creo has distributed a product that violates a
Presstek United States patent. We are seeking an order from the court that Creo refrain from offering the infringing
product for sale, from using the infringing material or introducing it for the named purposes, or from possessing
such infringing material, and for the payment of damages associated with the infringement.’

In September 2003, we filed an action against Fuji Photo Film Corporation, Ltd.; in the District Court of
Mannheim, Germany for patent infringement. In this action, we allege that Fuji has manufactured and distributed a
product that violates Presstek European Patent 0 644 047 registered under number DE 694 17 129 with the German
Patent and Trademark Office. We are seeking an order from the court that Fuji refrain from offering the infringing
product for sale, from using the infringing material or introducing it for.the named purposes, or from possessing
such infringing material. A trial was held in November 2004 and March 2005, and we are currently awaiting a final
determination from the court.

In August 2003, we were served with a purported securities class action lawsuit filed on June 2, 2003 in the United
States District Court for the Districts of New Hampshire against us and two of our former officers. This lawsuit
was dismissed by the court, on October 4, 2004, The plaintiffs have appealed the court’s dismissal on November 4,
2004. On January 27, 2005, the plaintiffs withdrew their appeal and the matter was permanently closed in our
favor. ’ ,

Presstek is party to other litigation that it considers routine and incidental to its business; however, it does not
expect the results of any of these actions to have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operation or
financial condition:

PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockhoider Matters and Issuer Purchasers of Equfty
Securities .

QOur common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “PRST.” The following table sets
forth the high and low bid prices per share of common stock for each full quarterly period within the two most
recently completed. fiscal years as reported by the Nasdag National Market.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005 High Low
First quarter ...................... e $10.75 $ 7.27
Second quarter .................... T, e Lo 81175 $7.05
Third QUATTET . . ..ottt et e e e $13.74 $11.14
Fourth quarter .. ................... P PP $1320 $ 873

Fiscal Year Ended January 1, 2005
First quarter ...................... SR $1220 $ 7.25
Second quarter .................... P $1205 $ 9.00
THIEA QUATTET .« et e e e e et e e e e e e e e $10.24 $ 8.15
Fourth quarter . .................... e e, $1099  $ 856
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On March 7, 2006, there were 2,536 holders of record of our common stock. The closing price of our common
stock was $11.58 per share on March 7, 2006. ‘

(d) Maximum Number
(or Approximate
(c) Total Number of Dollar value) of
Shares (or Units) of Shares (or Units) that

(a) Total Number of (b) Average Price Publicly May Yet Be
. o Shares' (or Units) Paid Per Share Announced Purchased Under the
Period Purchased (or Unit) Plans of Programs Plans or Programs
Oct. 2—Nov.'1, 2005..... ‘ — : —_ —_— —
Nov. 2 —Dec. 3,2005 .... 15,000* $ 001 — —
Dec. 4 — Dec. 31, 2005 ... - = = —
Total ....... PRI 15;000_ $150.00 C— . —

* Consists of 15,000 shares repurchased by us pursuant to a repurchase right contained in an employment
agreement between us and one of our former executives.

Dividend Policy

To date, we have not paid any cash d1v1dends on our common stock. Under the terms of our credit facilities, we

are prohibited from declaring or distributing dividends to Shareholders. The paymcnt of cash dividends in the future
is within the discretion of our Board of Directors, and will depend upon our earnings, capital requirements, -
financial condition and other relevant factors, including the current prohibition on such dividends described above.
The Board of Directors does not intend to declare any cash dividends in the foreseeable future but instead intends
to retain all earnings, if any, for use in our busmess operations,

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below is derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements as of and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005, January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004,
December 28, 2002 and December 29, 2001. This information should be read in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ included as Part II Item 7 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Part II Item 8
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The hlstorlcal results provided below are not necessarily indicative of future
results.

We operate and report on a 52- or 53-week, ﬁscal year endlng on the Saturday closest to December 31. ,
Accordingly, the selected consolidated financial data include the financial results for the 52-week fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005, the 52-week fiscal year pnded January 1, 2005, the 53-week fiscal year ended January 3, 2004,
the 52-week fiscal yéar ended December 28, 2002 and the 52-week fiscal year ended December 29, 2001.
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. Fiscal Year Ended
_ December 31, January 1, January 3, December 28, December 29,

2005 2005(1) 2004(2) 2002(3) 2001(4)
: (In thousands, except per-share data)
Revenue ...................... e - $274,140 $129,851 $87,232 $83,453 $102,303

Costof revenue ...........oevemenerennaana.. 192,144 87,387 51,151 54,639 __ 64,395
Gross profit. . ...t 81,996 42,464 36,081 28,814 37,908
Operating expenses ‘ : . C

Research and development ..................... 7,335 6,460 7,061 . 9303 11,719

Sales, marketing and customer support .......... : 40,396 17,675 12,272 10,767 13,311

General and administrative .................... . 21,187 12,471 8,399 9,345 - 14,701

Amortization of intangible assets .. ............. . 2,724 1,315 964 867 - 794

Restructuring and special charges (credits) ........ 874 (392) 550 5,961 —
Total operating expenses .............. e ; 72,516 37,529 29,246 36,243 40,525
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . .. . el 9,480 4,935 6,835 (7,429) 2,617)
Other income (expense), net ’ ,

Interest, Bt .. .. .vviiir it (2,329) (605) (376) 872) . (1,136)

Other, net .........coiirii i 109 (265) 209 21 63
Total other income (expense), net. ... ... U : 2,220) - (870) (167) (851) (1,199)
Income (loss) from confinuing operations before | A .

INCOME TAXES .« . oo et e et ie e ; 7,260 4,065 6,668 (8,280) (3,816)
Provision for income taxes ........ e . 1,174 2000 0 e — e —
Income (loss) from continuing operations .......... ; 6,086 3,865 6,668 (8,280) (3,816)
Income from discontinued operations. . ............ — — 1,429 — —
Net income (1055) .. vvveetie et innnenn "% 6,086 $ 3,865 $ 8,097 $(8,280) $ (3,816)
Earnings (loss) per share — basic ;

Income (loss) from continuing operations ........ % o017 $ 011 $ 020 $ (0.29) $ (0.1

Income from discontinued operations. . . .... S — — 0.04 C— —

S $ 017 0§ 011 - § 02 $ (0.24) $ (01D

Eamings (loss) per. share — diluted . ) o
Income (loss) from continuing operations ........, § 0.17 $ 011 $ 020 $ (0.24) $ (01D
Income frofn discontinued operations. ........... — — T 0.04 — —

$ 017 $ 011 $ 024 $ (0.24) $ (0.11)

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic............ [P ‘ 35,153 © 34,558 34,167 34,124 34,096
Diluted ....................... e ' 35,572 - 35,357 34,400 34,124 34,096
As of
December 31, January 1, January 3, December 28, December 29,
2005 2005 2004 2002 2001
Working capital . . ..............ooueiriiii.... '$ 41,392 $41,117  $42512  $ 28572 $ 26,741
Total assets . . ..ot i e $181,487 $171,318 $106,528 $101,796 $106,844
Total debt and capital lease obligations ............ : $ 35,643 $ 41,822 $ 14,464 $ 16,707 $ 16,398
Stockholders’ equity .............iiiiiein., . $ 98,633 $ 89,402 $ 80,183 $ 71,766 $ 79,985

(1) Amounts include results of operations of ABD International, Inc. (which acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of The A.B.
Dick Company on November 5, 2004) and Precision thhogrmmng Corp. (acquired July 30, 2004) for the periods subsequent to their
respectlve vaLllSlthl‘lS

(2) The income from discontinued operations amount relates to the operations of Delta V Technologies, Inc., which were shut down in fiscal
1999.

(3) The cost of revenue amount reported for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2002 includes $3.7 million of inventory writedowns and other
charges related to discontinued programs.

(4) The general and administrative amount reported for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2001 includes $2.1 million related to the writeoff of
pre-payments made to a press supplier as a resqlt of the supplier’s bankruptcy petition in 2002.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis should be read in connection with “Item 1. Business”,
“Item 1A. Risk Factors”, “Item 6. Selected Financial Data”, “Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risks” and the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Overview

We are a market-focused company primarily engaged in the design, manufacture, sales and service of high-
technology digital imaging solutions to the graphic arts industry worldwide. We are helping to lead the industry’s
transformation from analog print production methods to digital imaging technology. We are a leader in the
development of advanced printing systems using digital imaging equipment and consumables-based solutions that
economically benefit the user through a streamlined workflow and chemistry free, environmentally responsible
operation. We are also a leading sales and service channel in the small to mid-sized commercial, quick and in-plant
printing markets offering a wide range of solutions to over 20,000 customers worldwide.

Presstek’s business model is a capital equipment and consumables (razor and blade) model. In this model, almost
70% of our revenue is recurring revenue. Our model is designed so that each placement of either a Direct Imaging
Press or a Computer to Plate system results in recurring aftermarket revenue for consumables and service.

Through our various operations, we:

* provide advanced print solutions through the development and manufacture of digital laser imaging
equipment and advanced technology chemistry-free printing plates, which we call consumables, for
commercial and in-plant print providers targeting the growing market for high quality, fast turnaround short-
run color printing;

* are a leading sales and services company delivering Presstek digital solutions and solutions from other
manufacturing partners through our direct sales and service force and through distribution partners
worldwide;

+ manufacture semiconductor solid state laser diodes for Presstek imaging applications and for use by external
applications; and

* manufacture and distribute printing plates for conventional print applications.

We have developed a proprietary system by which digital images are transferred onto printing plates for Direct
Imaging on-press applications and for computer-to-plate applications. We refer to Direct Imaging as DI and
computer-to-plate as CTP. Our digital imaging systems enable customers to produce high-quality, full color
lithographic printed materials more quickly and cost effectively than conventional methods that employ more
complicated workflows and toxic chemical processing. This results in reduced printing cycle time and lowers the
effective cost of production for commercial printers. Qur solutions make it more cost effective for printers to meet
the increasing demand for shorter print runs, higher quality color and faster turn-around times.

Our ground breaking DI technology is marketed to leading press manufacturers. Our Presstek business segment
supplies these manufacturers with imaging kits complete with optical assemblies and software which are integrated
into the manufacturers’ presses. The result is a DI press, which is designed to image our printing plates. Similar
digital imaging technologies are used in our CTP systems. Our Presstek business segment designs and manufactures
CTP systems that incorporate our imaging technology and image our chemistry free printing plates.

In addition to marketing, selling and servicing our proprietary digital products, we also market, sell and service
traditional, or analog products for the commercial print market. This analog equipment is manufactured by third
party strategic partners and the analog consumables are manufactured by either us or our strategic partners: The
addition of these non-proprietary products and our ability to directly sell and service them is made possible by
acquisitions we completed in 2005: ABDick and Precision.

On November 5, 2004, we, through our wholly-owned subsidiary, ABD International, Inc. completed the
acquisition of certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of the The A.B. Dick Company, which we acquired
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through a Section 363 sale in the United States Bankruptcy Court. We refer to the business that we acquired as the
ABDick business. The business we acquired manufactures, markets and services offset systems, CTP systems and
related supplies for the graphics arts and printing industries. In 2005, we substantially completed the integration of
the operations of the ABDick business into Presstek.

On July 30, 2004, we acquired all the stock of Precision Lithograining Corporation, an independent plate
manufacturer located in South Hadley, Massachusetts, which we refer to as Precision. Precision manufactures our
Anthem and Freedom digital printing plates, and is also a provider of other conventional analog and digital printing
plates for both web and sheet-fed printing applications to other external customers.

Lasertel, Inc., a subsidiary of Presstek, is primarily engaged in the manufacture and development of high-powered
laser diodes for Presstek and for sale to external customers. Lasertel’s products include semiconductor lasers and

active components for the graphics, defense, industrial, and medical industries. Lasertel offers high-powered laser

diodes in both standard and customized configurations, including chip on sub-mount, un-mounted bars, and fiber-
coupled devices, to support various applications.:

After the acquisition of the ABDick business, but prior to its integration into Presstek, we reported the financial
performance of the ABDick business in a separate segment called the ABDick segment. In the third quarter of
fiscal 2005, we implemented a new internal management reporting structure in connection with organizational
changes related to the integration of the acquired ABDick business into our Presstek business segment.
Accordingly, the results of aperations and balance sheet information for the former ABDick segment have been
combined with those of the former Presstek segment and are now reported together as the Presstek business
segment. Any future changes to this organizational structure may result in changes to the business segments
currently disclosed.

Our operations are currently organized into three business segments: (1) Presstek; (ii) Precision; and (iii) Lasertel.
Segment operating results are based on the current organizational structure reviewed by our management to evaluate
the results of each business. A description of the types of products and services provided by each business segment
follows.

* Presstek is primarily engaged in the development, manufacture, sale and servicing of our patented digital
imaging systems and patented printing plate technologies as well as traditional, analog systems and related
equipment and supplies for the graphic arts and printing industries, primarily the short-run, full-color market
segment.

* Precision manufactures chemistry-free digital and conventional printing plates for both web and sheet-fed
printing applications for sale to Presstek and to external customers.

* Lasertel manufactures and develops high-powered laser diodes for Presstek and for sale to external
customers.

We generate revenue through four main sources: (i) the sale of our equipment, including DI presses and CTP
devices, as well as imaging kits, which are incorporated by leading press manufacturers into direct imaging presses
for the graphic arts industry; (ii) the sale of high-powered laser diodes for the graphic arts, defense and industrial
sectors; (ii1) the sale of our proprietary and non-proprietary consumables and supplies; and (iv) the servicing of
offset printing systems and analog and CTP systems and related equipment.

Our business strategy is centered on maximizing the sale of consumable products, such as printing plates, and
therefore our business efforts focus on the sale of “consumable burning engines” such as our DI presses and CTP
devices. Qur strategy to grow our consumables has two parts. The first part is to increase the number of our DI and
CTP units in the field. By increasing the number of consumable burning engines will increase the demand for our
consumables.

We rely on partnerships with press manufacturers such as Ryobi Limited, Heidelberger Druckmaschinen AG, or
Heidelberg, and Koenig & Bower AG, or KBA, to market printing presses and press solutions that use our
proprietary consumables. We also rely on distribution partners, such as Eastman Kodak to sell, distribute and
service press systems and the related proprietary consumable products.
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Another method of growing the market for consumables is to develop consumables that can be imaged by non-
Presstek devices. In addition to expanding our base of our consumable burning engines, an element of our focus is
to reach beyond our proprietary systems and penetrate the installed base of CTP devices in all market segments
with our chemistry free and process-free offerings. The first step in executing this strategy was the launch of our
non-proprietary Aurora chemistry-free printing plate designed to be used with Consumable burning engines
manufactured by thermal CTP market leaders Screen and Kodak. We continue to work with other CTP
manufacturers to qualify our consumables on their systems. We believe this shift in strategy fundamentaily
enhances our ability to expand and control our business.

We operate and report on a 52- or 53-week, fiscal year ending on the Saturday closest to December 31.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements include the financial reports for the 52-week fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005, which we refer to as fiscal 2005, the 52-week fiscal year ended January 1, 2005, which we
refer to as fiscal 2004, and the 53-week fiscal year ended Janunary 3, 2004, which we refer to as fiscal 2003.

We intend the discussion of our financial condition and results of operations that follows to provide information
that will assist in understanding our consolidated financial statements, the changes in certain key items in those
financial statements from year to year, and the primary factors that accounted for those changes, as well as how
certain accounting principles, policies and estimates affect our consolidated financial statements.

The discussion of results of operations at the consolidated level is presented together with results of operations by
business segment.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of operations in dollars and as a percentage of revenue were as follows (in thousands of dollars):
' Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005 January 3, 2004
% of % of % of
revenue revenue revenue
Revenne :
Product.............. ... .ot $225,619 823  $116,788 89.9  $82,853 95.0
Serviceand parts . ................ 48,521 17.7 13,063 10.1 4,379 5.0
Total revenue .................. 274,140 100.0 129,851 100.0 87,232 100.0
Cost of revenue | '
Cost of product .................. 159,282 58.1 78,252 60.3 48,235 55.3
Cost of service and parts .......... 32,862 12.0 9,135 7.0 2,916 3.3
Total cost of revenue . ............... 192,144 70.1 87,387 67.3 51,151 58.6
Grossprofit ....................... 81,996 29.9 42,464 32.7 36,081 41.4
Operating expenses
Research and development ......... 7,335 27 6,460 5.0 7,061 8.1
Sales, marketing and customer
3150)+70) s S N 40,396 14.7 17,675 13.6 12,272 141
General and administrative ......... 21,187 7.7 12,471 9.6 8,399 9.7
Amortization of intangible assets . ... 2,724 1.0 1,315 1.0 964 1.1
Restructuring and special charges
(credits) ....covviiiii 874 0.3 (392) (0.3) 550 0.6
Total operating expenses . ...... 72,516 26.4 37,529 28.9 29,246 33.6
Income from continuing operations .... 9,480 35 4,935 38 6,835 7.8
Interest and other expense, net . ....... - (2,220) (0.9) (870) (0.7) (167) (0.1
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes............... . 1,260 2.6 4,065 31 6,668 7.7
Provision for income taxes ........... 1,174 0.4 200 0.1 — —
Income from continuing operations .... 6,086 2.2 3,865 3.0 6,668 7.7
Income from discontinued operations .. — — — — 1,429 1.6
Netincome..............cooveennn. $ 6,086 22 § 3,865 3.0 § 8,097 9.3

Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004

Revenue

Consolidated Revenue

Consolidated revenues were $274.1 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of $144.2 million, or 111.1%, from

$129.9 million of consolidated revenues in fiscal 2004. Revenue growth in fiscal 2005 reflects the impact of our
acquisition strategy launched in 2004 with the Precision and ABDick acquisitions and our success in integrating
these operations into our business in 2005. We grew our digital technology base significantly in fiscal 2005, with
digital revenues increasing from $104.5 million in fiscal 2004 to $165.6 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of 58%.
Revenue into the European market increased from $34.4 million in fiscal 2004 to $57.2 million in fiscal 2005, an
increase of 66.0%, largely due to our increased European footprint resulting from the ABDick acquisition and the
integration of the Presstek European distributor business with the former A.B. Dick UK Limited operation.

Product equipment revenues were $83.5 million in fiscal 2003, an increase of $43.0 million, or 105.9%, from fiscal
2004. The curzent year increase is primarily attributable to the Pressick segment and the ABDick acquisition, which

36




business’s direct sales channel favorably impacted our installed base of DI and CTP presses, referred to as
consumable burning engines, or CBEs, sold in the current period. We increased digital equipment sales by
approximately 300 units, or $23.1 million, in the current fiscal year.

Revenues generated from consumable product sales were $141.8 nﬁllion in fiscal 2005, an increase of
$66.1 million, or 87.2%, from the prior fiscal year. The current year increase is attributable primarily to
incremental revenues associated with the Precision and ABDick acquisitions.

Service and parts revenues were $48.5 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of $35.5 million, or 271.4%, from the
prior fiscal year. The current year increase is attributable primarily to incremental revenue derived from the
ABDick acquisition.

Segment Revenue

In fiscal 2005, we implemented a new internal management reporting structure in connection with organizational
changes related to the integration of the ABDick business into our Presstek business. We analyzed the impact of
this integration on our operating segments and concluded that the results of operations and balance sheet
information for the former ABDick segment should be combined with those of the former Presstek segment and
reported as the new Presstek business segment. Accordingly, the historical results of the Presstek segment included
herein have been restated to include the resuits of the former ABDick segment. As part of the integration, Presstek-
Europe was reorganized to combine the Presstek European distributor business with the former ABDick-UK
operation to enhance the customer support base for the region.

The following business segment revenue information includes intersegment revenues for the Precision and Lasertel
segments. Intersegment revenues are eliminated in consolidation.

Presstek Segment

Revenue for the Presstek segment was $255.4 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of $136.8 million, or 115.4%,
compared to $118.6 million in fiscal 2004. This revenue increase is primarily attributable to the incremental sales
generated from the acquisition of the ABDick business and the introduction of Presstek technology products into
those new distribution channels. Equipment, consumables and service/parts revenues increased by $42.0 million,
$59.6 million and $35.5 million, respectively.

Digital revenues in the Presstek segment increased 59.2% from $101.6 million in fiscal 2004 to $161.8 million in
fiscal 2005. A primary factor in the increase in digital revenues in fiscal 2005 was an 84% increase in sales of
CBEs. Product equipment revenue was also favorably impacted by the direct sales channel acquired in the ABDick
acquisition and the'launch of the Vector TX 52, a new generation of CTP system, mto U.S. and European markets,
which contributed $1.2 million in incremental revenue in the current year.

In fiscal 2005, we experienced organic growth in several consumable digital product lines, including Profire Digital
Media plates, which increased $1.9 million, or 414% year over year. In addition, we entered into several strategic
consumable relationships, including those with Heidleberg naming the Quickmaster DI as a preferred plate and
Screen USA to market consumable plate products in non-Presstek proprietary CTP systems.

In fiscal 2005, we brought back to Presstek the previously outsourced service of our digital equipment and
introduced DI training to service engineers and customer support to drive digital service growth. Our digital service
contract mix increased from 18% to 24% in fiscal 2005.

Precision Segment

Revenue for the Precision segment was $25.2 million in fiscal 2005 an increase of $14.0 million, or 124.5%,
compared to $11.2 million in fiscal 2004. This increase reflects full-year financial results for the Precision segment
in fiscal 2005, compared to the results of the Precision segment for the period subsequent to its acquisition in July
2004.
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Lasertel Segment

Revenue for the Lasertel segment was $7.8 million in both fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004. Revenue earned from
external customers increased $0.9 million, from $2.9 million in fiscal 2004 to $3.8 million in fiscal 2005, primarily
due to the addition of two significant new customers in the defense and industrial fields.

Cost of Revenue

Consolidated Cost of Revenue

Consolidated cost of product, consisting of costs of material, labor and overhead, shipping and handling costs and
warranty expenses, was $159.3 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of $81.0 million, or 103.6%, from $78.3 million
in fiscal 2004. The increase is primarily attributable to additional cost of product associated with the Precision and
ABDick businesses acquisitions and higher revenues in the current year.

Consolidated cost of service and parts was $32.9 million in fiscal 2005 and $9.1 million in fiscal 2004. These
amounts represent the costs of spare parts, labor and overhead associated with the ongoing service of products.
These increases are attributable primarily to the addition of the ABDick business in November 2004.

Segment Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue for the Presstek segment was $170.5 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of $98.5 million, compared
to $72.0 million in fiscal 2004. The increase relates primarily to the addition of ABDick and higher production
costs driven by increased equipment, consumable and parts sales.

Cost of revenue for the Precision segment was $22.7 million in fiscal 2005, compared to $11.1 million in fiscal
2004. The increase reflects full-year financial results for the Precision segment in fiscal 2005, compared to the
results of the Precision segment for the period subsequent to its acquisition in July 2004,

Cost of revenue for the Lasertel segment was $9.1 million in fiscal 2005, compared to $9.5 million in fiscal 2004,
The decrease in fiscal 2005 relates to production efficiency gains, yield improvements, and, to a lesser extent, a
change in the lives of certain machinery and equipment from five to seven years, resulting in a reduction of
depreciation costs of $0.4 million in both the fourth quarter and fiscal 2005. This change in estimate positively
impacted net income by $0.3 million and earnings per share on both a basic and diluted basis by $0.01 in both the
fiscal 2005 fourth quarter and year.

Consolidated Gross Margin

Consolidated gross margin as a percentage of total revenue was 29.9% in fiscal 2005, compared to 32.7% in fiscal
2004. Gross margin as a percentage of product revenue was 29.4% in fiscal 2005, compared to 33.0% in fiscal
2004. The product gross margin percentage decrease in fiscal 2005 is primarily the result of the addition of the
Precision and ABDick businesses, together with a higher mix of equipment revenues, which historically carry lower
gross margins than Presstek’s core business. As the impact of integrating the manufacturing operations of Presstek,
Precision, and ABDick is fully realized in fiscal 2006, we expect gross margins to improve.

Gross margin as a percentage of service and parts revenue was 32.3% and 30.1% in fiscal 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The service and parts gross margin percentage increase in fiscal 2005 is attributable to integration
savings resulting from consolidating operations and a shift from an outsourced service provider to internal services.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses primarily consist of payroll and related expenses for personnel, parts and
supplies, and contracted services required to conduct our equipment, consumables and laser diode development
efforts. Our research and development team also contribute to the development, presentation, and launch of new
technology products at key industry shows in the U.S. and Europe.

Consolidated research and development expenses were $7.3 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of $0.8 million, or
13.5%, from $6.5 million in fiscal 2004. The increase is attributable to additional costs associated with the
Precision and ABDick business acquisitions, partially offset by development supplies costs incurred in fiscal 2004
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in preparation for the Drupa trade show that were not incurred in 2005. As a percentage of revenue, research and
development expenses declined from 5.0% to 2.7% in fiscal 2005 and we expect this decline to continue in future
periods as total revenue increases.

Research and development expenses for the Presstek segment were $6.0 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of

$0.3 million, or 5.9%, compared to $5.7 million in fiscal 2004. This increase is due to increased salary and benefits
costs, partially offset by $0.6 million of development parts and supply costs incurred in fiscal 2004 in preparation
for the Drupa trade show that were not incurred in fiscal 2005.

Research and development expenses for the Precision segment were $0.4 million and $0.2 million in fiscal 2005
and fiscal 2004, respectively. The change in 2005 from the prior year is primarily attributable to a full year of
Precision operations in fiscal 2005.

Research and development expenses for the Lasertel segment were $0.9 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of
$0.3 million, compared to $0.6 million in fiscal- 2004. This increase relates primarily to increased salary and
benefits costs from additional development personnel associated with new product activities, combined with
increased development parts and supplies expenses.

While we expect to continue to invest an estimated $7.0 million internally in research and development in fiscal
2006, our strategy is to identify and collaborate with third parties in development activities designed to leverage
Presstek technology and innovation.

Sales, Marketing and Customer Support

Sales, marketing and customer support expenses primarily consist of payroll and related expenses for personnel,
advertising, trade shows, promotional expenses, and travel costs associated with sales, marketing and customer
support activities. ‘

Consolidated sales, marketmg and customer: support expenses were $40.4 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of
$22.7 million, or 128.6%, from $17.7 million in fiscal 2004. The increases are primarily attributable to the’
Precision and ABDick acquisitions, partially offset by operating costs of $0.4 million incurred in fiscal 2004 in .
preparation for the Drupa trade show that were not incurred in 2005.

Sales, marketing and customer support expenses for the Presstek segment were $39.6 million in fiscal 2005, an
increase of $22.6 million, compared to $17.0 million in fiscal 2004. The increase in fiscal 2005 is attributable to
the ABDick acquisition, partially offset by operating costs of $0.4 million dincurred in fiscal 2004 in preparation for
the Drupa trade show that were not incurred in 2005.

Sales, marketing and customer support expenses for the Precision segment were $0.3 million and $0.2 million in A
fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. :

Sales and marketing expenses for the Lasertel segment were $0.4 million in both fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, These’
costs reflect a continuing drive to enhance extemal revenues from customiers in the defense and 1ndustna1 fields.

In ﬁscal 2005, we strengthened capacny and capablhty w1thm the sales, marketmg and customer support area
through reorganization, training in advanced technology products and services, and changes in key personnel. In
fiscal 2006, we expect expenses in this area to increase in absolute dollars as we continue to pursue initiatives
designed to drive penetration of Presstek technology. :

General and Administrative

Consolidated general and administrative expenses, primarily comprised of payroll and related expenses for
personnel, and contracted professional services necessary to conduct our finance, information systems, human
resources and administrative activities, were $21.2 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of $8.7 million, or 69.9%,
compared to $12.5 million in fiscal 2004. The increase is primarily attributable to the acquisitions of ABDick and
Precision, combined with salaries, benefits, professional fees and integration costs incurred by the Presstek segment.

General and administrative expenses were 7.7% of total revenue in fiscal 2005 compared to 9.6% in fiscal 2004.
The decrease in fiscal 2005 reflects integration savings associated with the consolidation of operations of both
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Precision and ABDick, as well as overall revenue growth of 111.1% in the period due to such acquisitions. We
expect to see general and administrative expenses decrease as a percentage of revenue in future periods as our
strategy is to position the growth of general and ‘administrative expenses at lower rates than the growth of revenue
and as the full-year impact of integration actions is realized.

General and administrative expenses for the Presstek segment were $19.7 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of
$8.4 million, or 73.7%, compared to $11.3 million in fiscal 2004. This increase is primarily attributable to
additional general and administrative costs associated with the ABDick acquisition, coupled with higher salary and
benefit costs and increased fees for professional services.

General and administrative expenses for the Precision segment were $0.6 million and $0.2 million in fiscal 2005
and fiscal 2004, respectively. The change in 2005 from the prior year is pnmarxly attributable to a full year of
results for this segment included in fiscal 2005. .

General and administrative expenses for the Lasertel segment were $0.8 million in fiscal 2005 and $0.9 mﬂhon in
fiscal 2004. : :

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization expense of $2.7 million and $1.3 million in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively, relates to
intangible assets recorded in connection with the Company’s 2004 ABDick and Precision acquisitions, patents and
other purchased intangible assets.

Restructuring and Special Charges/Credits

In fiscal 2005, we charged $0.9 million of restructuring and special charges related to Precision and ABDick to
results of operations. These charges consisted of’ severance and fringe benefit costs, executive and other contractual
obligations, and a settlement with previously terminated employees. In fiscal 2005, we also incurred net costs of
$1.5 million associated with the integration of ABDick into Presstek. These costs were recorded as an adjustment
to the purchase price of the acquisition. We have already benefited from the resulting cost reductions and expect
the full impact to be realized in fiscal 2006. On an annualized basis, restructuring benefits have exceeded

$8.5 million.

In fiscal 2004, we reversed $0.4 million of excess restructuring charges related to estimated severance and fringe
benefits accrued in fiscal 2003 and 2002 as a result of lower actual fringe benefit costs.

Interest and Other Income/Expense, Net

Interest expense was $2.5 million in fiscal 2005, an increase of $1.6 million from $0.9 million in fiscal 2004. The
increase in interest expense is primarily attributable to higher average debt balances related to financing the two
acquisitions completed in 2004 and higher interest rates on borrowmgs Effective August 31, 2005, we amended
our debt facilities to reduce the current apphcable LIBOR Margin to 2.5%, from the prevmus Apphcable LIBOR
Margin of 3.5%.

We recorded interest income of $0.1 million and $0.3 million in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. The
decrease in fiscal 2005 is principally a result of decreased cash balances available for investment.

The primary components of other income (expense), net, are gains or losses on foreign currency transactions and
disposals of long-lived assets. In fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, we recorded losses on foreign currency transactions of
$3,000 and $133,000, respectively. We recognized losses on the disposals of long- hved assets totaling $153,000 and
$24,000 in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectwely

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 16.2% in fiscal 2005 and 4.9% in fiscal 2004. The variance from the federal statutory”
rate for fiscal 2005 was primarily due to the recogmtlon of a non-cash deferred tax liability for goodwill, foreign
taxes, and alternative minimum taxes. ~
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In fiscal 2004, our effective tax rate differed from the federal statutory rate primarily due to state, foreign and
alternative minimum tax, offset by increases in the valuation allowance.

At December 31, 2005, we had nét deferred tax assets of approximately $36 million which were subject to
consideration of a valuation allowance. A full valuation allowance has been provided against the net deferred tax
assets in the U.S. due to the uncertainty of their realization. In the future, continued sustained profitability will
cause us to reassess the need for the valuation allowance. We may be required to recognize these deferred tax
assets through the reduction of the valuation allowance which would result in a material benefit to our results of
operations and adjustments to recorded goodwill and shareholder equity in the period in which the benefit is
determined.

Fiscal 2004 Compared te Fiscal 2003

Revenue

Consolidated Revenue

Consolidated revenues were $129.9 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of $42.7 million, or 48.9%, from

$87.2 million of consolidated revenues in fiscal 2003. Revenue growth in fiscal 2004 was primarily the result of the
addition of the ABDick and Precision businesses, coupled with $9.9 million of organic growth. The ABDick and
Precision business contributed $32.8 million of revenue for the periods subsequent to their respective acquisitions.

Product equipment sales were $40.5 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of $11.6 million, or 40.3%, from fiscal
2003. Revenues generated from consumable product sales were $75.7 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of
$23.9 million, or 46.2% from the prior fiscal year. The current year increases are primarily attributable to the
addition of the ABDick and Precision businesses, and, to a lesser extent, organic growth.

Segment Revenue

The following revenue information’ for each of our “business segments 1ncludes 1ntersegment revenues. These
intersegment revenues are eliminated in consohdatlon

Revenue for the Presstek segment was $118.6 million in fiscal 2004 an increase of $33 1 rmlhon or 38 7%, -
compared to $85.5 million in fiscal 2003. This revenue increase is primarily attributable to the addition of ABDick,
which contributed $24.3 million of revenues in the fiscal 2004 penod subsequent to its acqmsmon coupled w1th
organic growth, : -

Revenue for the Prec1s1on segment was $11.2 rmlhon in fiscal 2004. We acquired Precision in July 2004;
accordingly, there is no comparative historical financial information for fiscal 2003.

Revenue for the Lasertel segment was $7.8 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of $1.0 million, or 14.1%, compared
to $6.8 million in fiscal 2003. This increase was primarily related to the sale of products used in apphcatlons for
the defense 1ndustry - ‘

Cost of Revenue

Consolidated Cost of Revenue

Consolidated cost of product, consisting of costs for material, labor and overhead,  shipping and- handling costs and
warranty expenses, was $78.3 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of $30.1 million, or 62.2%, from $48.2 million in
fiscal 2003. The increase is primarily attnbutable to addmonal cost of product associated w1th the acquired
Precision and ABDick businesses.

Consolidated cost of service and parts was $9.1 million in fiscal 2004 and $2.9 million in fiscal 2003. These
amounts represent the costs of spare parts, labor and overhead associated with the ongoing service of products.
These increases are primarily attributable to the acquired ABDick busmess which mcurred $4.8 million of cost in
the fiscal- 2004 period subsequent to its acquisition by us.
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Segment Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue for the Presstek segment was $72.0 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of $24.3 million, or 51.0%,
compared to $47.7 million in fiscal 2003. The increase relates primarily to additional costs associated with the
acquired ABDick business.

Cost of revenue for the Precision segment was $11.1 million in fiscal 2004.

Cost of revenue for the Lasertel segment was $9.5 million in fiscal 2004, compared to $8.5 million in fiscal 2003. .
The increase is primarily due to laser diode production volumes in fiscal 2004, compared to the prior year.

Consolidated Gross Margin

Consolidated gross margin as a percentage of total revenue was 32.7% in fiscal 2004, compared to 41.4% in fiscal
2003. Gross margin as a percentage of product revenue was 33.0% in fiscal 2004, compared to 41.8% in fiscal
2003. Gross margin as a percentage of service and parts revenue was 30.1% and 33.4% in fiscal 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The decrease in gross margin in 2004 is primarily the result of the acquired ABDick and Precision
businesses, which have traditionally lower gross margins than Presstek’s core business.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses primarily consist of payroll and related expenses for personnel, parts and
supplies, and contracted services required to conduct our equipment, consumables and laser diode development
efforts.

Consolidated research'and development expenses were $6.5 miilion in fiscal 2004, a decrease of $0.6 million, or
8.5%, from $7.1 million in fiscal 2003.

Research and development expenses for the Presstek segment were $5.7 million in fiscal 2004, a decrease of

$0.6 million, or 9.7%, compared to $6.3 million in fiscal 2003. This decrease is due to reduced salaries and
benefits approximating $0.4 million resulting from headcount reductions in the third quarter of 2003, coupled with
$0.6 million of reduced development costs related to finalizing the development of our Pro Fire Excel product.
These reductions were partially offset by $0.2 million of increased costs related to parts and supplies and
professional and contractor services. ' : -

Research and development expenses for the Precision segment were $0.2 million in fiscal 2004.

Research and development expenses for the Lasertel segmént were $O.6 million in fiscal 2004, a decrease of

$0.2 million, compared to $0.8 million in fiscal 2003. This decrease is attributable to $0.1 million of reduced salary
and benefit expenses and $0.1 million of reduced costs for parts and supplies and profess1ona1 and contractor
services. '

Saled, Marketing and Customer Support ‘

Sales, marketing and customer support expenses primarily consist of payroll and related expenses for personnel,
advertising, trade shows, promotional expenses, and travel costs related to our sales, marketing and customer
support activities. : :

Consolidated sales, marketing and customer support expenses were $17.7 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of
$5.4 million, or 44.0%, from $12.3 million in fiscal 2003. The increase is primarily attributable to the addition of
the ABDick and Precision business, which accounted for $4.0 million of expenses for the fiscal 2004 periods
subsequent to their respective acquisitions.

Sales, marketing and customer support expenses for the Presstek segment were $17.0 million in fiscal 2004, an
increase of $5.1 million, compared to $11 9 m11110n in fiscal 2003. The increase is primarily attributable to the
acquired ABDick business.

Sales, marketmg and customer support expenses for the Precision segment were $0.2 million in fiscal 2004.

Sales and marketing expenses for the Lasertel segment were $0.4 million in both fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003
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General and Administrative

Consolidated general and administrative expenses, primarily comprised of payroll and related expenses for
personnel, and contracted professional services necessary to conduct our finance, information systems, human
resources and administrative activities, were $12.5 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of $4.1 million, or 48.5%,
compared to $8.4 million in fiscal 2003. The increase is primarily attributable to the addition of the ABDick and
Precision businesses, which accounted for $2.9 million of increased general and administrative expense for the
periods in fiscal 2004 subsequent to their respective acquisitions.

General and administrative expenses for the Presstek segment were $11.3 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of
$3.9 million, or 52.9%, compared to $7.4 million in fiscal 2003. The primary components of this increase are

$2.6 million of expenses attributable to the acquired ABDick business, $0.6 million of expenses related to
compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and increased legal fees related to the shareholder
suit aggregating $0.5 million.

General and administrative expenses for the Precision segment were $0.2 million in fiscal 2004.

General and administrative expenses for the Lasertel segment were $0.9 million in fiscal 2004 and $1.0 million in
fiscal 2003. The decrease is primarily attributable to lower professional services expenses in fiscal 2004.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization expense of $1.3 million in fiscal 2004 relates to intangible assets recorded in connection with our
2004 ABDick and Precision acquisitions, patents and other purchased intangible assets. Amortization expense of
$1.0 million in fiscal 2003 primarily relates to in-service patents.

Restructuring and Special Charges/Credits

In fiscal 2004, we reversed $0.4 million in excess amounts originally accrued in fiscal 2003 and 2002 for
severance. In fiscal 2003, we recorded $0.6 million of restructuring and special charges related to severance and
fringe benefit costs associated with the reduction of approximately 43 employees, primarily in manufacturing,
research and development and administration, of which $0.5 million was recorded by the Presstek segment and
$0.1 million was recorded by the Lasertel segment. :

Interest and Other Income/Expense, Net

Interest expense was $0.9 million and $0.7 million in fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively. The increase is
primarily attributable to higher average debt balances in fiscal 2004 as a result of the business acquisitions, coupled
with higher interest rates on outstanding borrowings.

l

We recorded interest income of $0.3 million in both fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2b03.

The primary components of other income (expense), net, are gains or losses on foreign cusrency transactions and
disposals of long-lived assets. In fiscal 2004, we recorded losses on foreign bunency transactions and disposals of
long lived assets totaling $133,000 and $24,000, respectively. The 2003 amount is primarily comprised of gains on
foreign currency transactions totaling $196,000.

Provision for Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate was 4.9% in fiscal 2004. The rate differs from the statutory rate primarily as a
result of the partial reversal of the valuation allowance related to net operating loss carryforwards. The increase in
the provision relates to the recognition of a non-cash deferred tax liability for goodwill, foreign taxes and
alternative minimum taxes. We did not record any income tax expense in fiscal 2003 due to net operating loss
carryforwards used in the period.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We finance our operating and capital investment réquirements primarily through cash flows from operations and
borrowings. At December 31, 2005, we had $5.6 million of cash and $41.4 million of working capital, compared to
$8.7 million of cash and $41.1 million of working capital at January 1, 2005.

Our operating activities provided $11.7 million of cash in the year ended December 31, 2005. Cash provided by
operating activities primarily came from net income, after adjustments for non-cash depreciation, amortization,
restructuring and special charges, provisions for warranty costs and accounts receivable allowances, stock
compensation expense and losses on the disposal of assets. Net income and non-cash items were further benefited
from an increase of $9.2 million in accounts payable, primarily related to the timing of purchases and payments to
suppliers. These amounts were partially offset by. increases of $7.3 million and $7.1 million in accounts receivable
and inventories, respectively, and decreases of $2.5 million and $1.9 million in accrued expenses and deferred
revenue, respectively. Accounts receivable increases in the current year are primarily attributable to increased
revenues in fiscal 2005 compared to the prior fiscal year and an increase in days sales outstanding from 39 in 2004
to 53 in fiscal 2005, driven principally by the timing of funding from equipment leasing partners. Higher inventory
levels at December 31, 2005, reflected in a decrease in inventory turns from 4.8 in 2004 to 3.8 in 2005, were
primarily attributable to manufacturing consolidation actions, raw materials and parts associated with the production
ramp-up of the Vector TX52, and additional Lasertel inventory related to increased external sales.

We used net cash of $11.6 million for investing activities in fiscal 2005, primarily comprised of $6.1 million of
additions to property, plant and equipment, $2.2 million of investments in patents and other intangible assets and
$3.5 million of transaction and accrued integration costs paid related to the acquisition of the ABDick business.
Our additions to property, plant and equipment p'rimarily relate to production equipment, investments in
infrastructure improvements and leasehold improvements related to our new facilities in Canada and the United
Kingdom. Our investment in patents and other intangible assets includes $0.8 million of payments to a
manufacturer under an agreement whereby the manufacturer will design and prototype a product incorporating
Presstek products and technology.

Our financing activities used $3.2 million of net cash, comprised of payments on our current term loan and capital
lease aggregating $5.5 million and $0.8 million of net payments on our current line of credit. These amounts were
partially offset by $3.1 million of cash received from the exercise of stock options and purchase of common stock
under our employee stock purchase program.

In November 2004, in connection with the acquisition of the ABDick business, we replaced our then current credit
facilities with $80.0 million in Senior Secured Credit Facilities, referred to as the Facilities, from three lenders. The
terms of the Facilities include a $35.0 million five year secured term loan, referred to as the Term Loan, and a
$45.0 million five year secured revolving line of credit, referred to as the Revolver, which replaced our then-
existing term loan and revolver entered into in October 2003. At December 31, 2005, we had $11.6 million
outstanding under letters of credit, thereby reducing the amount available under the Revolver to $27.4 million. At
December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, the interest rates on the outstanding balance of the Revolver were 6.9%
and 5.8%, respectively. Principal payments on the Term Loan will be made in consecutive quarterly installments
which began on March 31, 2005 initially in the amount of $0.25 million, and which will continue quarterly
thereafter in the amount of $1.75 million, with a final settlement of all remaining principal and unpaid interest on
November 4, 2009. The Facilities were used to partially finance the acquisition of the business of ABDick, and will
be available for working capital requirements, capital expenditures, acquisitions, and general corporate purposes.
Borrowings under the Facilities bear interest at either (i) the London InterBank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, plus
applicable margins or (ii) the Prime Rate, as defined in the agreement, plus applicable margins. The applicable
margins range from 1.25% to 4.0% for LIBOR, or up to 1.75% for the Prime Rate, based on certain financial
performance. At December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, the effective interest rates on the Term Loan were 7.5%
and 5.7%, respectively. Effective August 31, 2005, we amended our Facilities to reduce the current Applicable
LIBOR Margin to 2.5%, from the previous Applicable LIBOR Margin of 3.5%.

Under the terms of the Revolver and Term Loan, we are required to meet various financial covenants on a quarterly
and annual basis, including maximum funded debt to EBITDA, a non-U.S. GAAP measurement that we define as
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eamnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and restructuring and special charges, and minimum fixed
charge coverage covenants. As of December 31, 2005, we were in compliance with all financial covenants.

On November 23, 2005, we purchased equipment under a capital lease arrangement qualifying under SFAS No. 13,
Accounting for Leases (“SFAS 13”). The lease has a three-year term and expires in November 2008, at which time
we may purchase the time collection system for a minimal amount. The lease carries an interest rate of 6.95% per
year. The equipment is included as a component of property, plant and equipment and the current and long-term
principal amounts of the lease obligation are included as components of current portion of long-term debt and
capital lease obligation and long-term debt and capital lease obligation in‘our consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2005. :

We believe that existing funds, cash flows from operations, and cash available under our Revolver should be
sufficient to satisfy working capital requirements and capital expenditures ‘through the next twelve months. There
can be no assurance, however, that we will not require additional financing, or that such additional financing, if
needed, would be available on acceptable terms. A

i
Our anticipated capital expenditures for fiscal 2006 range between $5.0 million and $7.0 million, including
expenditures related to our computer systems infrastructure and equipment to be used in the production of our DI
and CTP equipment and consumable products. ‘

We believe that existing funds, cash flows from operations, and cash available under our Revolver should be
sufficient to satisfy working capital requirements and capital expenditures through the next twelve months. There
can be no assurance, however, that we will not require additional financing, or that such additional financing, if
needed, will be available on acceptable terms.
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Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations at December 31, 2005 consist of the following (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period
Less than One to Three Three to

Total One Year Years Five Years
Senior Secured Credit Facilities .. ... e . $35,536 $13,036 $14,000 $ 8,500
Estimated interest péyments on Senior Secured . o
Credit Facilities ...................... . 4,995 2,049 2,499 447
Capital lease, including contractual interest. . . . 118 37 81 —
Minimum royalty obligation ................ 600 600 _ —
Executive contractual obligations ............ 2,164 - 1,229 935 —
Operating leases . . .........oovvivinn i, 5,467 1,685 2,016 1,766
Total contractual obligations ............ . $48,880 $18,636 $19,531 $10,713

The amounts above related to estimated interest payments on our Senior Secured Credit Facilities are based upon
the interest rates in effect at December 31, 2005. Actual interest amounts could differ from the estimates above.

In fiscal 2000, we entered into an agreement with. Fuji Photo Film Co., Ltd., whereby minimum royalty payments
to Fuji are required based on specified sales volumes of our A3 format size four-color sheet-fed press. The
agreement provides for payment of a total of $14.0 million in royalties, including an aggregate minimum of

$6.0 million over its term. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had paid Fuji $5.4 million related to this
agreement. We currently expect future sales volume to be sufficient to satisfy minimum commitments under the
agreement. In the event of a volume shortfall over the term of the agreement, we are obligated to fund the shortfall
as a Jump-sum payment. Were such lump-sum payment required, we do not believe the amount of the payment will

be material.

We have employment agreements with certain of our employees, some of which include change of control
agreements that provide them with benefits should their employment with us be terminated other than for cause or
their disability or death, or if they resign for good reason, as defined in these agreements, within a certain period of
time from the date of any change of control of us.

From time to time we have engaged in sales of equipment that is leased by or intended to be leased by a third
party purchaser to another party. In certain situations, we may retain recourse obligations to a financing institution
involved in providing financing to the ultimate lessee in the event the lessee of the equipment defaults on its lease
obligations. In certain such instances, we may refurbish and remarket the equipment on behalf of the financing
company, should the uvltimate lessee default on payment of the lease. In certain circumstances, should the resale
price of such equipment fall below certain predetermined levels, we would, under these arrangements, reimburse the
financing company for any such shortfall in sale price (a “shortfall payment”). The maximum contingent obligation
under these shortfall payment arrangements is estimated to be $0.5 million at December 31, 2005. As of

December 31, 2005, there were no defaults by ultimate lessees.

Effect of Inflation

Inflation has not had, and is not expected to have, a material impact on our financial conditions or results of
operations.

Net Operating Loss Carryforwards

At December 31, 2005, we had net operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes totaling $77.5 million, of which
$49.2 million resuited from stock option compensation deductions for U.S. federal tax purposes and $28.3 million
resulted from operating Josses. To the extent that net operating losses resulting from stock option compensation
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deductions become realizable, the benefit will be credited directly to additional paid-in capital. The amount of net
operating loss carryforwards that may be utilized in any future period may be subject to certain limitations, based
upon changes in the ownership of our common stock.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

General

Our Management’s Discussion. and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles as adopted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including
those related to product returns, warranty obligations, allowances for doubtful accounts, slow-moving and obsolete
inventories, long-lived assets and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in
the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. For a complete discussion of our accounting policies, see
Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere herein. .

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue principally from the sale of products (equipment, laser diodes, consumables) and
services (installation, training, support, spare parts and equipment maintenance contracts). Revenue is recognized
when persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the
price to the customer is fixed or determinable, collection is reasonably assured and no future services related to the
installation are required. When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as equipment and services,
revenue is allocated to each element based on its relative fair value. When the fair value of an undelivered element
cannot be determined, the Company defers revenue for the delivered elements until the undelivered elements are
delivered. A general right of return or cancellation does not exist once product is delivered to the customer;
however, the Company may elect, in certain circumstances, to accept returns of product. Product revenues are
recorded net of estimated returns, which are adjusted periodically, based upon historical rates of return. The
estimated cost of post-sale obligations, including product warranties, is accrued based on historical experience at
the time revenue is recognized.

The Company records amounts invoiced to customers in excess of revenue recognized as deferred revenue until all
revenue recognition criteria are met. ‘ '

The Company accounts for shipping and handling fees passed on to customers as revenue. Shipping and handling
costs are reported as components of cost of revenue (product) and cost of revenue (service and parts).

Products

End-User Customers — Under the Company’s standard terms and conditions of sale of equipment, title and
risk of loss is transferred to third-party end-user customers upon completion of installation and revenue is
recognized accordingly, unless customer acceptance is uncertain or significant deliverables remain. Sales of
other products, including printing plates, are recognized at the time of shipment.

OEM Relationships — Product revenue and any related royalties for products sold to companies with whom
we have an OEM relationship are recognized at the time of shipment. Contracts with companies with whom
we have OEM relationships do not include price protection or product return rights; however, the Company
may elect, in certain circumstances, to accept returns of product.

47




Distributor Relationships — Revenue for product sold to distributors, whereby the distributor is responsible for
installation, is recognized at shipment. Revenue for equipment sold to distributors whereby the Company is
responsible for installation, for which the installation is not deemed inconsequential, is recognized upon
completion of installation and customer acceptance. Except in the case of termination of the contract, which
includes product return rights, contracts with distributors do not include price protection or product return
rights; however, the Company may elect, in certain circumstances, to accept returns of product.

Services and Parts

Revenue for installation services, including time and material contracts, is recognized as services are rendered.
Revenue associated with maintenance or extended service agreements is recognized ratably over the contract
period. Revenue associated with training and support services is recognized as services are rendered. Certain
fees and other reimbursements are recogmzed as revenue when the related services have been performed or the
revenue is otherwise earned.

Sales Transactions Financed with Recourse Clauses

From time to time the Company has engaged in sales of equipment that is leased by or intended to be leased
by a third party purchaser to another party. In certain situations, the Company may retain recourse obligations
to a financing institution involved in providing financing to the ultimate lessee in the event the lessee of the
equipment defaults on its lease obligations. In certain such instances, the Company may refurbish and remarket
the equipment on behalf of the financing company, should the ultimate lessee default on payment of the lease.
In certain circumstances, should the resale price of such equipment fall below certain predetermined levels, the
Company would, under these agreements, reimburse the financing company for any such shortfall in sale price.
When such recourse obligations are of such a magnitude to indicate that substantial risk of ownership of the
equipment has not transferred to the third party purchaser, the Company would record the transaction as a
financing transaction to the extent they are material individually or in the aggregate to the operating results of
the period in which the transactions occur.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company’s accounts receivable are customer obligations due under normal trade terms, carried at face value
less an allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company evaluates its allowance for doubtful accounts on an ongoing
basis and adjusts for potential credit losses when it determines that receivables are at risk for collection based upon
the length of time receivables are outstanding, past transaction history and various other criteria. Receivables are
written off against reserves in the period they are determined to be uncollectible.

Product Warranties

Presstek warrants its products against defects in material and workmanship for various periods, determined by the
product, generally from a period of ninety days to a period of one year from the date of installation or shipment.
We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. While we engage in
product quality programs and processes, our warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates, material usage
and service costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Should actual product failure rates, material usage or
service costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be required.

Inventory Valuation

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, with cost determined using the first-in, first-out
method. We assess the recoverability of inventory to determine whether adjustments for impairment are required.

Inventory that is in excess of future requirements is written down to its estimated value based upon forecasted
demand for its products. If actual demand is less favorable than what has been forecasted by management,
additional inventory write-downs may be required.
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Property, Plant and Equlpment Net

Property, plant and equ1pment are stated at cost and are deprec1ated usmg a stralght-llne method over their
respective estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining term of .
the lease or the life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives assigned to the Company’s other property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Buildings and imptovements‘ ......... L e L . P .. 25-30 years
Production equipment and other ............. T P P - 5-10 years -
Office furniture and equipment ............ e T, " 3-7 years”

The Company periodically rf;viéws the remaining lives of property, plant and equipment as a function of the
original estimated lives assigned to-these ‘assets for purposes of recording appropriate depreciation expense. Factors
that could impact the estimated useful life of a ﬁxed asset, in addition to physical deterioration from the passage- of
time and depletion, include, but are not limited to, plans of the enterprise and anticipated use of the assets. During
the fourth quarter of 2005, as part of its periodic teview process, the Company performed a review of the
machinery and equipment of its Lasertel subsidiary, and related assumptlons and expectations for this machinery
and equipment. As a result of this review, the Company determined that the original estimated useful life of five
years assigned to certain assets at the time of purchase should be extended to seven years. The effect of this change
in accounting estimate resulted in a reduction to depreciation expense of $0.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2003,
and contributed $0.3 million to net income and $0.01 to reported basic and:diluted earnings per share for fiscal
2005. ‘ '

Acquisitions

In accordance with the purchase method of accounting, the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
determined and recorded as of the date of the acquisition. The Company utilizes an independent valuation specialist
to determine the fair values of identifiable intangible assets acquired in order to determine the portion of the
purchase price allocable to these assets. Costs to acquire the business, including transaction costs, are allocated to
the fair value of net assets acqulred Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill.

As part the allocation of purchase price, the ‘Company records liabilities, inéluding lease termination costs and
certain employee severance costs, in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 95-3, Recognition of
Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase Business Combination. Throughout the allocatlon period, these accruals
are reviewed and adJusted for changes in cost and timing assumptions.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets . ch

Presstek has goodwill and net intangible assets of $35.1 million at December 31, 2005. Goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives are tested annually for impairment in accordance with the goodwill provisions of

SFAS 142. Intangible assets with estimated lives and other long-lived assetstare reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be
recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets
(“SFAS 144"). Recoverability of intangible assets with estimated lives and other long-lived assets is measured by
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset or asset group to future net undiscounted pretax cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset or asset group. If these comparisons indicate that an asset is not recoverable, the
Company will recognize an impairment loss for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset or asset group
exceeds the related -estimated fair value. Estimated fair value is based on either discounted future pretax operating
cash flows or appraised values, depending on the nature of the asset. The Company determines the discount rate for
this analysis based on the expected internal rate of return of the related business and does not allocate interest
charges to the asset or asset group being measured. Considerable judgment is required to estimate discounted future
operating cash flows. Judgment is also required in determining whether an event has occurred that may impair the
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value of goodwill or identifiable intangible assets: Factors that could indicate that an impairment may exist include
significant underperformance relative to plan or long-term projections, strategic changes in business strategy,
significant negative industry or economic trends or a significant decline in our stock price for a sustained period of
time. We must make assumptions about future cash ﬂows future operating plans dlscount rates and other factors in
the models and valuation reports.

Patents represent the cost of preparing and filing applications to patent the Company’s proprietary technologies, in
addition to certain patent and license rights obtained in the Company’s acquisitions or other related transactions.
Such costs are amortized over a period ranging from five to seven years, beginning on the date the patents or rights
are issued or acquired.

From time to time the Company enters into agreements with third parties under which the third party will design
and prototype a product incorporating Presstek products and technology. The capitalized costs associated with these
types of agreements will be amortized over the estimated sales life-cycle and future cash flows from sales of the
product. The Company does not amortize, capitalized costs related to either patents or purchased intellectual
property until the respective asset has been placed into service.

The Company amortizes license agreements and loan ongmanon fees over the term of the respectwe agreement.
The amortizable lives of the Company’s other 1ntang1ble assets are as follows

Trade names ....... e e e e e e S 2 -3 years
Customer relationships . .. .. DI D T S P 7 - 10 years
Software licenses................... ... U 3 years
NON-COMPELE COVENANES . .. ..ttt il ettt e ees 5 years

Accounting for Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in wh1ch the differences are expected to
reverse. A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is recorded if, based on the weight of available evidence,
it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

We monitor the realization of our deferred tax assets based on changes in circumstances; for example, recurring
periods of income for tax purposes following h1st0r1ca1 periods of cumulative losses or changes in tax laws or
regulations. Qur income tax provisions and our assessment of the realizability of our deferred tax assets involve
significant judgments and estimates. If we continue to generate taxable income through proﬁtable operations in
future years we may be required to recognize these deferred tax assets through the reduction of the valuation
allowance which would result in a material benefit to our results of operations in the period in which the benefit is
determined, excluding the recognition of the portion of the valuation allowance which relates to net deferred tax
assets acquired in a business combination and stock compensatlon

The Company does not provide for U.S. income taxes on the undistributed eammgs of its foreign subSIdranes
which the Company considers to be permanent investments.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes
and Error Corrections (“SFAS 154”), which replaces APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes and SFAS No. 3,
Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements — An Amendment of APB Opinion No. 28..

SFAS 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of accounting changes and error corrections: It
establishes retrospective application, or the latest' practicable date, as the required method for reporting a change in.
accounting principle and the reporting of a correction of an error. SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December. 15, 2005 and is required to be adopted by -.
Presstek in the first- quarter of fiscal 2006. ‘
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In December 2004, the- FASB-issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based. Payment.(“SFAS 123R”), which replaces . .
SFAS 123, and supersedes APB 25. SFAS 123R requires-all share-based payments to employees, including grants.
of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on théir: fair values beginning‘with
the first interim or annual period after June 15, 2005. In April 2005, the SEC. postponed the effecnve date of o
SFAS 123R uniti the- 1ssuer s ﬁrst ﬁscal year beglnmng after June 15 2005 o

In March 2005, itie SEC 1ssued Staff Accountlng Bulletm No. 107 (“SAB 107”) regardmg the SEC’s 1ntcrpretat10n
of SFAS 123R and the valuation of share-based payments for pubhc compames In accordance w1th this ‘tule, the
Company will adopt SFAS 123R in the ﬁrst quarter of ﬁscal 2006 and w111 adopt thxs guldance usmg the modlﬁed
prospective method. On December 31, 2005 in accordance w1th the prowsxons of 1ts optlon plans, the Company ‘
accelerated the vesting_ of all of its outstandmg options to purchase common stock and accordmgly, had no
unvested optlons as of that date. Any stock compensation expense in future penods would relate to optxons or ‘
warrants to purchase common stock issued subsequent to December 31, 2005. =

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs (“SFAS 151), an amendment of Accounting
Research Bulletin (“ARB”) No. 43, Chapter 4, Inventory Pricing. SFAS 151 amends previous guidance regarding
treatment of abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage. This Statement

requires that those items be recognized as current period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of .
“so abnormal” which was the criterion specified in ARB No. 43. In addition, this Statement requires that the
allocation of fixed production overheads to the cost of the production be based on normal capacity of the
production facilities. This pronouncement is effective for the Company for fiscal periods beginning October 1,

2005. We are currently reviewing the impact of implementing SFAS 151 on our consolidated balance sheet,
statement of income and statement of cash flows.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not participate in transactions that generate relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities (“SPEs”), which
would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet at_'rangements or other contractually
narrow or limited purpose. As of December 31, 2005, we were not involved in any unconsolidated SPE
transactions.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk .

We are exposed to a variety of market risks, including changes in interest rates primarily as a result of our
borrowing activities, commodity price risk, and to a lesser extent, our investing activities and foreign currency
fluctuations. The Company has established procedures to- manage its ﬂuctuanons in 1nterest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates.

Our long-term borrowings are in variable rate instruments, with interest rates tied to either the Prime Rate or the
LIBOR. A 100 basis point change in these rates would have an impact of approximately $0.4 million on our annual
interest expense, assuming consistent levels of floating rate debt with those held at the end of fiscal 2005.

Commodity price movements create a market risk by affecting the price we must pay for certain raw materials. The
Company purchases aluminum for use in manufacturing consumables products and is embedded in certain
components we purchase from major suppliers. From time to time, we enter into agreements with certain suppliers
to manage price risks within a specified range of prices; however, our suppliers generally pass on significant
commodity price changes to us in the form of revised prices on future purchases. In general, the Company has not
used commodity forward or option contracts to manage this market risk. '
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" The Company. operates foreign subsidiaries in Canada and. Europe and is exposed to foreign currency exchange rate

risk inherent in our sales commitments, anticipated sales, anticipated;purchases and assets and liabilities
denominated in.currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Presstek routinely evaluates whether the foreign exchange risk
associated with its foreign currency exposures acts'as a natural foreign currency hedge for other offsetting amounts
denominated in the same currency. In general, the Company does not hedge the net assets or net income of its
foreign subsidiaries. In addition, certain key customers and strategic partners are not located in the United States.
As a result, these parties may be subject to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. If their home country currency
were to decrease in value relatlve to the United States dollar ‘their ability to purchase and market our products
could be adversely affected and our products may become less competitive to them. This may have an adverse
impact on our business. Likewise, certain major supphers are not located in the United States and thus, such
suppliers are sub_]ect to foreign exchange rate risks in transacuons with us. Decreases in the value of their home

" country currency, versus that of the Umted States dollar “could cause fluctuatlons in supply pricing Wthh could
have an adverse effect on our business.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Presstek, Inc.
Hudson, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Presstek, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005,
January 1, 2003, and January 3, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits. '

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects, the
financial position of Presstek, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005, January 1, 2005 and January 3,
2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005, based on the criteria established in Infernal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) and our report dated March 16, 2006 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s BDO SEmDMAaN, LLP
BDO Seidman, LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 16, 2006
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PRESSTEK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per-share data)

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents . ....... ...ttt
Accounts receivable, net................. . ....., e e
1o 110y o (=) T 1 1= (O PP
OLher CUTTENL A5SBES . ottt v et et ettt ettt ot e et et ste s iae s inoeanennns

Total CUTTENE ASSELS .« o« v v ettt s ittt it e e it eaeannescnsatasnanscesnnennnn
Property, plant and equipment, net ............. e e e e e e
Intangible aSsets, MEt .. ... o ittt e
GoOAWIll . .o o e e e e e e e
Other NONCUITENL @SSES . . . vttt vt ettt et n e ottt teet e ie e eneennenennnnns

TOtAl ASSEES & o o v vttt e et e e e e e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligation.................:...
Line of credit ... .ot e e e
Accounts payable . ... ... e e e
ACCTUEd EXPENSES . ..ottt e e
Deferred reVenUE . . ... oottt e e

Total current liabilities .. ...... ..ttt e e
Long-term debt and capital lease obligation, less current portion.....................
Deferred iNnCOME taXeS . . o v ve ittt it e e e

Total HabilIIES .+ v v v vve et e e e e e e . B

Commitments and contingencies (See Note 20)
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued. . .....

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 75,000,000 shares authorized, 35,366,024 and
34,896,985 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005 and January 1,
2005, respectively .. ... Ceeea

Additional paid-in capital .. ............. e e e e e e
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10ss). . ...
Accumulated defiCit . ... e i i i ettt e e

Total stockholders’ eqUity .. .......couiiinitiiin it iieae e
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity. ............oviiiniriiirinnenernnen.

December 31, January 1,
2005 2005
$ 5615 $ 8739
44,088 38,946
50,083 44,229
1,175 1,499
100,961 93,413
45,250 47372
11,974 10,460
23,089 18,888
213 1,185
$181,487  $171,318
$ 7,037 $ 5,500
6,036 6,822
21,199 13,394
16,718 16,060
8,579 10,520
59,569 52,296
22,570 29,500
715 120
82,854 81,916

354 349
106,268 102,962

(59) 107

(7,930) (14,016)
98,633 89,402
$181,487  $171,318

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PRESSTEK, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per-share data)

Fiscal year ended
December 31, January 1,  January 3,

2005 2005 2004
Revenue .
Product . ... e $225,619 $116,788  $82,853
Service and Parts . ... ..o 48,521 13,063 4,379
TOtAl TEVEIMUE . . . o vttt et e et e e e e e e e e 274,140 129,851 87,232
Cost of revenue .
Product ... ..o 159,282 78,252 48,235
Service and Parts ... ... .. 32,862 9,135 2,916
Total cost of revenue . . ... ... i i i e 192,144 87,387 51,151
GIOSS PIOTIt . ..ottt et ettt et s 81,996 42,464 36,081
Operating expenses _
Research and development ............... e e e 7,335 6,460 7,061
Sales, marketing and customer SUPPOrt . ...............iiaaaain 40,396 17,675 12,272
General and adminiStrative . .. ..ottt e e e 21,187 12,471 8,399
Amortization of intangible assets ...... T 2,724 1,315 964
Restructuring and special charges (credits) .......................... 874 (392) 550
Total operating expenses ............... ........................ 72,516 37,529 29,246
Income from continuing operations .......... P 9,480 4,935 6,835
Interest and other income (expense), net ... .........coveriieennnnnnn, (2,220) (870) (167)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes ................. 7,260 4,065 6,668
Provision for INCOME tXeS . ..ottt e ettt et et 1,174 200 —
Income from continuing Operations .............c.c.coveerninnverninnoe. 6,086 3,865 6,668
Income from discontinued operations...............c.ioiiiiiiiiien... — — 1,429
NEEINCOME . . 1\ et ettt e et e et et et e e et $ 608 $ 385 $ 8,097
Earnings per common share — basic
Income from continuing OPErations . ..........c.euuenereeannerneens $ 017 $ o011 $ 020
Income from discontinued operations. . .. .. Y — — 0.04

$ 0.17 $§ 011 $ 0.24

Earnings per common share — diluted
Income from continuing operations . ... ... I $ 017 $§ 011 $ 020
Income from discontinued operations. . . . .. P — — 0.04

$ 017 $ 011 § 024

Weighted average shares outstanding

Weighted average shares outstanding — basic ........................ 35,153 34,558 34,167
Dilutive effect of options ....... ... ... .. 419 799 233
Weighed average shares outstanding — diluted ....................... 35,572 35,357 34,400

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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.- PRESSTEK, INC..:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

Retained

Accumulated
Additional other earnings
Common stock paid-in comprehensive  (accumulated e
N ; Shares Par value capital income (loss) deficit) ’ thal
Balance at December 28, 2002 . ..... 34125 $341  $97403 $ — $(25.978)  $71,766
Issuance of common stock .......... 71 1 366 — — - 367
Unrealized loss related to interest rate ' , o o
swaps(l) . ... i —_ _— — A7) — » @n
Net income ................ R — — — — 8097~ _ 8,007
Balance at January 3, 2004 .. ... ... 34,202 342 97,769 - 4D (17,881).; - - 80,183
Issuance of common stock ..:....... . 695 7 5,193 . — — 5,200
Realization of loss related to interest -
rate swaps(l) ............ SR —_ — _ . 47 - — Lo 47
Currency translation adjustments(1) ... — — — 107 —_ 2 107
Netincome .................c. ... — — : — — 3,865 3,865
Balance at January 1, 2005 .. ....... 34,897 349 102,962 ©° 107 (14,016) 89,402
Issuance of common stock.......... 469 5 3,306 — ' — 3,311
Currency translation adjustments(1). . . — — — (166) — (166)
Net income ............. e — — — — 6,08 6,086
Balance at December 31, 2005 ...... 35,366 $354 $106,268 $ (59) $ (7.930) . $98,633
Comprehensivé income is ;e;lculéted as follows: ; ]
) i ‘ Year Ended
" December 31, January 1,  January 3,
2005 2005 2004
Netincome.............. e e e e : $6,086 - $3,865 $8,097
Adjustments to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)(1) ...... -(166) 154 CH)
Comprehensive income ................ S S o $5,920 $4,019  $8,050

- - . . Coe Ly
" The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PRESSTEK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Fiscal year ended
December 31, January 1, January 3,
2005 2005 2004
Operating activities ‘ ; -
NEt ACOME .. . . oo v e e vee e aenneenns I S ... $ 608 $ 3865 $ 8097
Less income from discontinued operations . ... e — — (1,429)
Income from continuing operations ........... . e 6,086 3,865 6,668
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating ‘ '
activities: :
"DEPIEciation . . ... .vvr et e 8,225 7,791 7,903
Amortization of intangible assets ............. .. ... 2,724 1,315 964
Restructuring and special charges (credits) ................. S 874 (392) 550
Provision for warranty costs . ...... ... it . 1,558 1,109 1,228
Provision for accounts receivable allowances....................... 1,397 1,949 1,358
Stock compensation expense . ............. e : - 148 - —
Loss on disposal of assets . ............... S e 153 24 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . .................. e (7.344) (642  (1,172)
Inventories ........coveveivinerninnnn. e e (7,054) (6,351) (639)
Other current assets . ......vvevunnn.... e e 214 324 (510)
Other noncurrent assets ... ............. e e e 43 (304) (309)
Accounts payable .. .................. e 9,218 - (4,517 1,419
Accrued eXpenses. . ................... e (2,486) 6,936 (3,508)
Deferred revenue .............cooo.u.. e ©(1,940) 1,039 300
Net cash provided by operating activities .. ................... 11,730 6,361 14,252
Investing activities ,
Purchase of property, plant and equipment .......................... (6,129) (2,194) (1,344)
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired ......... e e (3,467) . (55,468) - —_—
Investment in.patents and other intangible assets ..................... 2,176) (387) (399)
Proceeds from the sale of long-lived assets .. ........................ 124 5 —
Net cash used in investing activities. . . .. ....oovvneernnernnnn. (11,648)  (58,044)  (1,743)
Financing activities :
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock ....................... 3,113 5,200 367
- Proceeds fromterm loan ............ . i e — 35,000 15,000
Repayments of term loan and capital lease .......................... (5,503) (14,464) (7,953)
Net borrowings (repayments) under line of credit agreement............ (786) 6,822 —
Repayments of lease line of credit . ......... e e —_ — (9,290)
Debt financing CoStS ........trtint i i e e — (332) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities.............. (3,176) 32,226 (1,876)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ............ (30 — —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .................... (3,129) (19,457 10,633
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ........... .. .......... 8,739 28,196 17,563
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period .............. ... ... .. ..... $ 5,615 $ 8,739 $28,196




Fiscal year ended

December 31, January 1, January 3,
2008 -, 2005 2004

Supplemental disclosure of cash Jlow mformatwn
Cash paid for interest .. ...oovennrtei ittt $ 2,459 $ 923 $ 707
Cash paid-for income taxes . .. ........ou v enannns e . % 327 3 — 5 —
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows related to busmess acqmsmons ‘ :
The acquisitions are summarized as follows: c
Fair value of assets acquired and adjustments to final purchase price
allocations, excluding cash ............... ... .. ... ... ..., 2o 8 2,830 0 $79,497
Payments in connection with the acq\nsmons net of cash acquired : (3,467)  *(55,468) -

Liabilities assumed and adjustments to final purchase pr1ce allocations $ (637 $ 24,029

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities

On July 2, 2005, the Company entered into a series of agreements with a customer and a material end-user
whereby the Company received ownership of certain assets of the customer, comprised of patents, intellectual
property and know-how, as well as the customer’s rights under a supply contract it had with the material end-user,
in exchange for the Company’s rights to its accounts receivable for trade and advances by the Company to the
customer. A summary of the transacuon is as follows

Fiscal year .

.~ ended
" December 31,
. o 2005
Consideration by the Company
Accounts receivable . ... .... P e e $ 88%
Other noncurrent assets . ....... P G : » 920
Total non-cash consideration............... e e iy $. 1,808 .
Assets received by the Company : - :
Patents .....~....0...uuuiuun.. [ . -8 1,677
Customer contracts/customer l1st ........ R P R 131
Total non-cash assets received ... .. R '$ 1,808

On November 23, 2005, the Company entered into a capnal lease to obtain equ1pment A summary of tl'ns
transactlon is as_ follows

Cap1tal lease financing entered into by the Company

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obhgauons ...... $ | 40
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations. .......... e . 70
: | R $ 110

Asset financed through capltal lease by the Company y
Property, plant and equipment .................. e, e 8110

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PRESSTEK, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. NATURE OF THE BUSINESS

Presstek, Inc. (“Presstek”, the “Company”, “we”) is a market-focused company primarily engaged in the design,
manufacture, sales and service of high- technolt)gy digital imaging solutions to the graphic arts industry worldwide.
We are helping to lead the industry’s transformation from analog print production methods to digital imaging
technology. We are a leader in the development of advanced printing systems using digital imaging equipment and
consumables-based solutions that economically benefit the user through a streamlined workflow and chemistry free,
environmentally responsible operation. We are also’a leading sales and service channel in the small to mid-sized
commercial, quick and in-plant printing markets offermg a w1de range of solunons to. over 20,000 customers
worldwide. :

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING. POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation- and Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subs1dxanes All s1gmﬁcant
1ntercompany accounts and transactions have been ehrmnated

On November 5, 2004, the Company, through its wholly -owned subsxdxary, ABD International, Inc. (“ABchk”)
completed the acquisition of certain assets and the assumption of certain liabilities of The A.B. Dick Company,
which the Company acquired through a Section 363 sale in the United States Bankruptcy Court. On July 30, 2004,
we acquired the stock of Precision Lithograining Corp. (“Precision”). The results of these acquired entities are
included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income and of Cash Flows for the periods subsequent to
their respective acquisitions.

The Company’s operations are currently organized into three business segments: (i) Presstek; (ii) Precision; and
(iii) Lasertel. The Presstek segment is primarily engaged in the development, manufacture, sale and servicing of
digital imaging systems and patented printing plate technologies for direct-to-press, or on-press applications, and
CTP, or off-press applications, for the graphic arts and printing industries, primarily serving the short-run, full-color
market segment. The Precision segment is primarily engaged in the development, manufacture and sale of our
patented digital plates, as Well as digital analog plates for other customers. The Lasertel segment is primarily
engaged in the manufacture and development of hlgh-powered laser diodes for sale to Presstek and to external
customers. The Company implemented a new internal management réporting structure in connection with
organizational changes related to the integration of the ABDick business into the Company’s Presstek business. The
Company analyzed the impact of this integration on its operating segments and concluded that the results of
operations and balance sheet information for the former ABDick segment should be combined with those of the
former Presstek segment and reported as the new Presstek business segment. Accordingly, the historical results of
the Presstek segment included herein have been restated to include the results of the former ABDick segment. Any
future changes to this organizational structuré may result in changes to the business segments currently disclosed.

The Company operates and reports on a 52- or 53-week, fiscal year ending on the Saturday closest to

December 31. Accordingly, the financial statements presented herein include the financial results for the 52-week
fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (“fiscal 2005™), the 52-week fiscal year ended January 1, 2005 (“fiscal
2004”’) and the 53-week fiscal year ended January 3, 2004 (“fiscal 2003").

Use of Estimates

The Company prepares its financial statements in' accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions also affect the amount of revenues and
expenses during the reported period. Management believes the most judgmental estimates include those related to
product returns, warranty obligations, allowance for doubtful accounts, slow-moving -and obsolete inventories,
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income taxes, the valuation of goodwill, other intangible assets and tangible long-lived assets and warranty
obligations. The Company bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience and various other appropriate
factors, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
and the amounts of revenues and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue principally from the sale of products (equipment, consumables, laser diodes) and
services (equipment maintenance contracts, installation, training, support, and spare parts). Revenue is recognized
when persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the
price to the customer is fixed or determinable, collection is reasonably assured and no future services related to the
installation are required. When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as equipment and services,
revenue is allocated to each element based on its relative fair value. When the fair value of an undelivered element
cannot be determined, the Company defers revenue for_the delivered elements until the undelivered elements are
delivered. A general right of return or cancellation does not exist once product is delivered to the customer;
however, the Company may elect, in certain circumstances, to accept returns of product. Product revenues are
recorded net of estimated returns, which are adjusted periodically, based upon historical rates of return. The
estimated cost of post-sale obligations, including product warranties, is accrued at the time revenue is recognized
based on historical experience.

The Company records amounts invoiced to customers in excess of revenue recognized as deferred revenue until all
revenue recognition criteria are met.

The Company accounts for shipping and handling fees passed on to customers as revenue. Shipping and handling
costs are reported as components of cost of revenue (product) and cost of revenue (service and parts).

Products

End-User Customers — Under the Company’s standard terms and conditions of sale of equipment, title and risk
of loss is transferred to third-party end-user customers upon completion of installation and revenue is recognized
accordingly, unless customer acceptance is uncertain or significant deliverables remain. Salels‘ of other products,
including printing plates, are recognized at the time of shipment.

OEM Relationships — Product revenue and any related royalties for products sold to companies with whom we
have an OEM relationship are recognized at the time of shipment. Contracts with companies with whom we have
OEM relationships do not include price protection or product return rights; however, the Company may elect, in
certain circumstances, to accept returns of product.

Distributor Relationships — Revenue for product sold to distributors, whereby the distributor is responsible for
installation, is recognized at shipment. Revenue for equipment sold to distributors whereby the Company is
responsible for installation, for which the installation is not deemed inconsequential, is recognized upon
completion of installation. Except in the case of termination of the contract, which includes product return rights,
contracts with distributors do not include price protection or product return rights; however, the Company may
elect, in certain circumstances, to accept returns of product.

Services and Parts ‘ ‘

Revenue for installation services, including time and material contracts, is recognized as services are rendered.
Revenue associated with maintenance or extended service agreements is recognized ratably over the contract
period. Revenue associated with training and support services is recognized as services are rendered. Certain fees
and other reimbursements are recognized as revenue when the related services have been performed or the
revenue is otherwise earned.

Sales Transactions Financed with Recourse Clauses
From time to time the Company has engaged in sales of equipment that is leased by or intended to be leased by
a third party purchaser to another party. In certain situations, the Company may retain recourse obligations to a
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financing institution involved in providing finanéing to the ultimate lessee in the event the lessee of the
equipment defaults on its lease obligations. In certain such instances, the Company may refurbish and remarket
the equipment on behalf of the financing company, should the ultimate lessee default on payment of the lease. In
certain circumstances, should the resale price of such equipment fall below certain predetermined levels, the
Company would, under these agreements, reimburse the financing company for any such shortfall in sale price.
When such recourse obligations are of such a magnitude to indicate that substantial risk of ownership of the
equipment has not transferred to the third party purchaser, the Company would record the transaction as a
financing transaction to the extent they are material individually or in the aggregate to the operating results of
the period in which the transactions occur.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value due to the
short-term maturity of these instruments. The carrying amounts of the Company’s bank borrowings under its credit
agreement, approximate fair value because the interest rates are based on floating rates identified by reference to
market rates. The carrying amount of the Company’s capital lease approximates fair value because the amount
financed is equivalent to the fair value of the long-lived asset acquired in the transaction. At both December 31,
2005 and January 1, 2005, the fair value of the Company’s long-term debt approximated carrying value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash investments, which may include savings deposits, certificates of deposit, money market funds and highly
liquid debt instruments, have original maturities of three months or less and are classified as cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash
equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company may invest in high-quality money market instruments, securities
of the U.S. government, and high-quality corporate issues. Accounts receivable are generally unsecured and are
derived from the Company’s customers located around the world. The Company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers and maintains an allowance for potential credit losses.

Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company’s accounts receivable are customer obligations due under normal trade terms, carried at face value
less an allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company evaluates its allowance for doubtful accounts on an ongoing
basis and adjusts for potential credit losses when it determines that receivables are at risk for collection based upon
the length of time receivables are outstanding, past transaction history and various other criteria. Receivables are
written off against reserves in the period they are determined to be uncollectible.

Inventories, Net

Inventories include material, direct labor and related manufacturing overhead, and are stated at the lower of cost
(determined on a first-in, first-out basis) or net realizable value. The Company assesses the recoverability of
inventory to determine whether adjustments for impairment are required. Inventory that is in excess of future
requirements is written down to its estimated value based upon forecasted demand for its products. If actual
demand is less favorable than what has been forecasted by management, additional inventory write-downs may be
required. '

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using a straight-line method over their
respective estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining term of
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the lease or the life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives assigned to the Company’s other property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Buildings and improvements . ... ............c..oiiiait i e 25 - 30 years
Production equipment and other. ........ ... ... ... .. ... . . 5 - 10 years
Office furniture and equipment

The Company periodically reviews the remaining lives of property, plant and equipment as a function of the
original estimated lives assigned to these assets for purposes of recording appropriate depreciation expense. Factors
that could impact the estimated useful life of a fixed asset, in addition to physical deterioration from the passage of
time and depletion, include, but are not limited to, plans of the enterprise and anticipated use of the assets. During
the fourth quarter of 20035, as part of its periodic review process, the Company performed a review of the
machinery and equipment of its Lasertel subsidiary and related assumptions and expectations for this machinery
and equipment. As a result of this review, the Company determined that the original estimated useful life of five
years assigned to certain assets at the time of purchase should be extended to seven years. The effect of this change
in accounting estimate resulted in a reduction to depreciation expense of $0.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2005,
and contributed $0.3 million to net income and $0.01 to reported basic and diluted earnings per share for fiscal
2005. : L

Acguisitions

In accordance with the purchase method of accdunting, the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
determined and recorded as of the date of the acquisition. The Company utilizes an independent valuation specialist
to determine the fair values of identifiable intangible assets acquired in order to determine the portion of the
purchase price allocable to these assets. Costs to acquire the business, including transaction costs, are allocated to
the fair value of net assets acquired. Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. ' ‘

As part the allocation of purchase price, the Company records liabilities, including lease termination costs and
certain employee severance costs, in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 95-3, Recognition of
Liabilities in Connection with a Purchase Business Combination. Throughout the allocation period, these accruals
are reviewed and adjusted for changes in cost and timing assumptions.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets consist of patents, intellectual property, license agreements and certain identifiable intangible
assets resulting from business combinations, including trade names, customer relationships, non-compete covenants,
software licenses and loan origination fees.

Patents represent the cost of preparing and filing applications to patent the Company’s proprietary technologies, in
addition to certain patent and license rights obtained in the Company’s acquisitions or other related transactions.
Such costs are amortized over a period ranging from five to seven years, beginning on the date the patents or rights
are issued or acquired.

From time to time the Company enters into agreements with third parties under which the third party will design
and prototype a product incorporating Presstek products and technology. The capitalized costs associated with these
types of agreements will be amortized over the estimated sales life-cycle and future cash flows from sales of the
product. The Company does not amortize capitalized costs related to either patents or purchased intellectual
property until the respective asset has been placed into service.

At December 31, 2005 and Januvary 1, 2005, the Company had recorded $1.5 million and $0.9 million, respectively,
of costs related to patents and intellectual property not yet in service.

The Company amortizes license agreements and loan origination fees over the term of the respective agreement.
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The amortizable lives of the Company’s other intangible assets are as follows:

Trade MAIMIES . . . ot vttt ittt et ettt e et e e i e e 2 - 3 years,
Customer relationships ... ... ..ot i i e e s 7 - 10 years
Software licenses . . .........ccviivieunnn., P 3 years
NON-COMPELe COVEMANLS ..o\t v vttt iiit it ettt einae e s, 5 years

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for acquisitions exceeds the fair value of net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 1427), goodwill is not amortized, but rather, is tested
annually for impairment. The Company has recorded goodwill aggregating $23.1 million and $18.9 million at
December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, related to the ABDick and Precision acquisitions.

Impairment of Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with the goodwill provisions of SFAS 142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are
tested annually, on the first day of the third quarter, for impairment. The Company’s impairment review is based on
a fair value test. The Company uses its judgment in assessing whether assets may have become impaired between
annual impairment tests. Indicators such as unexpected adverse business conditions, economic factors, unanticipated
technological change or competitive activities, loss of key personnel and acts by governments and courts may signal
that an asset has been impaired. Should the fair value of goodwill, as determined by the Company at any
measurement date, fall below its carrying value, a charge for impairment of goodwill will be recorded in the

period.

Intangible assets with estimated lives and other long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable in
accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (“SFAS 144°").
Recoverability of intangible assets with estimated lives and other long-lived assets is measured by comparison of
the carrying amount of an asset or asset group to future net undiscounted pretax cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset or asset group. If these comparisons indicate that an asset is not recoverable, the Company
will recognize an impairment loss for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset or asset group exceeds
the related estimated fair value. Estimated fair value is based on either discounted future pretax operating cash
flows or appraised values, depending on the nature of the asset. The Company determines the discount rate for this
analysis based on the expected internal rate of return of the related business and does not allocate interest charges
to the asset or asset group being measured. Considerable judgment is required to estimate discounted future
operating cash flows. '

Product Warranties

The Company warrants its products against defects in material and workmanship for various periods generally from
a period of ninety days to one year from the date of installation or shipment. The Company’s typical warranties
require it to repair or replace defective products during the warranty period at no cost to the customer. The
Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties, based on historical experience, at the time revenue
is recognized. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liability and adjusts the
amounts as necessary. The estimated liability for product warranties could differ materially from future actual
warranty costs. ’

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs include payroll and related expenses for personnel, parts and supplies, and
contracted services required to conduct our equipment, consumables and laser diode development efforts. Research
and development costs are charged to expense when incurred.
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Advertising Costs . o o

Advertising costs are expensed as mcurred .and are reported as a component of “Sales, marketmg and customer
support” expenses in the Company’s Consolrdated Statements of Income. Advertising expenses were $0.6 million
in both fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 and $0.4 million in fiscal 2003.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and habrlmes are determined based on differences between: the ﬁnancral statement and tax bases
of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years.in whrch the differences are expected to
reverse. A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is recorded if, based on the weight of available evidence,
it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company monitors the realization of its deferred tax .assets based on changes in circumstances; for example,
recurring periods of income for tax purposes following historical periods of cumulative losses or changes in tax
laws or regulations. The Company’s income tax provisions.and:its assessment of the realizability of its deferred tax
assets involve significant judgments and estimates. If the Company continued to generate taxable income through
profitable operations in future years it may:be required to-recognize these deferred. tax assets through the reduction
of the valuation allowance which would result in a material benefit to its results of operations in the period in - -
which the benefit is determined, excluding the recognition of the portion-of the valuation allowance which relates
to net deferred tax assets acqu1red in a business combination and stock compensatron o

The Company does not provide for U.S. income taxes on the undistributed eammgs of 1ts forergn subsrdlanes
which the Company considers to be permanent investments. »

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock ‘options granted to employees under the provisions of Accounting Principles
Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 25”), as permitted by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
(“SFAS 123").-APB 25 prescribes that compensation cost be recognized for the difference, if any, between the fair
market value of the Company s stock and the option pnce on the grant date (the' “compensatory value") h -

The followmg table 1llustrates the eifec
value-based method of SFAS 123 to its awards for the purpose of recording expense for stock-based compensation
in each period presented (in thousands, except per share data):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

.Net income, as reported ....... A S .. $6,08 $3865 § 8097
Add: stock-based compensation expense tecognized ..... evoedeens 148 Tete T
Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation determined under the I
fa.u-value—based method for all awards, net of’ related tax effects ...... Y4011 (2,074 - (2 942)
Pro forma net income ............ ...... $2223  $1,791 $5155 '
Earnings per common share, as reported R r ' el
BaSIC. ..\t $ 017 $ 01 $ 024
Diluted . ... e . $ 017 $ 011 $ 024
Pro forma earnings per common share ‘ » -
Basic.............. e e e ~+.-$ 006 $ 005 $ 0.15;

Diluted .................oot. S e Lot 8 006§ 005 $ 0.15 v
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The weighted average fair values of options to purchase common stock granted in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 were.
$4.66, $5.85 and $3.59, respectively. The fair value of each option to purchase common stock is estimated on the
date of grant usmg the Black Scholes opt10n-pr1c1ng model w1th the folIowmg welghted average assumptions:

" . Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2005 - 2004 2003

Dividend yield .............. ...t P None None None

Expected VOLAtility . . .+« .voveerennnn ., TR 55.05% 63.38% '69.00% -
Risk-free interest rate ................. 00 LT . 455% - 3.71% 3.51%
,Expected opnon life (in years) ..... L R S e L.l 427 5100 549

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is comprised of net income, plus all changes in equity of a business enterprise during a-. ...
period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources, including any foreign
currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains and losses on marketable securities, or changes in-derivative
values.. These changes in equity are recorded as adjustments to “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)”
in the Company’s. Consolidated Financial Statements. The primary -components of *“ Accumulated .other
comprehensive income (loss)” are unrealized gains or losses on forelgn currency translation and changes in the
value of derivatives used to hedge interest rate exposure :

P

Foreigh' Currenci: Trdnslation

The Company’s foreign subsidiaries use the local currency as their functional currency. Accordingly, assets and
liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at current rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. The -
resulting.unrealized gains or losses:are reported under the caption, “Accumulated other comprehensive income -
(loss)” in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. Revenues and expenses from these subsidiaries are
translated at average monthly exchange rates.in effect for the periods in which the transactions .occur. Gains. and
losses arising from these foreign currency transactions are reported as a component: of “Interest and other income
(expense), net” in. the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income, The:Company reported Tosses on foreign -
currency transactions of approximately $3,000 and $133 000 in fiscal 2005 and 2004 respecuvely, and a gam of
apprommately $196, 000 in ﬁscal 2003 '

Derwanves

The Company entered into interest rate swap agreements with its lenders in October 2003, which were intended to
protect the Compariy’s long-term debt against fluctuations in. LIBOR rates. Under the interest rate swaps LIBOR
was set.at a minimum of 1.15% and a maximum of 4.25%. Because the interest rate-swap agreement did not.
qualify as a hedge for accounting purposes under SFAS No..133, Accountmg Jor Derivative Instruments and -
Hedging Activities (“SFAS 133”), and related amendments including SFAS No.. 149, Amendment of
Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedgmg Activities (“SFAS 149”), the Company. recorded a reduction
to expense of $28,000 in fiscal 2005 and an expense of $133,000 in fiscal 2004 to.mark these interest rate swap
agreements to market, The adjustment to fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was recorded.as a. -
component of other income. (expense). '

Earnings per Share ‘ oo a

Earnings per share is compnted under the provisions of SFAS 128, “Earnings per Share”. Accordingly, basic
earnings per. share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. For periods in which there is net income, diluted earnings per share is determined by
using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the
period unless the effect is antidilutive. Potential dilutive common shares consist of the incremental common shares
issuable upon the exercise of stock options and warrants.

i
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Approximately ‘843,000, 865,000 and 1,930,000 options and warrants to purchase common stock were excluded -
from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005, January 1, 2005 -.

and January 2, 2004, respectlvely, as therr effect Would be anudxlutwe The warrants had expired as of January 1,
2005.

“t

Reclassifications

Certain amounts i-n f)rior periods ‘have been reclassified to conform to current presentation.

Recent Accountmg Pronouncements

In May 2005, the Fmancral Accountmg Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 154 Accountmg Changes N
and Error Corrections (“SFAS 154”), which replaces APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes and SFAS: No. 3,
Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements — An Amendment of APB Opinion No. 28.

SFAS 154 provides guidance on the accounting for and reporting of accounting changes and error corrections. It
establishes retrospective application, or ‘the latest practicable date as the required method for reporting a change in
accountmg prmcrple and the reporting of a correction of an error SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and '
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005 and is required to be adopted by
Presstek in the first quarter of ﬁscal 2006 o

In December 2004 the FASB 1ssued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R”) which replaces
SFAS 123, and supersedes APB-25.-SFAS 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants

of employee 'stock options, to-be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values beginning with |
the first fiscal period after June 15, 2005.

In March 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB' 107”) regarding the SEC’s ‘interpretation
of SFAS 123R and the valuation of share- based payments for public companies. In accordance with'this rule, the
Company will adopt SFAS 123R in the first quarter of fiscal 2006 using the modified prospective method. On )
December 31; 2005, in accordance with the” provisions of its option plans, the Company accelerated the vesting of
all of its outstanding options to purchase common stock and, accordingly, had no unvested options as of that date.
Any stock compensation expense in future periods would relate to options or warrants to purchase common stock
issued subsequent to December 31, 2005.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs (‘“SFAS 1517), an amendment of Accounting
Research Bulletin (“ARB”) No. 43, Chapter 4, Inventory Pricing. SFAS 151 amends previous guidance regarding
treatment of abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage. This Statement
requires that those items be recognized as current period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of
“so abnormal” which was the criterion specified in ARB No. 43. In addition, this Statement requires that the
allocation of fixed production overheads to the cost of the production be based on normal capacity of the
production facilities. This pronouncement is effective for the Company for fiscal periods beginning October 1,
2005. The Company is currently reviewing the impact of implementing SFAS 151 on our consolidated balance
sheet, statement of income and statement of cash flows.

3. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
ABDick

On November 5, 2004, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, ABDick, completed the acquisition of
certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of The A.B. Dick Company, which the Company acquired through a
Section 363 sale in the United States Bankruptcy Court. The acquired business manufactured, marketed and
serviced offset systems and computer-to-plate (“CTP”) systems and related supplies for the graphics arts and
printing industries. In consideration, the Company paid the previous owners approximately $40.0 million in cash.
As part of this acquisition, the Company paid $5.1 million of transaction costs for legal, audit and other transaction
costs, and accrued, as purchase price adjustments, an aggregate of $3.0 million for integration costs (the
“integration cost accruals”), primarily related to the consolidation of ABDick’s Rochester, New York
manufacturing operations into the Company’s’ existing manufacturing facility at its corporate headquarters in
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Hudson, New Hampshire, and the closing of ABDick’s Niles, Illinois office facility. The consolidation of the
Rochester, New York manufacturing operations was substantially completed in the third quarter of 2005.

On August 8, 2005, as part of its previously announced plan to achieve cost savings with regard to the ABDick
operating segment, Presstek announced that in order to consolidate operations, the Company would close its Niles
office facility by December 31, 2005. The Niles facility was closed as planned on December 31, 2005. The
Company transferred certain executives of ABDick from the Niles facility to the Company’s headquarters in
Hudson. ABDick’s inside sales staff and other limited customer service operations were moved to a new facility in
the Chicago, Illinois area. The remaining activities associated with this initiative are expected to be completed in
fiscal 2006. These activities will result in the Company incurring miscellaneous incremental transition expenses.
(before any expected savings anticipated from the consolidation) aggregating approximately $0.75 million in cash as
charges to earnings. In the fiscal 2005 period subsequent to the announcement, the Company recorded $0.3 million
of miscellaneous incremental transition expenses, all of which were recordeéd in the fourth quarter.

In fiscal 2004, the Company had recorded integration cost accruals aggregating $1.5 million. In fiscal 2005, the
Company had recorded additional integration cost accruals aggregating $2.4 million, comprised of $2.3 million of
- additional severance and fringe benefits costs andg$0.1 million of lease termination and related costs. In fiscal 2005,
the Company performed the analysis required to finalize the purchase price allocation for the ABDick acquisition.
- As a result of this analysis, the Company identified $0.9 million of excess 1ntegratxon cost accruals and,.
accordingly, adjusted the amounts recorded to reflect the lower estimated requirements, with a corresponding offset
to goodwill. These amounts are reflected in the table below. Of the net $3.0 million accrued for these integration
activities, $2.7 million was recorded for severance and related costs primarily for personnel located at the Niles and
Rochester facilities and affected by the consolidation of operations and $0.3 million was recorded for costs related
to the affected facilities. The Company also expects to invest a total of approximately $1.25 million in capital
expenditures relating to facilities used by the operations affected by the consolidation. At December 31, 2005, the
Company had recorded $0.4 million of capitalized costs, primarily for the installation of new office space at the
Hudson headquarters facility and additional computer hardware and software required to support this transition. All '
of these accruals and charges relate to and were recorded by the Company’s Presstek operatmg segment.

v
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A summary of the transaction and the allocation of the purchase price are as follows (in thousands):

Consideration
Net cash paid........... . P R $40,000
Transaction costs . . .. ... P 5,121
INEEIALION COSLS . .« . v vt ettt ettt ettt et et et e e et e 3,029
Total consideration . ... ... ...ttt e e 48,150
Allocation of consideration to assets acquired (liabilities assumed)
Accounts receijvable .. ........... PR 16,930
INVentOmies . . .. e e 21,172
Other CUITENE @SSEIS . . . . vttt ettt ittt et ettt e e et 646
Property, plant and equipment .....................o0iiaian.n. I e 1,375
Other NONCUITENE ASSELS . . .\ vttt sttt e et e e et e e et et et et iee e, 109
Accounts payable and accrued eXpensSes . ... ...t e (7.472)
Deferred TeVENUE . .. o\ v ittt ettt e e et e L (8,899)
Fair value of net tangible assets acquired ......... ... ...t 23,861
Excess of consideration over fair value of net tangible assets acquired .......... e 24,289
Allocation of excess consideration to identifiable intangible assets
Trade names (estimated life of 3 years)............... e - 2,100
Customer relationships (estimated life of 10 years) ... .. e 3,800
Software license (estimated life of 3 years) ..................... e 450
6,350
Allocation of excess consideration to goodwill (deductible for tax purposes) ............. .. $17,939

The values assigned to inventory, property, plant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets were based upon
the results of an independent appraisal. The weighted average life of the identifiable intangible assets recorded in
connection with this transaction is 7.2 years.

The activity related to the Company’s integration cost accruals for the periods subsequent to the acquisition date is
as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal 2005 activity

Purchase accounting
adjustments offset to

goodwill
Balance Reversals — Balance
January 1, changes in December 31,
2005 Additions estimate Utilization 2005
Severance and fringe benefits .......... $ 795 $2,340 $(380)  $(1,513) $1,242
Lease termination and other costs ...... 703 75 (504) (179) 95

$1,498 = $2415 $(884) $(1,692) $1,337 |

Fiscal 2004 activity

Purchase
accounting
Balance adjustments Balance
January 3, offset to - January 1,
2004 goodwill Utilization 2005
Severance and fringe benefits................... ... $— $ 795 $— $ 795
Lease termination and other costs .................. = 703 — 703
$— $1,498 $— $1,498
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Precision

On July 30, 2004, the Company acquired the stock of Precision for an aggregate cash purchase price of

$12.1 million, net of cash acquired. Precision manufactures Anthem, Freedom and Aurora chemistry-free digital
print plates, and is also a provider of other conventional and digital printing plates for both web and sheet-fed
printing applications. A summary of the transaction and the final allocation of the purchase price are as follows (in
thousands): ‘

Consideration
Netcashpaid........................ e $12,127
Integration costs. .. ........o.vvunin.. e 400
Total conSIAeration ... ... ..ottt i e 12,527
Allocation of consideration to assets acquired (liabilities assumed) » v ‘
Accounts Teceivable . . ... e e 2,636
Y1711 () o (= 2,695
Property, plant and equipment ......... ... ... ... . i 6,065
Accounts payable and accrued expenses . [ ............................... P (5,279)
Fair value of net tangible assets acquired ...... R e e 6,117
Excess of consideration over fair value of net tangible assets acquired .................... 6,410

Allocation of excess consideration to identifiable intangible assets

Customer relationships (estimated life of TYEAS) © et 900

" Trade names (estimated life of 2 years). P 260
Non-compete covenants (estimated life of 5 years) .......... ... ... ..o L © 100
1,260

Allocation of excess consideration to goodwill (deductible for tax purposés) e $ 5,150

The Company did not incur any transaction costs related to the acquisition of Precision. The values assigned to
inventory, property, plant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets were based upon the results of an
independent appraisal. The weighted average life of the identifiable intangible assets recorded in connection with
this transaction is 5.8 years.

Pro forma results of operations

The following pro forma results of operations for the fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 have been prepared as though the
acquisitions of ABDick and Precision had occurred on December 28, 2002, the first day of fiscal 2003. This pro
forma financial information does not purport to be indicative of the results of operations that would have been
attained had the acquisitions been made as of December 29, 2002 or of results of operations that may occur in
future periods (in thousands, except per share data):

Fiscal Fiscal

e 2004 2003
Revenue................ooviiiiinnn, e v $290,171  $304,655
NEt iNCOME .« .+ . oo e ee et eae e [ $ 1,355  $ 11,930
Earnings per share (basic) ............ P $ 004 $ 035
Earnings per share (diluted) . ........ .. 0 . i $ 004 $ 035
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4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the third quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company filed a joint motion for dismissal of a lawsuit that PPG, Inc.
(“PPG”) brought against the Company’s subsidiary, Delta V Technologies, Inc., whose operations were
discontinued in fiscal 1999. As a result of the dismissal, the Company reversed all previously recorded liabilities
associated with this discontinued operation in the third quarter of fiscal 2003, resulting in net income of

$1.4 million from discontinued operations in fiscal 2003.

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND RELATED ALLOWANCES, NET

The components of accounts receivable, net of allowances, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows (in
thousands):
December 31,  January 1,

2005 2005
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE . . oot e e $47.495 $43,570
Less alloWanCes ... ..o e (3,407) (4,624)

$44,088 $38,946

The activity related to the Company’s allowances for losses on accounts receivable for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003
is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2005 2004 2003
Balance at beginning of period. ........... ... ... $4624 $1892 $2167
Charged to costs and EXPEMSES . ...ttt 1,397 1,935 1,358
Charged to other accounts: ‘
Purchase accounting adjustments .............. . oL (30) — —
Acquired balance in business combinations. ....................... — 2,114 —
Deductions and write-offs .. ...... ... .. L Ll (2,584) (1,317)  (1,633)
Balance at end of period........... I $3407 $4624 $1,.892

6. INVENTORIES, NET

The components of inventories in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, January 1,

2005 2005
Raw materials . .. .ottt e e $ 7,945 $ 9,424
Work inprocess ............ ...t P 8,953 5,458
Finished g00ds . .......c.c.vveivurennnnneen.. [P 33,185 29,347

$50,083 $44,229

The inventory amounts above include the effect of $16.5 million and $17.7 million at December 31, 2005 and
January 1, 2003, respectively, of reserves for excess and obsolete inventories. :
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The components of property, plant and equipment, net, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows (in
thousands): !

December 31, January 1,

. 2005 - 2008

Land and improvements ................. e s 2241 $ 2,352
Buildings and leasehold improvements . ........... ... ... ... ... 28,902 27,695
Production and other equipment .................. e 52,018 51,106
Office furniture and equipment . ....................ouu.... R 6,668 5,527
Construction in process ................. F 3,882 918
Total property, plant and equipment, at Cost............. ... ..o vuiununn. 93,711 87,598
Accumulated depreciation and amortization ........... ... ... ... ... (48,461) (40,226)
Net property, plant and equipment ................................. $ 45,250 $ 47,372

Construction in process is primarily related to production equipment not yet placed into service. The Company does
not anticipate additional material incremental costs related to any amounts currently reported as construction in
process. :

Property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2005 includes $110,000 in equipment and related accumulated
depreciation of $3,000 associated with a capital lease.

The Company recorded depreciation expense of $8.2 million, $7.8 million and $7.9 million in fiscal 2005, fiscal

2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively. Under the Company’s financing arrangements (See Note 9), all property, plant
and equipment is pledged as security.

8. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill recorded by the Company’s business segmenfs for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

» Presstek Precision ‘Total
Balance at January 1,2005.............. P e $13466  $5,422  $18,888
Purchase accounting adjustments for prior period acquisitions.......... 4,473 272) 4,201

Balance at December 31, 2005 ........... J $17,939  $5,150  $23,089

Purchase accounting adjustments to goodwill in fiscal 2005 are primarily comprised of $1.5 million of net costs for
the consolidation of the acquired ABDick operations in Niles, Hllinois and Rochester, New York, into the
Company’s operations at its Hudson, New Hampshire corporate headquarters, $1.6 million of additional transaction
costs incurred, such as legal, audit and valuation fees, and $1.4 million of final adjustments to the fair values of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, primarily valuation adjustments to acquired inventories and current
liabilities. The fiscal 2005 fourth quarter adjustments included in these amounts are primarily comprised of

$0.1 million of increases to accounts receivable, $1.5 million of reductions to inventories, $0.1 million of
reductions to other current assets, $0.4 million of increases to accounts payable and $1.2 million of reductions to
accrued expenses, including $0.9 million of reversals of integration cost accruals. The adjustments to Precision
goodwill primarily relate to finalization of the valuation of acquired inventories and current liabilities.
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The components of the Company’s identifiable intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost amortization Cost _amortization
Patents and intellectnal property ................... $10,840 $6,173 $ 8,135 $5,296
Trade MAMES . .o oo oo et e e et e 2,360 1,001 2,360 171
Customer relationships ..., 5,483 876 4,700 117
Software HCEnses .. ..ot ‘ 450 175 1,203 778
License agreements ..................... ... ..... ' 750 11 — —_
Non-compete COVENants . . ... ......oeuvenerenn... 100 28 245 153

Loan origination fees................. S 332 77 339 7
o ' $20,315 $3,341 $16,982 $6,522

The Company recorded amortization expense for its identifiable intangible assets of $2.7 million, $1.3 million and
$1.0 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Estimated future amortization expense for the Company s .
in-service patents and all other identifiable mtang1b1e assets recorded by the Company at December 31, 2005, are

as follows (in thousands): .

Fiscal 2006. R e e T $3,017

Fiscal 2007. . ..o oo o RO O, ..., $2228
FisCal 2008 . . . ottt e, $1,251
Fiscal 2009 . . ..ot BT e e $1,104
Fiscal 2010. . ... L T S S e $ 941.
Thereafter .i.. . . .. R, TGt U B A S $1,891

As of July 2 2005 the Company s Lasertel subs1dxary had advanced $0.9 million (the “Advance”) to a customer
(the “Customer”), of which $0.7 million was secured by, among other things, a lien on the assets of the Customer,
including intellectual property. In addition, Lasertel had an accounts receivable balance of $0.9 million (the
“Receivables™) with the Customer. In a series of agreements with the Customer and a material end user to whom
the Customer had been providing products under a supply contract (the “Supply Contract™), in exchange for the
Customer’s Advance and Receivables, Lasertel received ownership of certain assets of the Customer, which were
comprised of all of the Customer’s patents, intellectual property and know-how (as well as all updates thereto) (the
“Assets”) as well as having the Customer’s rights under the Supply Contract assigned to Lasertel. In connection
with this transaction, the Company recorded $1.7 million and $0.1 miltion of patents and customer contracts,
respectively, which are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from nine months to seven years.
These amounts are included in the tables above. The value of the Assets, as well as the rights assigned under the
Supply Contract, approximates the $1.8 nnlhon in Advances and Receivables, based upon the valuatlon performed
by an independent appraxsal firm. ‘ : ‘
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9. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The components’ of the Company’s outstanding borrowings at December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 are as
follows (in thousands): ,

December 31,  January 1,
005

. 2005
Term loan .. .ovvve e e $29,500  $ 35,000
Lineofcredit ... .. e 6,036 6,822
Capital lease ...y S 107 —
: 35,643 41,822
Less current portion . ................... e e e e (13,073). . (12,322)
Long-termdebt ..............ciiun, R R R $ 22,570 $ 29,500

In November 2004, in connection with the acquisition of the business of the A.B. Dick Compariy, the Company
replaced its then-current credit facilities, which it had entered into in October 2003, with $80.0 million in Senior
Secured Credit Facilities (the “Facilities™) from three lenders. The terms of the Facilities include a $35.0 million
five-year secured term loan (the “Term Loan”) and a $45.0 million five-year secured revolving line of credit (the
“Revolver’”). The Company granted a security interest in all of its assets in favor of the lenders under the
Facilities. In addition, under the Facilities agreement the Company is prohibited from declaring or distributing
dividends to shareholders.

The Company has the option of selecting an interest rate for the Facilities equal to either: (a) the then applicable
London Inter-Bank Offer Rate plus 1.25% to 4.0% per annum, depending on certain results of the Company’s
financial performance; or (b) the Prime Rate, as deﬁned in the Facilities agreement, plus up to 1.75% per annum,
depending on certain results of the Company’s financial performance. Effective August 31, 2005, the Company
amended its Facilities to reduce the current Apphcable LIBOR Margm to 2.5%, from the previous Apphcable
LIBOR Margin of 3.5%.

The Facilities were used to partially finance the ABchk acquisition, and are available to the Company for workmg
capital requirements, capital expend:tures busmess acquisitions and general corporate purposes.

At December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, the Company had outstanding balances on the-Revolver of

$6.0 million and $6.8 million, respectively, with interest rates of 6.9% and 5.8%, respectively. At December 31,
2003, there were $11.6 million of outstanding letters of credit, thereby reducing the amount avallable under the
Revolver to $27.4 million at that date.

The Term Loan required an initial principal péyment of $0.25 million on March 31, 2003, and requires subsequent

quarterly principal payments of $1.75 million, with a final settlement of all remaining principal and unpaid interest
on November 4, 2009. At December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, outstanding balances under the Term Loan
were $29.5 million and $35.0 million, respectively, with interest rates of 7.5% and 5.7%, respectively.

On November 23, 2005, the Company acquired equipment of $110,000 qualifying for capital lease treatment under
SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases (“SFAS 13”). The lease has a three-year term and expires in November 2008,
at which time the Company may purchase the system for a minimal amount. The lease carries an interest rate of
6.95% per year. The equipment is reflected in property, plant and equipment and the current and long-term
principal amounts of the lease obligation are included as components of current portion of long-term debt and
capital lease obligation and long-term debt and capital lease obligation in the Company’s Consolidated Balance
Sheet at December 31, 2005.
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The Company’s Revolver and Term Loan principal and capital lease principal and interest repayment commitments
are as follows (in thousands):

2006 . e e $13,073
2007 .« e e e e $ 7,041
2008 . e $ 7,040
2000 L e e $ 8,500

The weighted average interest rate on the Company’s short-term borrowings was 7.2% at December 31, 2005.

Under the terms of the Revolver and Term Loan, the Company is required to meet various financial covenants on a
quarterly and annual basis, including maximum funded debt to EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, amortization and restructuring and special charges) and minimum fixed charge coverage covenants. At
December 31, 2005, the Company was in compliance with all financial covenants.

10. ACCRUED EXPENSES

The components of the Company’s accrued expenses in the Consolidated Batance Sheets at December 31, 2005 and
January 1, 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,  January 1,
2005

2005
Accrued payroll and employee benefits ............................. ... $ 8266 $ 6,141
Accrued warranty .............. [ JE : 1,483 1,472
Accrued nteEration COSS ... ..ottt ettt et 1,337 1,498
Accrued restructuring and special charges ...... ... . o oo, 482 154
Accrued royalties . ... ... P T e 344 1,247
031 4,806 5,548

$16,718 $16,060

11. ACCRUED WARRANTY AND DEFERRED REVENUES

Accrued Warranty

The Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties, based on historical experience, at the time
revenue is recognized. Presstek warrants its products against defects in material and workmanship for various
periods, determined. by the product, generally for a period of from ninety days to one year from the date of
installation. Typical warranties require the Company to repair or replace defective products during the warranty
period at no cost to the customer. Presstek engages in extensive product quality programs and processes, including
monitoring and evaluation of component supplies; however, product warranty terms, product failure rates, and
material usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure may affect the estimated warranty
obligation. If actual product failure rates, material usage or service delivery costs differ from current estimates, the
Company will adjust the warranty liability. Accruals for product warranties are reflected as a component of accrued
expenses in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Product warranty activity in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

» 2005 2004 2003
Balance at beginning of period....................... S $1472 § 935 $1,089
Accruals for warranties .. ....... ... . . e 1,558 1,109 1,228
Assumed warranty liabilities — business acquisitions.................. — 795 —
Charges to accrual for warranty costs :............ e (1,547) (1,367) +(1,382)
Balance at end of period. .........oouiriiiiiii $1483 $1472  $ 935




Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues consist of amounts received or billed in advance for products for which revenue recognition
criteria has not yet been met or service contracts where services have not yet been rendered. Deferred amounts are
recognized as elements are delivered or, in the case of services, recognized ratably over the contract life, generally
one year, or as services are rendered.

The components of deferred revenue are as follows (in thousands):
December 31, January 1,

2005 2005
Deferred service revenue .. .............. P, . $7.951 $ 8,488 -
Deferred product revenue . . ..., EERRRRRRS e , 628 2,032

$8,579 $10,520

12. RESTRUCTURING AND SPECIAL CHARGES

In the first quarter 6f 2005, the Company recorded restructuring and special charges aggregating $1.0 million for
the Presstek and Precision business segments. Of this amount, $0.9 million related to the Presstek segment and
$0.1 million related to the Precision segment. These charges included severance and fringe benefit costs, executive
and other contractual obligations and a settlement with previously terminated employees. In the third quarter, the
Precision segment reversed its remaining accrual:balance of $73,000. In the fourth quarter of 2005; the Presstek
segment reversed $35,000 of excess accrual amounts related to severance accruals. These adjustments reduced the
expense reported for the year ended December 31, 2005 to $0.9 million. At December 31, 2005, the remaining
accrual balance related to the Presstek segment. The Company accrued for severance and fringe benefit costs
relating to the elimination of 14 positions, comprised of five technical and customer support positions, five
manufacturing positions and four management and support positions, At December 31, 2005, ten employees had
been terminated under this plan. - i -

In fiscal 2004, the Company reversed $0.4 million in excess special charges related to severance accrued in fiscal
2003 and 2002.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company eXpahded its repositioning actions to reduce costsr, which had

been initiated in the second quarter of fiscal 2002. The Company recorded a charge of $0.6 million in the second-
quarter of fiscal 2003, primarily related to severance and benefit costs associated with the reduction of

approxxmately 43 employees, in April 2003. ,

The activity for fiscal 2003, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 related to the Company s restructurmg and special charges
accruals is as follows (in thousands): ; .

_Fiscal 2005 Activity

Baiance ) Balance
January 1, = Charged to C December 31,
) 2005 Expense Reversals ' Utilization 2005
Executive contractual obligations ........ 3154 $282 8 — $(436) $ —
Severance and fringe benefits .. ......... — 700 (108) (110) 482
$154 $982 $(108) . $(546) $482
Fiscal 2004 Activity
Balance } Balance
January 3,  Charged to . * January 1,
2004 Expense Reversals Utilization 2005
Executive contractual obligations .......... $ 699 $ — % (76) $(469) $154
Severance and fringe benefits ............. 356 — (316) . - (40 —
$1,055 $ — $(392) :  $(509) $154
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Fiscal 2003 Activity

Balance Balance
December 28,  Charged to January 3,
_ ] ) 2002 Expense Reversals  Utilization 2004
Executive contractnal obligations ........ $1,257 . . % — $ (558) $ 699
Severance and fringe benefits . .......... 262 550 — (456) 356
Equipment and other asset writedowns . .. 39 — (39) — —
Lease termination and other miscellaneous
COStS. . ivv v, e Lo 167 . — — (167) - —_—,
' $1725 0 8550 ¢ $(39)  $(LI8T)  $1,055 °

The Company anticipates that the payments related to the above initiatives will be completed in- 2006.

13. INTEREST AND OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE

The components of “Interest and other income (expense), net”, in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Income are as follows (in thousands): e

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

] ) ‘ 2005 ‘ 2004 2003
IMETSt €XPENSE . - ... ..o o et e et e $(2459) $(923) $(707)
TNEreSt iNCOME - .« v e ee e e e et S 130 318 331
Other income (XPense), Nt . . . ..ot ettt etiie et iiii e erennns » 109 (265) 209

$(2220) $(870) $(167)

The amounts reported ‘as other income (expense), net, primarily relate to gains or losses on foreign currency
transactions and losses ‘on the disposal of long-lived assets for all periods presented. ‘

14. INCOME TAXES

The components of the income tax provision are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal  Fiscal
2005 2004 2003

Current: . L - L
Federal ............... E e . $ 175 $40 $—
State ......... SN e L. 186 40 -
Foreign............... P PP U 218 L — 7 =

579 80  —

Deferred:

Federal .................0..... P 475 96 —
State ....... e 1200 24 —
Foreign ... ... — i
595 120 —

Provision fOr iNCOME LAXES . . .« v v v e et ettt e e e e e e e e $1,174  $200 $—

The deferred income tax provisions of $0.6 million in fiscal 2005 and $0.1 million in fiscal 2004 were created by
taxable temporary differences related to certain goodwill for which the period the differences will reverse is
indefinite. Following the adoption of SFAS 142, taxable temporary differences creating deferred tax liabilities as a
result of different treatment of goodwill for book and tax purposes cannot offset deductible temporary differences
that create deferred tax assets in determining the valuation allowance. As a result, a deferred tax provision is
required to increase the Company’s valuation allowance.
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For financial reporting purposes, income before income taxes includes the following components (in thousands):
' Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2005 2004 2003
UL S, o e e $6,778  $3,954  $8,097
Foreign.............. ... . ool e e e e 482 111 —

$7,260  $4,065  $8,097

The cumulative amount of undistributed eamingsj of foreign subsidiaries, which is intended to be permanently
reinvested and for which U.S. income taxes have not been provided, totaled approximately $0.6 million at
December 31, 2005. - S

Deferred tax assets/liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,  January 1, January 3,
2005 2005 2004

Deferred tax assets : : :
Net operating loss carryforwards .......................... $26,500 $29,000 $30,400 .

Tax credits ........ e e 5,300 4,900 5,100
Warranty provisions, litigation and other accruals............. 5,900 4,400 3,800
Gross deferred tax assetS. .........vitiiiinininenennnan. 37,700 38,300 39,300
Deferred tax liabilities , . :
Amortizable and depreciable assets ........................ 715 320 100
Accumulated depreciation and amortization.................. 2,000 3,900 3,300
. ‘ 34,985 34,080 35,900
Less valuation allowance . ......... ... e rnvnnnns (35,700) . (34,200) (35,900)
Net deferred tax labilities. ............. ..., $ (715 $ (1200 $ —

For fiscal 2003, the Company provided a full valuation allowance for its deferred tax assets in the United States
due to the uncertainty of realization of those assets as a result of the recurring and cumulative losses from
operations,

The Company monitors the realization of its deferred tax assets based on changes in circumstances; for example,
recurring periods of income for tax purposes following historical periods of cumulative losses or changes .in tax
laws or regulations. The Company’s income tax provisions and its assessment of the realizability of its deferred tax
assets involve significant judgments and estimatés. If the Company generates taxable income through profitable
operations in future years it may be required to recognize these deferred tax assets through the reduction of the
valuation allowance, which would result in a material benefit to its results of operations in the period in which the
benefit is determined, excluding the recognition of the portion of the valuation allowance which relates to net
deferred tax assets acquired in a business combination and stock compensation. The valuation allowance with
respect to acquired tax assets of $0.4 million, when subsequently released, will reduce goodwill, other intangible
assets and, to the extent remaining, the provision for income tax.
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A reconcﬂlanon of the Company’s effective tax rate to the statutory federal rate is as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
. 2005 2004 2003

Federal statutory tax rate .......... e S e B -34.0% 34.0% 34.0% -

State tax, net of federal benefit .. ... . A D 2.6 — —
Alternative MINIMUM tAX ... ... oo e e 24 1.1 —
DT o e 2.0 — —
Change in valuation allowance . .................... F (24.8) (30.2) (34.0)

' 162% 49% —%

At December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of

$77.5 million and $84.2 million, respectivély, of which $49.2 million relates to tax deductions from stock
compensation at both dates. The tax benefit of $17.0 million at both December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005,
related to the stock compensation, when realized, will be accounted for as additional paid-in capital rather than as a
reduction of the provision for income tax.. At December 31, 2005, approximately $50,000 in additional paid-in
capital was realized as a result of a current, year tax benefit from stock compensation. At December 31, 2005, the
Company had federal research and development credit carryforwards of $4.5 million. The net operating loss and
credit carryforwards will expire at various dates through 2022 if not utilized.

15. PREFERRED STOCK

The Company’s certificate of incorporation empowers the Board of Directors, w1thout stockholder approval to issue
up to 1,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value preferred stock, with dividend, hqu1dat10n conversion and voting or
other rights to be determined upon 1ssuance by the Board of Dlrectors No preferred stock has been issued to date.

16. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION ' PLANS

The Company has equity incentive plans that are administered by the Compensation and Stock Plan Committee of
the Board of Directors (the “Committee””). The Committee oversees and approves which employees receive grants,
the number of shares or options granted and the exercise prices of the shares covered by each grant.

The 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (the “1998 Incentive Plan®) provides for the award of stock options, restricted
stock, deferred stock, and other stock based awards to officers, directors, employées, and other key persons
(collectively “awards”). A total of 3,000,000 shares of common stock, subject to anti-dilution adjustments, have
been reserved under this plan. Any future options granted under the 1998 Incentive Plan will become exercisable
upon the earlier of a date set by the Board of Directors or Committee at the time of grant or the close of business
on the day before the-tenth anniversary of the stock options’ date of grant, Any future options granted as incentive
stock options, or ISO's, become exercisable the day before the fifth anniversary of the date of grant. At

December 31, 2005, there were 1,283,125 options outstanding and 1,327,150 shares available for future grants
under the 1998 Incentive Plan. The optlons will expire at various dates as prescribed by the individual option
grants, :

The 2003 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the “2003 Plan™) provides for the award of stock options, stock
issuances and other equity interests in the Company to employees, officers, directors (including those directors who
are not an employee or officer of the Company, such directors being referred to as Non-Employee Directors),
consultants and advisors of the Company and its subsidiaries. The 2003 Plan provides for an automatic annual
grant of 7,500 stock options to all active Non-Employee Directors. A total of 2,000,000 shares of common stock,
subject to anti-dilution adjustments, has been reserved under this plan. Any future options granted under the 2003
Plan will become exercisable at such times and subject to such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors or.
Committee may specify at the time of each grant. At December 31, 2003, there were 943,800 options outstanding
and 1,056,200 shares available for future grants under the 2003 Plan. The -options will expire at various dates as
prescribed by the individual option grants.

79




The Company had previously adopted equity incentive plans that had expired as of December 31, 2005 and,
accordingly, no future grants may be issued under these plans. These plans include the 1991 Stock Option Plan
(the “1991 Plan’"), which expired on August 18, 2001; the 1994 Stock Option Plan (the *“1994 Plan”), which
expired on April 8, 2004; and the 1997 Interim Stock Option Plan (the “1997 Plan”), which expired on
September 22, 2002. At December 31, 2005 there, were 51,400 options outstanding under the 1991 Plan, 698,825
options outstanding under the 1994 Plan and 86, 825 options understanding under the 1997 Plan.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) is designed to provide eligible employees of
the Company and its participating U.S subsidiaries an opportunity to purchase common stock of the Company
through accumulated payroll deductions. The purchase price of the stock is equal to 85% of the fair market value
of a share of common stock on the first day or last day of each three-month offering period, whichever is lower.
All employees of the company or participating subsidiaries who customarily work at least 20 hours per week and
do not own five percent or more of the Company’s common stock are eligible to participate in the ESPP. A total of
950,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, subject to adjustment, have been reserved for issuance under this
plan. In 2005, 2004 and 2003, approximately 36,_000,' 23,000 and 36,000 shares were issued, respectively, under the
ESPP. The 2005 amount includes approximately 8,600 shares in transit at December 31, 2005. These shares were
issued on January 4, 2006. At December 31, 2005 there were approximately 826,000 shares available for issuance
under this plan. .

Director Stock Option Plan

The Company’s Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (the “Director Plan™) provided for the issuance of
options to purchase 5,000 shares of the Company’s common stock upon being named a Director of the Company
and the automatic issuance, in January of each year, of options to purchase 2,500 shares of the Company’s
common stock, to each non-employee Director of the Company, with exercise prices equal to the fair market value
of the stock at the date of grant. Options granted under this plan became exercisable one year from the date of
grant and will terminate five years from the date of grant. At December 31, 2005, there were 37,500 options
outstanding under the Director Plan. This Plan explred on December 31, 2003 and, accordingly, no future grants
may be issued under this plan.

Stock option- activity for fiscal 2003, 2004 and 2005 is summarized as follows:
Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 28, 2002 ... e e . e 3,639,801‘ $ 8.84
GIanted. . .. ...t e P 385,000 $ 584
Exercised ........cvvenveneiiaian. I [, (20,200) $-6.71
Canceled/expired .. .............oibiiene..., R - (552,125) - $ 9.83
Outstanding at January 3, 2004 ......... ST PUOURT ... 3452476 $ 8.36
Granted.................. P PR 76,750 . $10.08
EXercised .. ..ot (663,450) $ 7.53
Canceled/expired . ........coo it PR (112,550} $ 925
Outstanding at January 1, 2005 ........ ’ ........................ .o 2,753,226 $ 8.57
Granted.................coiinn e 1,104,667 $ 8.33
Exercised . .....oiiiiii e - (477,654) $ 6.51
Canceled/eXpired ... ..o vvvrent i e (278,764) $ 9.92
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 .. ... e S - 3,101,475 $ 8.86
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The following table summarizes information about stock -options both. outstanding and exercisable at December 31,
2005: ‘

Options Outstanding and Exercisable
‘ Weighted Average

Remaining . Weighted
o - E . . Contractual Life Average '

Range of exercise prices Shares (Years) - Exercise Price
$001-8522 . it ceeeieo.. 186,300 6.76 $ 3.99
$523-$ 600, ......... . e L....... 575400. 6.4 $ 5.27
$601-$675............ e . - 303,675 . 6.18 %634
$676-$800......0ccuiiiiiiiii.. JU Ceeeeee. . 322975 611 . $734
$ 801 -$10.00 ... .0ovrrennii, . 812,425 886 $ 8.85
$10.01 - $15.00 ... ..oooiiiiii I . 683,200 446 $12.72
$15.01 -$23100 .. ..o R .. 217,500 438 ' $16.16
$ 0.01-823.00 ..ttt 3,101,475 6.40 $ 8.86

On December 31, 2005, the Company accelerated the vesting of all unvested outstanding options to purchase
common stock previously issued to directors and employees, including officers. This action was taken to mitigate
compensation that would have been required upon the effectiveness of SFAS 123R beginning January 1, 2006. As a
result of these actions, the Company eliminated approximately $1.3 million in pre-tax compensation expense in
fiscal 2006 and $0.7 million thereafter related to these options. Stock compensation expense in future periods will
relate to options or warrants to purchase common stock issued subsequent to December 31, 2005.

In addition to the plans described above, the Company’s Lasertel subsidiary has a stock option plan, the Lasertel,
Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Lasertel Plan”). The Lasertel Plan, as amended in fiscal 2001, provides for
the award, to employees and other key individuals of Lasertel and Presstek, of non-qualified options to purchase, in
the aggregate, up to 2,100,000 shares of Lasertel’s common stock. Any future options granted under this plan will
generally vest over four years, with termination dates ten years from the date of grant. These grants are subject to
termination as provided in the Lasertel Plan.

Stock option activity under the Lasertel Plan for fiscal 2003, 2004 and 2005 is summarized as follows:
Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 28, 2002 . ......... ... ... .t - 564,175 $0.19
Granted . ... 46,550 $0.15
Exercised .. ... (12,500) $0.15
Canceled/expired . . . ... .. i (54,788) $0.32
Qutstanding at January 3,2004 .............. ... ... . ... 543437 $0.17
Granted .. ... . 12,750 $0.15
Exercised . ... e — $ —
Canceled/expired . . ... ..ot (312,487) $0.13
Qutstanding at January 1, 2005 .......... .. .. i i 243,700 $0.21
Granted . ... 15,000 $0.15
Exercised .................. P (250) $0.15
Canceled/expired .. ... ..ot (8,376) $0.60
OQutstanding at December 31, 2005 ... ...\ uuineaaneeeen.. 250,074 $0.20
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17. BUSINESS SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

Presstek is a market-focused high technology company that designs, manufactures and distributes proprietary and
non-proprietary solutions to the graphic arts industries, primarily serving short-run, full-color customers. The
Company’s operations are currently organized into three business segments: (i) Presstek; (ii) Precision; and

(iii) Lasertel. Segment operating results are based on the current organizational structure reviewed by Presstek’s
management to evaluate the results of each business. A description of the types of products and services provided
by each business segment follows.

* Presstek is primarily engaged in the development, manufacture, sale and servicing of our patented digital imaging
systems and patented printing plate technologies and related equipment and supplies for the graphic arts and
printing industries, primarily serving the short-run, full-color market segment.

* Precision manufactures chemistry-free digital and conventional printing plates for both web and sheet-fed
printing applications for sale to Presstek and external customers.

¢ Lasertel manufaciures and develops high-powered laser diodes for sale to Presstek and external customers.
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Selected operating results information for each business segment are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2005 2004 2003
Revenue . ‘
Presstek ... $255,344  $118,576  $85,497
Precision............... S e 25,254 11,248 —
Lasertel.............. e 7,760 7,765 6,804
Total fevenue, including inter-segment. .. .................... 288,358 137,589 92,301
Inter-segment revenue . ........... e P e o (14,218) (7,738) (5,069)

1 $274,140  $129,851  $87,232

Revenues from external customers

Presstek ........... S e $255,344  $118,576  $85,497
Precision............ e e e 15,006 8,398 —
Laserte]. . ..o e e 3,790 2,877 1,735

$274,140  $129,851  $87,232

Income (losé) from continuing operations

Presstek ............... e [ETUUTOTRI $ 12296 $ 9203 $10,285
Precision. . ............. S PP 844 (630) —
Lasertel.................. e U (3.660) _ (3,638) _(3450)

$ 9480 $ 4935 § 6,835

Depreciation and amortization

Presstek ........... oo T $ 7,842 $§ 6314 $ 6,137
PreCISION . o o v et i I 754 299 —
Lasertel...... R, S 2,353 2,493 2,730

$ 10949 $ 9,106 $ 8,867

Capital expenditures and other additions to property, plant and
equipment = - '

Presstek . . .
Capital expenditures ........................ e $ 3008 $ 749 § 1,044
Equipment obtained under capital lease......... e - 110 — _—

Total Presstek......... e e 3,118 749 1,044

Precision. .......oovvii i e 437 464 —

Lasertel. . ... e e . 2,684 981 300
o ‘ $ 6239 $ 2,194 $ 1,344

Intersegment revenues and costs are eliminated from each segment prior to review of segment results by the
Company’s management. Accordingly, the amounts of intersegment revenues allocable to each individual segment
have been excluded from the table above,
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Asset information for the Company’s business segments as of.December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 is as
follows (in thousands):

) 4 December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005
PresStek ..o vt $150,491 $138,503

Precision. ... ..... S T TR 19,186 18,555
Lasertel ... 0. .. e 11,810 14,260
o ‘ $181,487 $171,318

The Company’s classification of revenue by geographic area is determined by the location of the Company’s
customer. The following table summarizes revenue information by geographic area (in thousands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

2005 2004 2003
United STAES . ..\ttt $170,499 $ 91,230 $41,910
United Kingdom . .......c.oeoerneiniiiiii e, 34,804 7,747 3,583
Canada .. ... S 15,000 4,249 1,773
GEIMMANY . . . o\ e\ ettt e e e et e 13,178 13,541 19,276
Japan .......... e e . 8,513 6,209 7,594

AlLOtheT . . oottt L 32,146 6,875 13,096
| - §274,140  $129.851  $87.232

The Company’s long-lived assets by geographic area are as follows (in thousands):
: : : December 31, 2005 January 1, 2005

United States . ....................... e $79,462 - $77,571
United Kingdom ..................... [P 682 . 278
Canada .. ... . e e 382 56

-$80,526 $77,905

18. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

No customer accounted for greater than 10% of revenue in fiscal 2005, or greater than 10% of the Company’s
accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2005. :

Revenue genérated under the Company’s agreements with Heidelberg and its distributors, Pitman Company, and
Kodak and its distributors totaled $12.5 million, $14.8 million and $13.6 million, respectively in fiscal 2004, with
accounts receivable balances of $2.4 million, $2.6 million and $3.1 million, respectively, at January-1, 2005.

Revenue generated under the Company’s agreemerts with Heidelberg and its distributors, Pitman Company, and
Koeing & Bauer and its distributors totaled $18.3 million, $15.1 million and $9.0 million, respectively, in fiscal
2003, with accounts receivable balances of $1.7 million, $1.9 million and $1.7 million, respectively, at January 3,
2004, - -

19. RELATED PARTIES

The Company engages the services of Amster, Rothstein & Ebenstein, a law firm of which a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors is a partner. Expenses incurred for services from this law firm were $0.6 million,
$0.2 million and $0.1 million in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively.

A former director of the Company, John Evans, provided consulting services to the Company upon request and
received compensation for services rendered and related expenses. Mr. Evans was a director of the Company from
QOctober 1997 through March 2004. The Company paid Mr. Evans $23,700 in fiscal 2003. There were no
consulting fees paid in fiscal 2005 or fiscal 2004.
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During fiscal 2003, the Company paid R.H. Ventures, Inc. (*“RH Ventures’), $144,000 pursuant to an agreement
with Robert Howard, an executive of RH Ventures, who served as the Company’s Chairman Emeritus from October
1998 to December 2000, when he resigned from that position. This agreement terminated at the end of fiscal 2003.

Pursuant to his retirement agreement, during fiscal 2004 and.ﬁscai 2003, the Company made payments totaling
$100,006 and $204,306, respectively, to Richard A. Williams, the Company’s Chief Scientific Officer, who also
served as Chairman of the Board of Directors. There were no payments made in fiscal 2005.

The Company has an accounts receivable from a former executive and director totaling $202,000, resulting from
advances made to the individual in a prior year. Although the Company intends to pursue collection of this
receivable, it has provided ‘a reserve ‘against this amount in 2002 because of questlons concerning its collection. As
of December 31, 2005, this recelvable remains fully reserved.

20. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

The Company conducts operations in certain, facilities under Iong-term of:erating leases. The Company also leases .
certain office and other equipment for use in its operations. These leases expire at various dates through 2010, with
various options to renew as negotiated between the Company and its landlords. It is expected that in the normal
course of business, leases that expire will be renewed or replaced. Rent expense under these leases was

$4.2 million in fiscal 2005, $0.9 million in fiscal 2004 and $0.3 million in fiscal 2003.

The Company’s obligations under its non-cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2005 were as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal 2006. . . ... . S e BT $1,685

Fiscal 2007 .%. ... oo e e A $1,073
Fiscal 2008 . ..ot o SIS $ 943
Fiscal 2009................. Ceee T e % 841
Fiscal 2010, ..ot BT e e $ 925

The Company entered into an agreement in fiscal 2000 with Fuji Photo Film Co., Ltd. (“Fuji”’), whereby minimum
royalty payments to Fuji are required based on specified sales volumes of the Company’s A3 format size four-color
sheet-fed press. The agreement provides for payment of a total of $14.0 million in royalties, of which a minimum
of $6.0 million is required to be paid by April of 2006. If this minimum payment amount is not received, the
Company must make a lump-sum payment (the “Lump-Sum”) amounting to the difference between the amount
paid and $6.0 million. The. Lump sum will serve as an advance of future royalty payments. The remaining
commitment under the agreement is payable at specified rates based on units shipped. Once the Lump Sum
payment is made, there are no minimum obligations to make payment to Fuji. As of December 31, 2005, the
Company had paid Fuji $5.4 million related to this agreement; the minimum remaining liability at that date was
$0.6 million. The Company s maximum remaining liability under the royalty agreement at December 31, 2005 was
$8.6 rmlhon

Contingencies

The Company has change of control agreements with certain of its employees that provide them with benefits
should their employment with the Company be terminated other than for cause or their disability or death, or if
they resign for good reason, as defined in these agreements, within a certain period of time from the date of any
change of control of the Company.

From time to time the Company has engaged in sales of equipment that is leased by or intended to be leased by a
third party purchaser to another party. In certain situations, the Company may retain recourse obligations to a
financing institution involved in providing financing to the ultimate lessee in the event the lessee of the equipment
defaults on.its lease obligations. In certain such instances, the Company may refurbish and remarket the equipment
on behalf of the financing company, should the ultimate lessee default on payment of the lease. In certain
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circumstances, should the resale price of such equipment fall below certain predetermined levels, the Company
would, under these arrangements, reimburse the financing' company for any such shortfall in sale price (a “shortfall
payment”). Generally, the Company’s liability for. these recourse agreements is limited to 9.5% of the amount
outstanding. The maximum amount for which the Company was liable to the financial institution for the shortfall
payment was approximately $0.5 million at December 31, 2005.

Lirigation

In March 2005, Presstek filed an action against CREO, Inc., in the United States District Court for the District of
New Hampshire for patent infringement. In this action, Presstek alleges that CREO has distributed a product that
violates a Presstek US Patent. Presstek seeks an order from the court that CREO refrain from offering the

infringing product for sale, from using the infringing material or introducing it for the named purposes, or from
possessing such infringing material, and for the payment of damages associated ‘with the infringement.

In September 2003, Presstek filed an action against Fuji Photo Film Corporation, Ltd., in the District Court of
Mannheim, Germany for patent infringement. In this action, Presstek alleges that Fuji has manufactured and
distributed a product that violates Presstek European Patent 0 644 047 registered under number DE 694 17 129
with the German Patent and Trademark Office. Presstek seeks an order from the court that Fuji refrain from
offering the infringing product for sale, from using the infringing material or introducing it for the named purposes,
and from possessing such infringing material. A trial was held in November 2004 and March 2005 and we await a
final determination from the Courts.

In Aﬁgust 2003, the Company was served ‘with a.purported securities class action lawsuit filed on June 2, 2003 in
the United States District Court for the Districts of New Hampshire against the Company and two of its former
officers. This lawsuit was dismissed by the court,on October 4, 2004. However, the plaintiffs in the case have -
appealed the court’s dismissal on November 4, 2004. On January 27, 2005, the plaintiffs of this matter withdrew
their appeal and the matter was permanently closed in Presstek’s favor. '

Presstek is a party to other litigation that it considers routine and incidental to its business however it does not
expect the results of any of these actions to have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operation or
financial condition. :

21. QUARTERLY RESULTS (Unaudited) - '
Third Fourth

" First Second Quarter Quarter
Quarter Quarter (2) -~ (3(5)6)

(In thousands, except per-share data)
Fiscal 2005 ‘

REVENUE . . . oo TR e 7$70395  $69,720  $64,689  $69,336
Gross profit .. .....coooviiiiiiii.... TR e $20,142  $21,284  $19,630  $20,940
Net INCOME - .. v veeeeeeeeeeenns ST $ 481 $2339 § 823 § 2443
Earnings per share — basic(1) ......... S $ 001 $ 007 $ 002 $ 007
Earnings per share — diluted(1) ....... e $ 001 % 007 $ 002 $ 007
Fiscal 2004 _ ‘
REVENUE . . ..o SO $23,314  $22,697  $29,750  $54,090
Gross profit........ e e "$ 8,782 $ 9,144 310,003 $14,535
Net income (10S8) . ..o vovoveunnn... SR $ 1,899 $ 1447 $2,707 $(2,188)
Earnings (loss) per share —basic(1).................. .$ 006 $ 004 $ 008 $ (0.06)
Earnings (loss) per share — diluted(1) ................ . $ 005 $ 004 $ 008 $ (0.06)

¢9) Income (loss) per share is computed 1ndependent1y for each of the quarters presented; accordmgly, the sum of
the quarterly income (loss) per share may not equal the total computed for the year. s
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(2) 2004 amounts include results of operations of Precision for the period subsequent to its acquisition. During this
period, revenues attributable to Precision were $3.1 million.

(3) 2004 amounts include results of operations of ABDick for the period subsequent to its acquisition. During this
period, revenues attributable to ABDick were $24.3 million.

(4) 2004 amounts include results of operations of Precision for the entire fourth quarter. During this period,
revenues attributable to Precision were $5.3 million.

(5) 2005 amounts reflect the effect of a change in accounting estimate to increase the useful lives of certain
property, plant and equipment used by Lasertel from five to seven years. This change reduced depreciation

expense by $0.4 million, increased net income by $0.3 million and increased both basic and diluted earnings
per share by $0.01. '

(6) In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Companv finalized its purchase accounting allocation related to the
ABDick acquisition. Adjustments to the acquired balance sheet and to properly reflect integration cost accruals
for this  acquisition include $0.1 million of increases to accounts receivable, $1.5 million of reductions to
inventories, $0.1 million of reductions to other current assets, $0.4 million of increases to accounts payable and
$1.2 million of reductions t6 accrued expenses, including $0.9 million of reversals of integration cost accruals.
In accordance with SFAS 141, these adjustments were offset to goodwill.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting an Financial Disclosure

Not applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedhres

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we have, under the supervision and with
the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of Presstek’s disclosure controls and procedures. Based-on this evaluation, Presstek’s Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, Presstek’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective to provide a reasonable level of assurance that the information relating to Presstek
(including its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be disclosed by Presstek in the reports that it files or submits
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized: and reported within the requisite
time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, including ensuring that such
material information is accumulated and communicated to Presstek’s management, including its Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Presstek is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Presstek’s internal controf system was designed
to provide reasonable assurance to Presstek’s management and the Board of Directors regarding the preparation and
fair presentation of published financial statements.

Presstek’s management assessed the effectiveness of Presstek’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on
management’s assessment, it believes that, as of December 31, 2005, Presstek’s internal control over financial
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005 has been audited by BDO Seidman, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their
attestation report which is included herein.

(c) Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There were no significant changes in Presstek’s internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2005 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Presstek, Inc.
Hudson, New Hampshire

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, included in Item 9A of the Annual Report on Form 10-K, that Presstek,
Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”’) maintained effective internal control ovér financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion .on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
agsessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any-evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005 is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring- Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOQ).

We have also andited, in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements of Presstek, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and
January 1, 2005 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and
comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the three years-ended December 31, 2005, January 1, 2005 and
Janvary 3, 2004 respectively, and our report dated March 16, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements. :

/s{ BDO SempMman, LLP
BDO Seidman, LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 16, 2006
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART 111 K
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The policies comprising the Company’s code of ethics are set forth in the Company’s Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics. These policies satisfy the SEC’s requirements for a “code of ethics,” and apply to all directors, officers
and employees. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics can be found on the Company’s website at
www.presstek.com. - : o

The remaining information required by this item Wwill be set forth under the captions -“Election of Directors”,
“Board of Directors Meetings and Committees”, “Board of Directors and Committee Independence”, “Executive
Officers” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the definitive proxy statement that
the Company expects to file with the Securities Exchange Commission within 120 days of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005 for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on June 7, 2006 (the “Proxy Statement™)
and such information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be set forth under the captions “Executive Compensation”,
“Employment Agreements and Termination of Employment Agreements”, “Options and Stock Plans”,
“Compensation of Directors”, and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the Proxy:
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference. :

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity ‘Compensation Plans

‘We have securities authorized for issuance underf equity compensation plans. Information concerning securities
authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans and further information required by this item will be
set forth under the captions “Equity Compensation Plan Information” and “Voting Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Proxy Statement, and is'incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item will be set forth under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions” in the Proxy Statement, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

i . .
The information required by this item will be set forth under the captions ““Ratification of Selection of Auditors”
and “Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent
Auditors” in the Proxy Statement, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement.Schedule

(a)(1) and (2) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule

The consolidated financial statements of the Company are listed in the index under Part II,
Item 8, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(3) Exhibits

The exhibits that are filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K, or that are mcorporated
herein by reference, are set forth in the Exhibit Index hereto.

9




SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(&) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

f PRESSTEK, INC.

~/s/ EDWARD J. MARINO

Edward J. Marino
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 16, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ EDWARD J. MARINO " President, Chief Executive Officer and March 16, 2006
Edward J. Marino Director
/s/ Moosa E. Moosa - Executive Vice President and Chief Financial March 16, 2006
Moosa E. Moosa Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting
: Officer)
/s/ JonN W. DREYER Lead Director March 16, 2006

John W. Dreyer

/s/ DaNEL S. EBENSTEIN ‘ Director March 16, 2006
Daniel S. Ebenstein, Esq.

/s/ DR. LAWRENCE HOWARD ‘ Director March 16, 2006
Dr. Lawrence Howard

J/s/ MicHAEL D. MOFFITT ‘ Director March 16, 2006
Michael D. Moffitt

/s/ BRIAN MULLANEY ' Director March 16, 2006

Brian Mullaney

/s/ STEVEN N. RAPPAPORT Director March 16, 2006
Steven N. Rappaport

/s/ DonaLp C. Warrg, III ‘ Director March 16, 2006
Donald C. Waite, III ‘
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Exhibit
Number

3(a)

3(b)

2(a)

2(b)

2(¢c)

2(d)

10(a)

10(b)

10(c)

10(d)

10(e)

10(H)*

10(g)**
10(h)**
10G)**

10(G)**

Description

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Presstek, Inc., as amended. (Previously filed as .
Exhibit 3 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter ended June 29, 1996, hereby
incorporated by reference.)

By-laws of Presstek, Inc. (Previously filed as an exhibit with Presstek’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 30, 1995, filed March 29, 1996, hereby .incorporated by reference.)

Stock Purchase Agreement among Presstek, Inc., Precision Lithograining, Inc. and SDK Realty Co.
dated June 2, 2004 (Previously filed as Exhibit 2 1 to Presstek’s Form 8-K filed on July 30, 2004,
hereby incorporated by reference)

Asset Purchase Agreement among Presstek, Inc., Silver Acqu1smons Corp., Paragon Corporate
Holdings, Inc., A.B. Dick Company, A.B. Dick Company of Canada, Ltd. And Interactive Media
Group, Inc., dated July 13, 2004 (Previously filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Presstek’s Form 8-K filed on
July 13, 2004 hereby incorporated by reference)

Second Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement between the Company and A.B. Dick Company
dated November 5, 2004 (Previously filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Presstek’s Form 8-K filed on
November 12, 2004, hereby incorporated by reference) :

Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement between the Company and A.B. Dick Company dated
August 20, 2004 (Previously filed as Exhibit 2.2 to Presstek’s Form 8 K filed on November 12, 2004,
hereby incorporated by reference)

Confidentiality Agreement between Presstek,’ Inc. and Heidelberger Druckmaschinen A.G., effective
December 7, 1989 as amended. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10(i) of Presstek’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1989, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Master Agreement effective January 1, 1991, by and between Heidelberger Druckmaschinen
Aktiengesellschaft and Presstek, Inc. (Prev1ously filed as an exh1b1t to Presstek’s Form 8-K, dated
January 1, 1991, hereby incorporated by reference.) ’

Technology License effective January 1, 1991, by and between Heldelberger Druckmaschinen
Aktiengesellschaft and Presstek, Inc. (Previously filed as an exhibit to Presstek’s Form 8-K, dated
January 1, 1991, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Memorandum of Performance No. 3 dated April 27, 1993, to the Master Agreement, Technology
License, and Supply Agreement between Presstek, Inc. and Heidelberger Druckmaschinen Aktien-
gesellschaft. (Previously filed as an exhibit to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 1993, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Modification to Memorandum of Performance No. 3 dated Aprll 27, 1993, to the Master Agreement,
Technology License, and Supply Agreement between Presstek, Inc. and Heidelberger Druckmaschinen
Aktiengesellschaft. (Previously filed as an exhibit to Presstek’s Annual report on Form 10- K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 1994, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Memorandum of Understanding No. 4 dated November 9, 1995, to the Master Agreement and

. Technology License and Supply Agreement between Presstek, Inc. and Heidelberger Druckmaschinen

Aktiengesellschaft. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.k to Presstek’s Form 10-K for the ﬁscal year ended
December 30, 1995, filed March 29, 1996, hereby incorporated by reference.)

1991 Stock Option Plan. (Previously filed as an exhibit to Presstek’s Annual report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1991, hereby incorporated by reference.)

1994 Stock Option Plan. (Previously filed as an exhibit to Presstek’s Annual report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.0 to Presstek’s Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 2, 1999, filed March 2, 1999, hereby incorporated by reference.)

1997 Interim Stock Option:Plan. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Presstek’s Quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 27, 1997, filed November 7, 1997, hereby mcorporated by
reference.)




Exhibit
Number

10(k)y**

10(D)*

10(m)*

10(n)

10(0)*

10(p)*

10(g)*

10(r)**

10(sy**

10()*
10(u)**

10(v)**

10(w)**
10(x)

10(y)

10(z)**

Description

1998 Stock Incentive Plan. (Previously filed as Exhibit A to Presstek’s April 23, 1998 Proxy
Statement, filed April 24, 1998, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Memorandum of Understanding No. 5 dated March 7, 1997 between Presstek, Inc. and Heidelberger
Druckmaschinen Aktiengesellschaft. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10(T) to Presstek’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28, 1996 filed March 31, 1997, hereby incorporated by
reference.)

Master Supply and Distribution Agreement by ‘and between Presstek, Inc. and Xerox Corporation dated
September 22, 2000. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2000, filed November 14, 2000, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Amended Master Supply and Distribution Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Xerox

_ Corporation dated May 11, 2001. (Préviously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001, filed August 14, 2001, hereby incorporated by
reference.)

Agreement between Presstek, Inc. and Adamovski Strojirny a.s. dated as of April 24, 2001. (Previously
filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,

2001, filed August 14, 2001 hereby incorporated by reference.)

Settlement Agreement made as of July 13, 2001 by and between Heidelberger Druckmaschinen
Aktiengesellschaft and Presstek, Inc. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report

.on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 29, 2001, filed November 13, 2001, hereby

incorporated by reference.)

Letter Agreement dated September 19 2001 between Xerox Corporation and Presstek, Inc. amending
the Amended Master Supply and Distribution Agreement by and among, Presstek, Inc. and Xerox
Corporation dated May 11, 2001. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 29, 2001, ﬁled November 13, 2001, hereby incorporated
by reference.)

Resignation Agreement and General Release by and between Presstek, Inc. and Neil M. Rossen, dated
November 14, 2001 and effective as of December 31, 2001. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form, 10-Q for the quarter ended March 30, 2002, filed May 14, 2002,
hereby incorporated by reference.)

Separation Agreement by and between Presstek Inc. and Robert W. Hallman dated as of April 26,
2002, and effective as of April 30, 2002. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Presstek’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 29, 2002, filed August 13, 2002, hereby incorporated
by reference.)

Agreement for Manufacture & Sale of *‘Sun Press” between Presstek, Inc. and Ryobi Limited, dated
as of April 5, 2002. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 29, 2002, filed on August 13, 2002, hereby incorporated by reference.)

2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of Presstek, Inc. (Previously filed as Exhibit 4.3 to Presstek’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the Commission on August 9, 2002, hereby
incorporated by reference.)

Description of Presstek’s Non-Employee Director Compensation Arrangements approved by Presstek’s
Board of Directors on July 17, 2002 and amended by Presstek’s Board of Directors on December 17,
2002. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10(hh) to Presstek’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 28, 2002, filed March 28, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Retirement Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Richard A. Williams dated January 7, 2003.
(Previously filed as Exhibit 10(ll) to Presstek’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 28,
2002, filed March 28, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Distribution Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Kodak Polychrome Graphics LLC dated
March 18, 2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 29, 2003, filed May 13, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Restated Amended Master Supply and Distribution Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and
Xerox Corporation dated March 18, 2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Presstek’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 29, 2003, filed May 13, 2003, hereby incorporated
by reference.)

2003 Stock Option and Incentive Plan of Presstek, Inc. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Presstek’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 28, 2003, filed August 12, 2003, hereby
incorporated by reference.)



Exhibit
Number

10(aa)*

10(bb)*

10(cc)

10(dd)
10(ce)
10(ff)
10(gg)
10(hh)
10(ii)
10G))
10(kk)

10(11)

10(mm)

10(nn)

10(o0)**

10(pp)

Description

OEM . Consumables Supply Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Heidelberg Druckmaschinen,
AG., dated July 1, 2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated
by reference.)

- OEM Consumables Supply Agreement by and. between Presstek, Inc. and Heidelberg U.S.A., Inc.

dated July. 1, 2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September. 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.) .
Credit Agreement by and among Presstek, Inc., Lasertel Inc., Citizens Bank New Hampshire and
Keybank National Association dated October 15, 2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Presstek’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003,
hereby incorporated by reference.)

Revolving Note dated October 15, 2003 made by Presstek, Inc. in favor of Citizens Bank New

- Hampshire. (Previously filed. as Exhibit 10.4 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Revolving Note dated October 15, 2003 made by Presstek, Inc. in favor of Keybank National
Association. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Term Note dated October 15, 2003 made by Presstek, Inc. in favor of Citizens Bank New Hampshire.
(Previously filed as Exhibit 10.6 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Term Note dated October 15, 2003 made by Presstek, Inc. in favor of Keybank National Association.
(Previously filed as Exhibit 10.7 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Swing Line Note dated October 15, 2003 made by Presstek, Inc. in favor of Citizens Bank New
Hampshire. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.8 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Security Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Citizens Bank New Hampshire dated
October 15, 2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.9 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Security Agreement by and between Lasertel, Inc. and Citizens Bank New Hampshire dated
October 15, 2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.10 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Security Agreement (Intellectual Property) by and between Presstek, Inc. and Citizens Bank New
Hampshire dated October 15, 2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.11 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby
incorporated by reference.)

Security Agreement (Intellectual Property) by.and between Lasertel, Inc. and Citizens Bank New
Hampshire dated October 15, 2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.12 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby
incorporated by reference.)

Mortgage and Security Agreement between Presstek, Inc. and Citizens Bank New Hampshire dated
October 15, 2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.13 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing by and among Presstek,
Inc., First American Title Insurance Company and Citizens Bank New Hampshire dated October 15,
2003. (Previously filed as Exhibit 10.14 to Presstek’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 27, 2003, filed November 12, 2003, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Employment Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Moosa E. Moosa dated December 31, 2003
{Previously filed as Exhibit 10(pp) to Presstek’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 3, 2004,
filed March 18, 2004, hereby incorporated by reference.)

Amendment to Employment Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Moosa E. Moosa dated
January 10, 2004 (Previously filed as Exhibit 10(qq) to Presstek’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
January 3, 2004, filed March 18, 2004, hereby incorporated by reference.)




Exhibit
Number

10(qq)

10(rr)

10(ss)**

10(tty**

10(uu)**

10(vv)**

10(ww)**

21.1
23.1
311

31.2
32.1

322

Description

Debtor-in-Possession Revolving Credit Agreement by and among A.B. Dick Company, Paragon
Corporate Holdings, Inc., KeyBank National Association and Presstek, Inc. dated July 13,2004
(Previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Presstek’s Form 8-K filed on July 13, 2004, hereby incorporated
by reference)

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among the Company, the Guarantors, Citizens Bank New
Hampshire, KeyBank National Association and Bank North N.A. dated November 5, 2004 (Previously
filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Presstek’s Form 8-K filed on November 12, 2004, hereby incorporated by
reference) : .

Employment Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Susan A. McLaughlin dated January 24,
2005 (Previously filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Presstek’s Form 8-K, filed January 28, 2005 hereby
incorporated by reference.)

Employment Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Edward J. Marino dated February 2, 2005
(Previously filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Presstek’s Form 8-K , filed February 8, 2005, hereby mcorporated
by reference.)

Employment Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Moosa E. Moosa dated February 2, 2005
(Previously filed as Exhibit 99.2 to Presstek’ Form 8-K , filed February §, 2005, hereby incorporated
by reference.)

Employment Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Michael McCarthy dated February 2, 2005
(Previously filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Presstek’s Form 10-Q, filed May 12, 2005, hereby incorporated by
reference.)

Employment Agreement by and between Presstek, Inc. and Peter E. Bouchard dated July 1, 2005
(Previously filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Presstek’s Form 8-K, filed July 8, 2005, hereby incorporated by
reference.)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed herewith)

Consent of BDO Seidman, LLP (filed herewith.)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 240.13a-14 or Section 240.15d-14 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (filed and furnished herewith.)

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 240.13a-14 or Section 240.15d-14 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (filed and furnished herewith.)

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 (filed and furnished herewith.)

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 (filed and furnished herewith.)

* The SEC has granted Presstek’s request of confidential treatment with respect to a portion of this exhibit.

** Denotes management employment contracts or compensatory plans.
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Dear Fellow Shareholders:

)

uring the past few years, Presstek has reshaped its
business to capitalize on the changes occurring in
the commercial printing market. Built on our rich
history of technological innovation, Presstek today is a vibrant
new organization that develops and delivers our leading digital
technology and solutions to a broad and growing customer
base around the world.

The evolution of commercial printing from analog-based
methods to digital imaging technology is reshaping the
industry, and Presstek, through its spirit of innovation,
is delivering the digital imaging solutions—equipment,
consumables and service—that will help lead our customers
through these changes and improve their businesses. Our
customers frequently tell us that our digital imaging solutions
deliver significantly improved performance, reduced operating
costs and increased profitability for their

. . . businesses, which in turn allows them to
“We provide customers with unigue advanced

digital imaging solutions for the fastest
growing area of the market—high-quality, fast
turnaround, short-run color printing.”

deliver more value to their customers.

This letter shares our achievements in 2005,
along with our growth plans and priorities for
2006. We believe it demonstrates the breadth
of Presstek’s market opportunity, as well as how
our company delivers tangible results to our growing customer
base and value to our shareholders.

Cur Market

Presstek is focused on the needs of commercial printers,
corporate printing operations and the design community as
they rapidly evolve to a digital model. We provide customers
‘with unique, advanced digital imaging solutions for the fastest
growing area of the market—high-quality, fast turnaround,
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“The market is enthusiastically responding to
our products and our digital workflows

..the opportunity for our Direct Imaging press
business has never been better.”

short-run color printing. Research shows that the use of color
in commercially printed products is continuing to grow, and
that run lengths are becoming increasingly shorter in order

to allow print originators to target their marketing messages
more precisely. We believe there are literally tens of thousands
of printing establishments worldwide where Presstek’s digital
imaging products would provide the best opportunity for print
providers to meet these market demands.

Qur Product Solutions

Presstek has several technologically advanced solutions that
meet the needs of customers in this changing market. We
provide Direct Imaging (DI®) presses for digital offset printing,
as well as the patented chemistry-free printing plates that are
used on these presses to deliver the most advanced printing
experience in the industry. We also provide computer-to-plate,
or CTP, systems that digitally image our chemistry-free
printing plates on stand-alone devices using imaging
technology similar to our Direct Imaging presses.

Presstek invented the concept of Direct Imaging, and
continues to perfect the technology. With DI, the press is
highly automated with specially designed electronics, software,
and advanced laser-imaging technology that allows the DI
press to operate more like a computer peripheral than a
traditional printing press. It is the ultimate in
streamlined digital workflow since printed files
are sent directly to the press with essentially no
pre-press processing of the data file.

In estimating the market size for Direct
Imaging presses, it is important to note that
DI presses number less than one percent of the
total installed base of presses. In the total market, there are
over 400,000 offset presses in operation today, many of which
are older and ill-equipped to adapt to the growing market
demand for short-run color printing. As these presses are
replaced with new technology, Presstek has the opportunity
to capture increased market share. We are focused on this
opportunity, and in the past year increased the number of our
DI press installations at a rapid rate due, in large part, to new
product introductions and the efforts of our new direct sales
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channel. The market is enthusiastically responding to our
products and our digital workflows, which gives us the
confidence to say that the opportunity for our Direct Imaging
press business has never been better.

- To help customers with conventional printing presses
take advantage of Presstek’s digital imaging technologies,
we have also produced a family of CTP systems which use
the chemistry-free printing plates invented by Presstek. Our
CTP solutions offer our customers the ability to streamline
their digital workflow. And, unlike some new competitive
plate products that claim to provide chemistry-free imaging,
Presstek’s printing plates, once imaged, are ready for printing
with no intermediate steps. This is the result of our patented
ﬁrinting plate technology. Presstek’s next frontier in the CTP
market is the application of our advanced chemistry-free
printing plates on CTP systems offered by other equipment
manufacturers.

Our Business Model

Presstek’s product model is the proven capital equipment

and consumable (razor and blade) model. Qur model is one
in which each piece of capital equipment (or consumable
burning engine) we install results in a high margin, recurring
révenue stream of consumables and service. As a result, almost
70 percent of Presstek’s revenue is recurring.

. Our market delivery strategy is built on reaching
customers through multiple channels. More than half of
Presstek’s revenue is generated from our direct sales and service
force, which operates in the U.S., Canada and the United
Kingdom. We also partner with original equipment manufac-
turers and graphic arts dealers on a worldwide basis to further
broaden our reach. With a high concentration of our existing
business in North America, we see great opportunities for
expansion outside of North America, especially in Europe.

~ Dresstek has long competed on the basis of our technology
advantages. That tradition continues. We remain innovators
and plan to continue to lead the market in digital imaging
solutions for the commercial printing segment of the graphic
arts industry. In February of 2006, we announced a new DI
press platform, known as the Presstek 52D1. With initial
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introduction in the European market in April 2006, the
Presstek 52DI is not only the most advanced Direct Imaging
press, it is possibly the best overall printing press ever
introduced in its format size. Its level of automation and
performance, together with the quality of its printed product,
establishes a new technological benchmark for the industry.
Finally, let me address our branding strategy. From the
time we were founded until last year, Presstek products went
to market primarily through name-brand partners instead of
carrying the Presstek brand. This changed in 2006 with the
successful introduction of our new Presstek 52DI press—the
first Direct Imaging press to carry the Presstek name. The
market has received the news of this product well, encouraging
us to launch more Presstek-branded products in the future.

Delivering Financial Results in 2005

Fiscal 2005 was a year of dramatic growth and improvement
in our financial performance. We were very pleased to deliver
the positive results you can see at left.

Our financial results in 2005 were strong. We believe,
however, that the most important aspect of our growth in
2005 was the strengthening of the underlying foundation of
our business. In 2005 we increased the market penetration of
Presstek’s digital imaging equipment, or consumable burning
engines. As I mentioned earlier, our digital imaging equipment
is a key driver of growth in our business as each piece of
installed equipment creates recurring revenue from consum-
ables and service.

The shift in our revenue mix demonstrates our leadership
in the industry’s transformation from analog to digital. The
chart on the following page illustrates the specifics of that shift
in revenue mix in 2005. We expect this trend to continue.

The increase in market penetration of our DI presses,
together with the shift in the mix of our digital and analog
businesses, significantly improves the quality of our revenue
and adds strength to our business.

The Road Ahead

In looking ahead we have identified three major areas of
continued opportunity for 2006. The first is to continue to




Presstek Digital/Analog Mix increase the market penetration of Presstek’s digital technology,
(as percentage of total revenue)

especially our Direct Imaging technology. We plan to
LR N P P PP ;

aécomplish this through an expansion in our product
offerings, as well as through further strengthening our sales
channels.

 Our second priority is to grow our market share in Europe.
We have already taken steps to address this priority by intro-
d{lcing products better suited to the European market, as well
as by the establishment of a new European Business Center
outside of London. Going forward, we plan to strengthen our
distribution channel by adding new distribution partners with

‘ whom we can invest to build a stronger, more sustainable
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

B oigital

channel to the customer.

B Analog  Increasing productivity across all facets of our business
is our third priority. This includes improving processes and
performance in all areas of our operations from the production

‘ floor to our executive offices.
“...the Presstek 52DI is not only the most Today, Presstek has a solid, well-proven
advanced Direct imaging press, it is possibly  razor and blade business model; strong

the best overall printing press ever introduced  technological market advantage; access to a

in its format size.” large and growing customer base; the financial

f resources to support growth; and a management
téam with a solid track record of execution.

" In 2006, we expect to see continued growth in our digital
téchnology business as we help to lead our industry through
its transformation. The future holds great promise for Presstek,
and we are confident that we have the ability to realize
that promise.

Lyl

Edward J. Marino
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER




Note 1: The financial performance presented in this table was materially affected by two acquisitions undertaken by the
Company in 2004: Precision Lithograining in july 2004 and the ABDick business in November 2004,

PRESSTEK, INC.
USE OF NON-GAAP MEASURES

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and restructuring and special charges (credits) (“EBITDA”) and
Revenue, Operating Income, Net Income, Earnings Per Share, and EBITDA Q4 2005 Run Rates are not measures of performance
under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP") and should not be considered
alternatives for, or in isolation from, the financial information prepared and presented in accordance with GAAP. Presstek’s
management believes that EBITDA and Revenue, Operating Income, Net Income, Earnings Per Share and EBITDA Q4 2005
Run Rates provide meaningful supplemental information regarding Presstek’s current financial performance and prospects for
the future. Presstek believes that both management and investors benefit from referring to these non-GAAP measures in
assessing the performance of Presstek’s ongoing operations and liquidity and when planning and forecasting future periods.
These non-GAAP measures also facilitate management’s internal comparisons to Presstek’s historical operating results and
liquidity. Our presentations of these measures, however, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other
companies. Reconciliations of these measures to GAAP are included below.

PRESSTEK, INC.
RECONCILIATION OF EBITDA TO CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME
(in thousands)

(unaudited)
Three months Year Year
ended ended ended
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2005 2005 2005
(Q4 2005) (Fiscal 2005) (Fiscal 2004)
NEE INCOMIE -ttt e et ae e ea s enae 3 2,443 3 6,086 3 3,865
Interest 580 2,329 605
692 1,174 200
Depreciation and amortization 2,500 10,949 9,106
Restructuring and special charges (credits) (35) 874 (392)
BBl A i e e et et e $ 6,180 $ 21,412 $ 13,384

PRESSTEK, INC.
RECONCILIATION OF Q4 2005 RUN RATE
(in thousands, except per-share data)
(unaudited)

Presstek uses the term “Run Rate” to describe the then-current operations of the Company at a given time, annualized. For
instance, Q4 2005 Run Rate Revenue of $277.3 million is derived by taking the Company’s revenue for the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2005 and multiplying that number by four. Run Rates for Operating Income, Net Income, Earnings Per Share and EBITDA
are similarly calculated.

Operating Earnings
Revenue Income Net Income Per Share EBITDA
Q4 2005 Amount ................ $ 69,336 $ 3,295 $ 2,443 $ 0.07 3 6,180
Annualization Factor ............ 4 4 4 4 4
Q4 2005 Run Rate .............. § 277,344 $ 13,180 $ 9,772 3 0.28 $ 24,720

“Safe Harbor” Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995:

In addition to the historical information contained herein, certain statements in this letter are forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.These statements include, but are not limited to,
statements that do not describe historical facts and statements that include the word “will,” “believes,” “anticipates,”
"expects,” “plans,” “intends,” “designs” or similar language, as well as statements regarding marketplace acceptance of the
Company's new or existing products; the potential benefits of our products; the strength of our strategic partners; the
Company's stated financial and operating goals; and the Company’s expectations of future growth. Although Presstek
believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, it has no
assurance that its expectations will be attained. Factors that could cause actual resuits to differ include general economic
conditions, industry and market conditions, slower than anticipated penetration of new markets, unexpected negative
changes in the Company’s financial position, regulatory actions and legislative actions in the countries in which Presstek
operates, future demand and market size for the Company’s products, marketplace acceptance of new or existing products,
and other risks detailed in the Company’s SEC reports, including its 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date on which they are made. The Company undertakes no obligations to update, change
or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, additional or subsequent developments
or otherwise.
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Blutions that facilitate the transition of our customers rom
ional analog processes O document production to

figital imaging solutions for commercia printing applications.
Bur solutions include digital imaging equipment 1or 0 est

ing as well as high performance printing plates. We also

ible printing experience.

[oday, Presstek counts more than halt o orth American o

B Tobust portrolio of products and services that covers
rom consumables for conventional offset to the most

¥vanced—and possibly the best overall—printing press ever

roduced in its format size, the Presste 52Dl

nerships, and a strong graphic arts dealer networ
inental Furope and other parts of the world. More than

of Presstek’s revenue Is generated throug its direct
annel, and almost /0 percent of our revenue I1s generated by

Bur financial, human resource and technology infrastructure

and our sustainable business mode posntlons usasa
Mle to lead our customers to a more digital and sustainable

re for their businesses—A Smarter Way to Print.

more information on Presstek, visit www.presstek.com
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yrinters who have

orinmting solution.

Derived from the sy ‘€sStek s com|
CTP) systems and plate materials deliver many of the advantages of DI

0 printers who have investments in conventional offset press equipment.




:PRESSTEK

A SMARTER WAY TO PRINT

Dear Fellow Shareholders, Valued Customers,
Partners and Employees:

uring the past few years, Presstek has reshaped its
business to capitalize on the changes occurring in

the commercial printing market. Built on our rich
history of technological innovation, Presstek today is a vibrant
new organization that develops and delivers our leading digital
technology and solutions to a broad and growing customer
base around the world.

The evolution of commercial printing from analog-based
methods to digital imaging technology is reshaping the
industry, and Presstek, through its spirit of innovation,
is delivering the digital imaging solutions—equipment,
consumables and service—that will help lead our customers
through these changes and improve their businesses. Our
customers frequently tell us that our digital imaging solutions
deliver significantly improved performance, reduced operating
costs and increased profitability for their

. . . businesses, which in turn allows them to
“We provide customers with unique advanced

digital imaging solutions for the fastest
growing area of the market—high-quality, fast
turnaround, short-run color printing.”

deliver more value to their customers.

This letter shares our achievements in 2005,
along with our growth plans and priorities for
2006. We believe it demonstrates the breadth
. of Presstek’s market opportunity, as well as how
our company delivers tangible results to our growing customer
base and value to our shareholders.

Our Market

Presstek is focused on the needs of commercial printers,
corporate printing operations and the design community as
they rapidly evolve to a digital model. We provide customers
with unique, advanced digital imaging solutions for the fastest
growing area of the market—high-quality, fast turnaround,
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short-run color printing. Research shows that the use of color
in commercially printed products is continuing to grow, and
that run lengths are becoming increasingly shorter in order

to allow print originators to target their marketing messages
more precisely. We believe there are literally tens of thousands
of printing establishments worldwide where Presstek’s digital
imaging products would provide the best opportunity for print
providers to meet these market demands.

Our Product Solutions

Presstek has several technologically advanced solutions that
meet the needs of customers in this changing market. We
provide Direct Imaging (DI®) presses for digital offset printing,
as well as the patented chemistry-free printing plates that are
used on these presses to deliver the most advanced printing
experience in the industry. We also provide computer-to-plate,
or CTP, systems that digitally image our chemistry-free
printing plates on stand-alone devices using imaging
technology similar to our Direct Imaging presses.

Presstek invented the concept of Direct Imaging, and
continues to perfect the technology. With DI, the press is
highly automated with specially designed electronics, software,
and advanced laser-imaging technology that allows the DI
press to operate more like a computer peripheral than a

traditional printing press. It is the ultimate in

“The market is enthusiastically responding to streamlined digital workflow since printed files

our products and our digital workflows
..the opportunity for our Direct Imaging press
business has never been better.”

are sent directly to the press with essentially no
pre-press processing of the data file.

In estimating the market size for Direct
Imaging presses, it is important to note that
DI presses number less than one percent of the
total installed base of presses. In the total market, there are
over 400,000 offset presses in operation today, many of which
are older and ill-equipped to adapt to the growing market
demand for short-run color printing. As these presses are
replaced with new technology, Presstek has the opportunity
to capture increased market share. We are focused on this
opportunity, and in the past year increased the number of our
DI press installations at a rapid rate due, in large part, to new
product introductions and the efforts of our new direct sales




Recurring Revenues

Consumables
O DI Plates

O CTP Plates

O Supplies

O Other

T’

Recurring
Revenues
70%

e

Service

O Installation
O Training

O Support

O Spare Parts

Business Profile by Customer

Revenue by Customer Type

Revenue by Geographic Location
Rest of
the World
5%

North America
74%

channel. The market is enthusiastically responding to our
products and our digital workflows, which gives us the
confidence to say that the opportunity for our Direct Imaging
press business has never been better.

To help customers with conventional printing presses
take advantage of Presstek’s digital imaging technologies,
we have also produced a family of CTP systems which use
the chemistry-free printing plates invented by Presstek. Our
CTP solutions offer our customers the ability to streamline
their digital workflow. And, unlike some new competitive
plate products that claim to provide chemistry-free imaging,
Presstek’s printing plates, once imaged, are ready for printing
with no intermediate steps. This is the result of our patented
printing plate technology. Presstek’s next frontier in the CTP
market is the application of our advanced chemistry-free
printing plates on CTP systems offered by other equipment

manufacturers.

Our Business Model

Presstek’s product model is the proven capital equipment

and consumable (razor and blade) model. Our model is one
in which each piece of capital equipment (or consumable
burning engine) we install results in a high margin, recurring
revenue stream of consumables and service. As a result, almost
70 percent of Presstek’s revenue is recurring.

Our market delivery strategy is built on reaching
customers through multiple channels. More than half of
Presstek’s revenue is generated from our direct sales and service
force, which operates in the U.S., Canada and the United
Kingdom. We also partner with original equipment manufac-
turers and graphic arts dealers on a worldwide basis to further
broaden our reach. With a high concentration of our existing
business in North America, we see great opportunities for
expansion outside of North America, especially in Europe.

Presstek has long competed on the basis of our technology
advantages. That tradition continues. We remain innovators
and plan to continue to lead the market in digital imaging
solutions for the commercial printing segment of the graphic
arts industry. In February of 2006, we announced a new DI
press platform, known as the Presstek 52DI. With initial



Revenues ($ millions)

See Note 1

Operating Income ($ millions)

FY 2004

See Note 1

FY 2004

FY 2005

Q4 2005 Run Rate

...................

FY 2005

Net Income ($ millions)

See Note 1

Earnings Per Share

FY 2004

See Note 1

EBITDA (3 millions)

FY 2004

See Note 1

FY 2004

Q4 2005 Run Rate

FY 2005

Q4 2005 Run Rate

FY 2005

FY 2005

Q4 2005 Run Rate

Q4 2005 Run Rate

introduction in the European market in April 2006, the
Presstek 52DI is not only the most advanced Direct Imaging
press, it is possibly the best overall printing press ever
introduced in its format size. Its level of automation and
performance, together with the quality of its printed product,
establishes a new technological benchmark for the industry.
Finally, let me address our branding strategy. From the
time we were founded until last year, Presstek products went
to market primarily through name-brand partners instead of
carrying the Presstek brand. This changed in 2006 with the
successful introduction of our new Presstek 52DI press—the
first Direct Imaging press to carry the Presstek name. The
market has received the news of this product well, encouraging
us to launch more Presstek-branded products in the future.

Delivering Financial Results in 2005

Fiscal 2005 was a year of dramatic growth and improvement
in our financial performance. We were very pleased to deliver
the positive results you can see at left.

Our financial results in 2005 were strong. We believe,
however, that the most important aspect of our growth in
2005 was the strengthening of the underlying foundation of
our business. In 200§ we increased the market penetration of
Presstek’s digital imaging equipment, or consumable burning
engines. As I mentioned earlier, our digital imaging equipment
is a key driver of growth in our business as each piece of
installed equipment creates recurring revenue from consum-
ables and service.

The shift in our revenue mix demonstrates our leadership
in the industry’s transformation from analog to digital. The
chart at right illustrates the specifics of that shift in revenue
mix in 2005. We expect this trend to continue.

The increase in market penetration of our DI presses,
together with the shift in the mix of our digital and analog
businesses, significantly improves the quality of our revenue

and adds strength to our business.

The Road Ahead

In looking ahead we have identified three major areas of
continued opportunity for 2006. The first is to continue to

———-—-——-—----_-----b-
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increase the market penetration of Presstek’s digital technology,
especially our Direct Imaging technology. We plan to
accomplish this through an expansion in our product
offerings, as well as through further strengthening our sales
channels.

Our second priority is to grow our market share in Europe.
We have already taken steps to address this priority by intro-
ducing products better suited to the European market, as well
as by the establishment of a new European Business Center
outside of London. Going forward, we plan to strengthen our
distribution channel by adding new distribution partners with
whom we can invest to build a stronger, more sustainable
channel to the customer.

Increasing productivity across all facets of our business
is our third priority. This includes improving processes and
performance in all areas of our operations from the production

floor to our executive offices.

“...the Presstek 52Dl is not only the most Today, Presstek has a solid, well-proven
advanced Direct Imaging press, it is possibly  razor and blade business model; strong

the best overall printing press ever introduced  technological market advantage; access to a
in its format size.” large and growing customer base; the financial

resources to support growth; and a management
team with a solid track record of execution.

In 2006, we expect to see continued growth in our digital
technology business as we help to lead our industry through
its transformation. The future holds great promise for Presstek,
and we are confident that we have the ability to realize

that promise.

7

Edward J. Marino
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER




Note 1: The financial performance presented in this table was materially affected by two acquisitions undertaken by the
Company in 2004: Precision Lithograining in July 2004 and the ABDick business in November 2004.

PRESSTEK, INC.
USE OF NON-GAAP MEASURES

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and restructuring and special charges (credits) (“EBITDA") and
Revenue, Operating Income, Net Income, Earnings Per Share, and EBITDA Q4 2005 Run Rates are not measures of performance
under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and should not be considered
alternatives for, or in isolation from, the financial information prepared and presented in accordance with GAAP. Presstek’s
management believes that EBITDA and Revenue, Operating Income, Net income, Earnings Per Share and EBITDA Q4 2005
Run Rates provide meaningful supplemental information regarding Presstek’s current financial performance and prospects for
the future. Presstek believes that both management and investors benefit from referring to these non-CAAP measures in
assessing the performance of Presstek’s ongoing operations and liquidity and when planning and forecasting future periods.
These non-GAAP measures also facilitate management’s internal comparisons to Presstek’s historical operating results and
liquidity. Our presentations of these measures, however, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other
companies. Reconciliations of these measures to GAAP are included below.

PRESSTEK, INC.
RECONCILIATION OF EBITDA TO CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME
(in thousands)
(unaudited)

Three months Year Year
ended ended ended
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2005 2005 2005
(Q4 2005) (Fiscal 2005) (Fiscal 2004)
NEL INCOMIE it e e e v e e e e reaas 3 2,443 3 6,086 $ 3,865
Interest 580 2,329 605
Taxes . . 692 1,174 200
Depreciation and amortization .........cc....o.vveeiiieirvemniceermienenennnn. 2,500 10,949 9,106
Restructuring and special charges (credits) ............ccc..ieiiin (35) 874 (392)
BBl A i et e $ 6,180 $ 21,412 $ 13,384

PRESSTEK, INC.
RECONCILIATION OF Q4 2005 RUN RATE
(in thousands, except per-share data)
(unaudited)

Presstek uses the term “Run Rate” to describe the then-current operations of the Company at a given time, annualized. For
instance, Q4 2005 Run Rate Revenue of $277.3 million is derived by taking the Company’s revenue for the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2005 and multiplying that number by four. Run Rates for Operating Income, Net Income, Earnings Per Share and EBITDA
are similarly calculated.

Operating Earnings
Revenue Income Net Income Per Share EBITDA
Q4 2005 Amount ................ $ 69,336 $ 3,295 $ 2443 3 0.07 § 6,80
Annualization Factor ............ 4 4 4 4 4
Q4 2005 Run Rate .............. $ 277,344 $ 13,180 $ 9772 3 0.28 $ 24,720

“Safe Harbor” Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995:

In addition to the historical information contained herein, certain statements in this letter are forward-fooking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.These statements include, but are not limited to,
statements that do not describe historical facts and statements that include the word “will,” “believes,” “anticipates,”
“expects,” “plans,” “intends,” “designs” or similar language, as well as statements regarding marketplace acceptance of the
Company's new or existing products; the potential benefits of our products; the strength of our strategic partners; the
Company’s stated financial and operating goals; and the Company’s expectations of future growth. Although Presstek
believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, it has no
assurance that its expectations will be attained. Factors that could cause actual results to differ include general economic
conditions, industry and market conditions, slower than anticipated penetration of new markets, unexpected negative
changes in the Company’s financial position, regulatory actions and legislative actions in the countries in which Presstek
operates, future demand and market size for the Company’s products, marketplace acceptance of new or existing products,
and other risks detailed in the Company’s SEC reports, including its 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date on which they are made. The Company undertakes no obligations to update, change
or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, additiona! or subsequent developments
or otherwise. ’




n September 2005, InfoTrends published a survey of Direct Imaging (D)

press owners that was commissioned by Presstek. The survey revealed a

strong correlation between the aquisition of Presstek DI technology and
growth and profitability. It also indicated that as the average printing run
length decreases, the advantage of using Presstek solutions increases.

Reported Change in Demand for Printing Run Lengths
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Impact of Presstek DI on Business
Percentage of Respondents in Agreement with the Statements Below

DI has increased my business by either bringing
in new customers or winning customers
from competitors

D1 has increased my business by growing my
— share of my customers total print orders

- D! has increased my business because the
technology enables applications | could not have
done before

Through offering DI printing services, | have
been able to increase my other printing business

| I I T |
20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Source: InfoTrends/CAP Ventures, September 2005
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YNNECT RES OURCES he world of business communications,

‘ historically dominated by print, has
changed dramatically as technology
fransforms it into an jncreasingly digital
process. This sea change has shifted the role
of print in the business communications media

Mmix. and the printing industry must step up to
the challenge of delivering new products and

services to meet new communications neeg

PROCESS CONTROL Presstek technology innovations have led the
industry into the new digital age, delivering
the first change in printing workflow in over

a century by integrating computing, laser
imaging and on-press platemaking into a highly
automated digital press, and by bringing

chemistry-free platemaking into the mainstream.

By combining leading-edge research and
development with world-class manufacturing
expertise and process controls, Presstek delivers
consistent, highly reliable products to a
dynamic and changing marketplace. Presstek
technology optimizes the performance of
digital imaging technology, thermal digital
media and press design by combining them
DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING into unified systems that fully integrate with the
digital workflow of today’s communicators and
printers. By delivering A Smarter Way to Print,
Presstek technology ensures a vibrant and vital
role for print in the business communications
AIGH FREQUENCY media mix for the foreseeable future.
COMMUNICATION
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{ DIJ presses are partlcularly
L well st sulted for short-run, fast -
~ turnaround work. While they
- can run jobs as long as 20,000
impressions, they are most .
appropriate in runs from
~as low as 250 up to 5,000
impressions, making them |
. competitive with a wide range
of alternative technologies.
~Study after study shows a h
level of owner satisfaction a/fch
conslstently hlgh profi tabll

igh

ity. |

- -john Zarwan, |. Zarwan Pa{tnerg
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FoJIf our company, Presstek CTP

\v/vas an/easy decision. Now, we
produce a better plate, faster

- and at a reduced cost. We are

~ able to compete for more quick

) *fturnaround business and keep

- our presses running mo/\ /\

_‘ cons|stent|y |
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,;«" It \would take us all day to

do | 000 to 2,000 4- color |
“pieces with plate changes
‘and wash-ups on our 2-color
press. With the DI press there
is absolutely no comparison.

That same job can be produced\
in less than 40 mmutes.\ / S

/

——Tony Vaccari /” S / //
« . P
. Manhattan Mailers_—" ("

. Macomb, M{ .

| ;/ DI has the advantage over

\ conventlonal offset of being
operated almost like a
digital press. So it is a logical
technology for digital printers
without offset skillsto
consider for jobs with run
lengths in excess of 250 0 copies
where no personallzatlon Y
is requlred AN ,f ‘\ /

; —Andy Tribute, Attrlbutés Assouates / :
- from What They TH‘mk/W17/06/
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Delivering Solutions

arge printing companies have led the

way by making significant investments

in process automation and workflow
efficiencies—investments that are out of reach
for smaller firms. Yet many large firms are still
tuned to long print runs produced with conven-
tional technologies that are ill-equipped to deal
with today’s fast-paced business model.

As customers demand shorter print runs, faster
turnaround times and competitive pricing with
no compromise in quality, printing establish-
ments need innovative and affordable solutions
that will help them keep pace with market
demands. Presstek is dedicated to delivering
those solutions.

¢ Solutions that take full advantage of the
analog-to-digital transformation taking place
in the industry

» Solutions that incorporate a more efficient
workflow, eliminating waste and reducing
labor in the printing process

» Solutions that enable the small to mid-sized
printer to deliver new products and services
in an increasingly competitive market

« Solutions that appeal to print buyers and
communicators on multiple levels

e Solutions that deliver A Smarter Way to Print

Presstek chemistry-free solutions are trans-
forming the business of printing for firms
around the globe, improving their competitive-
ness and profitability, placing high-quality,
short-run, fast turnaround, four-color printing
within reach for even the smallest firm, while
at the same time ensuring the environmental
sustainability of the offset printing process for
these firms.
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Delivering Advantaqges

£ n today’s challenging business environment,
| success for the small to mid-sized printing
R establishment depends in large part on their
ability to capitalize on digital workflow. To
achieve market differentiation and competitive

advantage, these businesses must carefully
marshal scarce resources and choose technology
that will yield the greatest benefit for them

and for their customers. Over and over, our
customers tell us that Presstek technology

and solutions have offered them this market
differentiation and advantage through:

} i Ncreased flexibility in meeting customer
flemands for hig ity, short-run, qui

m.nabling new products and services that help
them to retain and expand share of the print
NON-PROFIT . . e
ORGANIZATION ! expenditures of existing customers, as well as
U.S. POSTAGE

PAID \ acquire new customers
PERMIT NO. 220

EUGENE, O * Improved profitability due to more productive
workflow and fewer steps in the work process

¢ Highly automated and efficient chemistry-free
printing systems that deliver exceptional
quality without the need to add skills or
special expertise

From its inception, Presstek has been
dedicated to delivering these advantages to
all printing companies to ensure their
continued business success. We have delivered
these advantages by extending digital workflow
all the way to the printing press, itself. At the

same time, we at Presstek believe

that these advantages are critical

to the continued viability and

competitiveness of print as a

business communications medium.
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Delivering Results

uring the last four years, Presstek has

focused on its transformation from a

technology-centered organization to a
market-driven, customer-oriented company
delivering innovative solutions and positioned
for future growth. The combination of resources
Presstek now has in place is designed to deliver
market-leading results. These resources include:

* An expanded direct sales network staffed with
experienced, well-trained sales professionals
supplemented by a strong dealer channel

* A well-developed one-stop-shopping
e-commerce capability for convenient
customer ordering

¢ One of the largest service and support
networks in the industry

¢ High-quality training, education and
marketing support designed to deliver rapid
operational ramp-up and ongoing business
growth for our customers

* A growing portfolio of digital workflow
solutions for improved operational efficiency

* Increased uptime and improved product
performance enabled by remote service
diagnostics, both preventative and predictive,
in combination with field service expertise

¢ Manufacturing supply chain and distribution
channels that ensure reliable delivery of
proprietary and non-proprietary consumables

The delivery of these vital resources is critical to
the success of our customers and to the growth
of our company.



Delivering World-Class Resources

Automation, process control, and quality
assurance are hallmarks of Presstek’s plate
manufacturing.

Lasertel’s state-of-the-art engineering and
production delivers high power fiber-coupled
diodes for graphic arts and other industries.

Education, demonstration and training are vital
components of Presstek’s sales and customer
support strategies.

Presstek’s new UK offices are exemplary of our
committment to world-class customer support.

sales, service and support; and patented technology. Presstek has

invested heavily in assembling that infrastructure and in delivering
technologies that lead the industry’s digital transformation, all designed to
ensure our competitive position and ability to execute.

: elivering innovation requires a robust infrastructure—manufacturing;

Our accomplished team of scientists and engineers is continually working
to improve existing products, develop new products, and find innovative
opportunities for the future application of Presstek technology. Currently,
this team has to its credit over 550 U.S. or foreign technology patents, with
an additional 46 patents pending.

Presstek’s stfategy has always been based in part on strategic alliances with
leading companies in the printing and graphic arts industry. This strategy
includes licensing intellectual property and proprietary technologies for
inclusion in other manufacturers’ products, as well as rebranding, when such
strategy enables the delivery of Presstek solutions to a broader customer base.

Over 200,000 square feet of world-class manufacturing facilities in Hudson,
NH, and South Hadley, MA, are dedicated to production of our thermal
chemistry-free printing plates for use on Presstek equipment and that of
other leading manufacturers, as well as the electronic and mechanical
assembly of our Direct Imaging products and computer-to-plate systems.
Advanced manufacturing integrates all aspects of design, engineering and
manufacturing, including supplier quality assurance certification, for high
reliability, lower manufacturing costs and faster delivery.

Our Lasertel subsidiary, a world-class developer and manufacturer of
high-powered laser diodes, provides Presstek with state-of-the-art laser
imaging capabilities that differentiate the company as it brings innovation
to the rapidly evolving graphic arts marketplace. Lasertel’s expertise and
75,000-square-foot facility in Tuscon, AZ, provide a qualified supply of laser
components and serves a wide range of industries.

Presstek’s experienced direct sales and service force, deployed primarily

in North America and the UK and focused on Presstek solutions as well

as those from our manufacturing partners, is supplemented by our strong
dealer and OEM channel partners. These resources are designed to ensure
improved access to our customers with pre- and post-sales support
designed to increase the value of their investments in our technology.

A network of graphic arts distributors supports Presstek’s products in other
geographic areas.

In addition to Presstek’s corporate headquarters in Hudson, NH, Presstek’s
worldwide sales and support facilities include a main distribution center
near Chicago, il, strategic support centers located around North America,
and new offices in the UK near London’s Heathrow Airport to support an
expanded European presence. The UK office provides European customers
and dealers with a central resource for sales, distribution, training, and
technical support.

Presstek is a'customer-facing organization that has approximately 1,000
employees worldwide. Nearly 600 of these employees are engaged in sales,
service and customer support activities.




“Safe Harbor” Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995: Certain statements
contained in this brochure constitute “forward-looking statements” within the meanirg of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The words “believe,” “designed,” “may,” and similar
expressions among others identify forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements
involve a number of known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the
actual results, performance or achievernents of the Company to be materially different from any future
results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.
Additional information concerning factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
in such forward-looking statements is contained in the Company’s Form 10-K for the vear 2005,
inciuding those identified therein under the heading “Risk Factors”. Readers are cauticned to review
the Company’s Form 10-K completely and to not place undue reliance on any such forward-locking
statements in this brochure, which speak only as of the date the statements were mace. Presstek
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements contained in this brochure.
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About this Publication

Unlike other mediums, printed
communications offer readers and
communicators, alike, the extra
dimensions of size, shape, weight,
and texture—elements that create a
unique interface with the reader. By
combining the efficiency and speed
of digital communications with the
recognized quality and versatility of
offset printing, Presstek technology
offers the best of two worlds.
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